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Dear Shareholders,

 Another year has passed with Thailand’s economy contracting owing to the Covid-19 outbreak epidemic, which has 
unavoidably impacted people’s lifestyles and businesses. The government’s measures to control the pandemic, such as  
canceling events in public areas, announcing curfews, and social distance, which had a substantial impact on the company’s 
business of hosting trade fairs, which is one of the company’s key revenue-generating activities. The company, on the other 
hand, has been actively monitoring and assessing the situation in order to prepare for the crisis and get through it.

 The company’s total separate revenue decreased from 503.20 million baht in 2020 to 497.54 million baht in 2021, 
resulting in a separate net profit decrease from 40.87 million baht in 2020 to 38.88 million baht in 2021. The Thai Institute of 
Directors Association awarded the corporation an exceptional CG award or 5 stars for its corporate governance performance, 
which reflects our dedication to business ethics and good corporate governance as management principles.

 The company anticipates the economy to rebound in 2022 as a result of the government’s stimulus measures and the 
easing of pandemic control measures. In order to prepare and respond, the company continues to run its business with caution, 
considering the company’s and its stakeholders’ best interests while adhering to the principles of good corporate governance 
and effective risk management. Under constantly changing economic and social situations, the operator can continue to operate.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I’d like to thank all shareholders and stakeholders for their trust in and support of the 
company’s operations, as well as the board of directors, executives, and all employees who collaborated in the business 
peration under difficult conditions last year in order for the company to operate according to the goals that will allow it to grow 
steadily and sustainably.

Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn

Chairman of the Board

Message from 
Chairman of the 
Board

Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn
Chairman of the Board
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Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow

Chairman of the Executive

Dear Shareholders,

 Year 2021 GPI has continued to develop under the vision. “GPI is a leading event organizing and information provider 
with aim to create impressive experience and entertainment for every life style of automotive users”. Although in the prior year 
business operations both in Thailand and abroad have undergone rapidly, with the COVID-19 outbreak as a catalyst for business 
changes at an accelerated rate. However, GPI continues to adjust to maintain business revenue levels as well as to continue 
expanding into new business for better performance.

 GPI’s 2021 financial results reflect the strong fundamentals of the automotive industry that continued spending despite 
some declines in consumer purchasing power. But with more than 1 million visitors in two week increase 28.60% from the 
previous year. Including the car reservation of more than 27,868 cars, representing an amount of more than 30 billion baht, an 
increase of 51.50%. This reflects consumer confidence and the recovery of the automotive industry.

 Although in the past year there were many factors that negatively affected the Company’s operations. As a result, the 
company has to adjust and changing business strategies. In 2021, company have been invested into new businesses, which is 
9-megawatt waste-to-energy power plant that the joint venture company has completed the construction. The company expects 
to receive a Commercial Operate Date (COD) license in early 2022, which will boost revenue recognition. And to support the 
demand for electric power from the transition of the old car industry into clean energy vehicles to create the growth of the 
automotive industry in the future. As well as caring for the environment at the same time. In addition, the company started the 
business of selling collectible cars, customized cars to particular customers who have purchasing power and demand for 
classic cars and also the digital motorsport racing game platform business. In addition, the database has been accumulating 
from visitors that participate the Bangkok International Motor Show (BIMS) to be used as an important database in 
“Car Buddy” application to expand to other services in the future.

 Finally, on behalf of the Chairman of the Executive Committee I would like to thank the management team and all 
employees. For the determination to work hard to help drive and enhance the opportunity to expand and grow GPI and thank 
the shareholders, Stakeholders, partners, customers and business partners financial institutions and various government and 
private agencies that support the steady growth of GPI, and we promise that GPI will continue to develop its business with 
passion. To create innovative activities that are in line with the world of the future without neglecting environmentally 
friendly practices for sustainable development.

Message from 
Chairman of the 
Executive

Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow
Chairman of the Executive
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Dear Shareholders,

 Grand Prix International Public Company Limited’s Audit Committee is made up of 3 independent directors who are 

qualified with the necessary expertise and credentials to assess the financial statements’ trustworthiness. The Audit Committee 

consists of

 1.  Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew  Chairman of Audit Committee

 2.  Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem  Audit Committee Member

 3.  Mr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi  Audit Committee Member

 The Audit Committee has carried out its responsibilities independently, as allocated by the board of directors, and in 

line with the Audit Committee Charter, in complete conformity with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s and Thailand’s 

Stock Exchange’s regulations. The Audit Meeting was conducted 6 times to discuss the following significant issues:

 1.  Together with the company’s management, chief accounting, finance, and auditors, the Audit Committee reviewed  

  key information from the company’s quarterly and annual financial statements to inquire about the company’s 

  correctness, accuracy, and reliability as well as the completeness of financial statements and significant accounting  

  adjustments, including the adequacy and appropriateness of accounting recording methods. Delivering advantages  

  to shareholders in a timely manner Investors and financial statement users, information must be disclosed honestly  

  and thoroughly, and auditors must be impartial. To guarantee that financial statements are prepared in line with legal  

  requirements and accounting standards, and that they are accurate and dependable. Disclosure provides information  

  in a timely and appropriate manner for the benefit of shareholders, investors, and financial statement users.

 2.  The Audit Committee has reviewed connected transactions or transactions that may have conflicts of interest in  

  accordance with SET laws and regulations to ensure that the company has a reasonable, transparent process for  

  considering such transactions, as well as disclosure of information that is accurate, sufficient, and complete.

 3. The Audit Committee examined compliance with securities and exchange laws, rules, and regulations, as well as  

  legislation relating to the company’s business, in line with SEC and SET regulations. The usual business conditions  

  are correctly and adequately implemented to guarantee that the organization has complied with the law. In 2021, no  

  transactions were discovered at the subsidiary companies act that were in violation of applicable rules and regulations.

Report of the
Audit Committee

Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew
Chairman of Audit Committee
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(Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew)

Chairman of Audit Committee

 4. By overseeing the operations of the internal auditors, considering, and approving the annual audit plan, Audit reports,  

  and follow-up reports on the implementation of recommendations, as well as providing feedback to management  

  and internal auditors, the Audit Committee ensures that the company has an adequate internal control system and  

  effective internal audit. The significant concerns are regularly checked and corrected in order to make operations  

  efficient and effective.

 5.  The Audit Committee accepted the corporate risk management report, which was submitted by the Risk Management  

  and Sustainable Development Committee in order to ensure that the risk management process followed international  

  standards. It considers major internal and external risk variables, has an effective risk management plan and rules  

  in place, and is able to limit or mitigate the impact on the organization’s operational aims to an acceptable level.

 6.  The Audit Committee has evaluated, chosen, nominated, and proposed the auditor’s remuneration to the board of  

  directors for approval and submission to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The Audit Committee analyzes  

  and chooses an auditor from DIA International Audit Company Limited to be the company’s and its subsidiaries’  

  auditor for the year 2022. The auditor is chosen based on his or her expertise, abilities, experience, independence, 

  and understanding of the company’s operations.

 7. The Audit Committee examined the Audit Committee Charter to enhance and revise the Audit Committee’s 

  qualifications, roles, and powers so that they are comprehensive and compatible with their operational tasks and  

  standards.

 8. The Audit Committee is responsible for analyzing the company’s whistleblower and complaints in order to run the  

  business with honesty, openness, and fairness. There were no complaints or whistleblower in the year 2021, both  

  inside and outside.

  In conclusion, the audit committee’s performance in 2021 was entirely compliant with the charter. The Audit  

Committee is both independent and opinionated. The Audit Committee believes that the company has prepared financial  

statements that present material, complete, and reliable information in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 

including disclosures, related transactions, and transactions that could result in conflicts of interest. Sufficient benefits, an 

acceptable risk management system, and a sufficient and suitable internal control system for company operations, including 

compliance with all laws, rules, and regulations applicable to the company’s business activities.
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Dear Shareholders,

 The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee consists of 3 independent directors and 1 

executive director as follows:

 1. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem Chairman

 2. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Committee Member

 3. Mr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi Committee Member

 4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow Committee Member

 In the year 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration and Good Corporate Governance Committee completed and 

efficiently carried out the functions outlined in the Charter and as allocated by the board of directors. There are important issues 

in the execution of responsibilities that may be accomplished by conducting a total of 3 meetings: 

 1. To consider the qualifications and suitability of the company’s directors whose terms of office are coming to 

  an end, and submit a proposal to the board of directors for approval before proposing to the 2021 Annual 

  General Meeting of Shareholders to consider and approve the appointment of retiring directors in accordance  

  with regaining the position of company director and sub-committees for another term. Before such consideration,  

  the corporation has offered shareholders the opportunity to nominate and choose suitable candidates to act as the  

  company’s directors. There were no shareholder nominations at the conclusion of the term.

 2. To consider and determine the remuneration of the board of directors and subcommittees, as well as the 

  remuneration limit, for the year 2021, and submit to the board of directors for approval before submitting to the 2021  

  Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval, in accordance with the criteria for 

  determining remuneration. Taking into account the assigned tasks and obligations related to the company’s 

  operational performance and other important environmental conditions, as well as being comparable to companies  

  listed on the Thai Stock Exchange that are in the same business and have a similar company size.

Report of the Nomination 
and Remuneration and
Corporate Governance

Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem
Chairman of Nominations,
Remuneration and  Corporate 
Governance Committee
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 3. To consider examining and enhancing the board of directors’ and subcommittees’ performance appraisal forms for  

  the year 2021, both individually and collectively, to ensure that the forms are complete, up-to-date, and compatible  

  with excellent corporate governance standards.

 4. To review and improve the Chief Executive Officer’s performance appraisal for the year 2021, and report the  

  assessment results to the board of directors for use as a guideline for improving the Chief Executive Officer’s 

  efficiency, training plans to increase skills and knowledge, and determining the Chief Executive Officer’s 

  remuneration.

 5. To review the company’s good corporate governance policy and business ethics in accordance with the office of the  

  Securities and Exchange Commission’s principles and practices of good corporate governance in order to build  

  confidence among investors, shareholders, stakeholders, and other related parties. 

 6. To reconsider the anti-corruption policy, which requires the company to act on the basis of the law, with integrity  

  and ethics, in compliance with strong corporate governance rules and business rules of ethics in order to support  

  transparency in business operations. 

 7. To consider evaluating the company’s whistleblower and complaints policy to ensure that the company has a 

  structure in place to promote successful whistleblower and aware of the relevance of organizational culture 

   implementation.

 8. To organize to evaluate the Nomination, Remuneration, and Good Corporate Governance Committee’s performance  

  for the year 2021 and submit the results to the board of directors in order to develop effective performance and reveal  

  the assessment results in the annual report.

 In this regard, the Nomination, Remuneration, and Good Corporate Governance Committee is committed to carrying 

out its responsibilities in a clear and correct way.

(Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem)

Chairman of Nominations, Remuneration and 

Corporate Governance Committee
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Dear Shareholders,

 Grand Prix International Public Company Limited’s board of directors has appointed the Risk Management and 

Sustainable Development Committee, which consists of 4 directors who are experienced, competent, and understand company 

operations as follows:

 1.  Mr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi Chairman

 2. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis Committee Member

 3. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow Committee Member

 4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow Committee Member

 

 The board of directors authorized the addition of sustainable development responsibilities to the Risk Management 

Committee in 2021. To set up the Risk Management and Sustainability Committee, which will determine and review the 

company’s risk management framework and offer suggestions on risk management guidelines that are appropriate for business 

operations, as well as formulate social, environmental, and governance policies (or ESG) in line with the company’s strategy 

and business plans. The Risk Management and Sustainability Meeting was conducted 4 times in 2021 to discuss the following 

major issues:

 1. To determine and analyze the company’s risk management framework, risk assessment criteria, and acceptable risk  

  level for the year 2021 to ensure they are suitable, in consideration of the Strategic goals of the company, 

  operational plans, and changing environmental conditions. In 2021, the Risk Management and Sustainable 

  Development Committee expanded its Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) portfolio to include ESG 

  (environmental, social, and governance) and corruption concerns. 

 2. To conduct a risk factor analysis of the company’s fundamental business activities on a regular basis, encompassing  

  strategic risk, financial risk, operational risk, compliance risk, ESG risk, and corruption risk.  In addition, monitor 

  the organization in developing a risk management plan and establishing appropriate risk control guidelines to keep  

  risks under control.

Report of the Risk 
Management and 

Sustainable Development 
Committee 

Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi
Chairman of Risk Management 
and Sustainable Development 
Committee
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(Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi)

Chairman of Risk Management and

Sustainable Development Committee

 3. Before proposing major investment projects to the board of directors for approval, consider on risk issues, such as  

  risk management strategies.

 4. To formulate and assess the company’s sustainable development policy, as well as other policies and management  

  systems, in order to improve its competitiveness and guarantee that the company’s growth is consistent with its  

  social and environmental responsibilities.

 5. Reconsider the Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee’s charter to meet the standards of the  

  Stock Exchange of Thailand and the office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, as well as the principles  

  and guidelines of good corporate governance.

 6. To prepare a self-assessment form for the Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee to use as data  

  for increasing operational efficiency.

 Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee is confident that the company will continue to manage 

corporate risk in 2021, in accordance with the changing conditions. To implement the anti-corruption policy, as well as the 

company’s social and environmental development guidelines for the company’s commercial operations, can effectively control 

important risks, in conformity with the principles and practices of corporate governance. Growth that is sustainable and stable, 

in line with the company’s objectives
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Part 1: Company Proflie 
and Performance
1. Structure and Operations
1.1 Policies and Overview
  “Grand Prix Limited Partnership” was established in October 1970 by Mr.Prachin Eamlumnow to publish and 

distribute automotive magazines. Grand Prix Limited Partnership evolved and grew through the years. To further its business 

expansion, Mr.Eamlumnow established Grand Prix International Company Limited on April 30, 1982, with a registered 

capital of 2.00 million baht. The company expanded its print media business by publishing more automotive and lifestyle 

magazines, such as Motorcycle, Off Road, XO Autosport, Garage Life and YuadYan Newspaper. It had continuously made a 

success and continued to expand its business to automotive exhibition and event organizing business. The well-known 

exhibitions are the Bangkok International Motor Show and the Bangkok Used Car Show, as well as auto-related marketing 

activities, such as motor sport racing and off-road racing

1.1.1 Vision, Mission, Objectives and Long-term Goals

   Vision 

   • GPI is a leading event organizer and information provider with aim to create impressive experience and 

    entertainment for every life style of automotive users.

   Mission

   •  To produce automotive-focused contents, distribute quality knowledge and automotive innovation that deliver 

    value to society and consumers;

   • To develop automotive-related activities to meet customers’ satisfaction; 

   • To create high value and up-to-date product brands in automotive industry; 

   • To deliver the most satisfactory to customers, partners and society in a professional way;

   • To provide new automotive innovations to deliver an excellent customer experience; 

   • To create a high-value, outstanding and modern organization in automotive industry;

	 	 	 •	 To	 develop	 human	 resources	 to	 create	 people	with	 knowledge,	 skills	 and	 efficiency,	 as	well	 as	 to	 create 

	 	 	 	 working	environment	in	the	most	efficient	way;

   • To create an organization base with great value to differentiate us from others; 

	 	 	 •	 To	provide	financial	rewards	for	our	shareholders	and	stakeholders	with	high-efficiency	risk	management

   The Company’s objectives and main goals

	 	 	 The	Board	of	Directors	has	defined	the	company’s	objectives	and	main	goals	by	realizing	the	value	creation	for 

 all stakeholders and society as a whole. By considering the environment and various changing factors. Bring an 

 appropriate innovation or technology applied to meet needs of customers and stakeholders. Readiness, expertise and  

 competitiveness of the company as follows:
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   (1)  The Company will be a leader in the exhibition of automotive that standardized and quality. Committed to  

    developing the exhibition with new innovations to respond to changing customer needs and behaviors.

   (2) The Company will operate its business to be competitive and gain good operating results for sustainable growth.

   (3) The Company will operate its business ethically, transparent, respect rights and be responsible for 

	 	 	 	 shareholders,	all	stakeholders,	benefit	society	and	reduce	the	environmental	impact,	to	be	able	to	adapt	under	 

    environment and changing factors for business to survive for a long time.

	 	 	 (4)	 The	Company	will	 communicate	 and	 strengthen	 the	Company’s	objectives	 and	main	goals	 to	 be	 a	 good 

    guideline in making decisions and the operation of employees at all levels until it becomes a corporate culture. 

   Long-term Goals (3-5 years)

   Exhibition and Event Business 

   he Company determines to maintain its leadership in automotive exhibition by focusing on the development of  

 event pattern and develop activities in the event to be interesting, providing quality and comprehensive services, 

 ncluding applying various technologies for exhibition to create new experiences for customers and to increase the 

 ability to expand market of automotive events both in the country and abroad. 

   Media and Publishing Business

   The Company determines to produce quality online media to be in line with the lifestyle of automotive customers  

 by analysis the user database through the application in order to adapt service models and develop products consistent  

 with customer needs. Including focusing on the development of original print media to add value as a collection,  

 branding in each media to be known to be able to develop or offer new products and services under that brand.

   Printing Business

   The Company is still focusing on producing quality products, using modern materials and printing techniques by  

	 seeking	new	innovations	to	increase	production	efficiency,	including	constantly	adapting	to	the	consumer	groups	and	 

	 the	market	and	develop	a	variety	of	products,	adjusting	product	formats	to	meet	market	needs.

   E-Sport Business

   The Company determines to be a leadership in holding Digital Motorsport Competition in Thailand and in 

	 Southeast	Asia	(SEA)	in	both	online	and	offline	formats.	By	focusing	on	developing	style	and	technique	in	holding	a 

	 competition	to	be	interesting	and	meet	the	standards	that	certified	by	the	Royal	Automobile	Association	of	Thailand	 

	 (RAOT)	and	the	International	Automobile	Federation	(FIA)	in	order	to	increase	the	customer’s	confidence	that	will	 

  receive a service as quality and world-class standards.

   Power Plant Business

   The Company determines to be a leadership in holding Digital Motorsport Competition in Thailand and in 

	 Southeast	Asia	(SEA)	in	both	online	and	offline	formats.	By	focusing	on	developing	style	and	technique	in	holding	a	 

	 competition	to	be	interesting	and	meet	the	standards	that	certified	by	the	Royal	Automobile	Association	of	Thailand	 

	 (RAOT)	and	the	International	Automobile	Federation	(FIA)	in	order	to	increase	the	customer’s	confidence	that	will	 

 receive a service as quality and world-class standards.
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 1.1.2 Major changes and developments

	 2016	 •		 The	Company’s	website	named	www.grandprix.co.th	was	launched	with	the	aim	to	be	a	major	automotive	 

    content provider.

 2017 •  The Company sold up 100 million shares in its initial public offering (IPO) at 3.5 Baht per share.

 2018 •  The Company purchased RMGT 1050ST-5 + LED UV printer to replace the old printer to enhance printing  

	 	 	 	 business	efficiency.

   •  Grand Prix International (Myanmar) Limited was established in Myanmar to support the organization of the  

    1st Yangon International Motor Show in Myanmar. 

   •  Grand Prix International Public Co., Ltd and YDM (Thailand) Co., Ltd corporate in the digital development  

 2019 January 

   • The Company organized the 1st Yangon International Motor Show in Myanmar in 2019 from 23-27 January  

    2019 which was attended by 20,000 visitors and 121 vehicles exhibited in the fair could be sold. Six 

    automobile companies participated in this event.    

   March 

	 	 	 •	 The	Company	 organized	 eRacing	 Sport	 by	 hosting	 the	 first	 virtual	 racing	 game	Gran	Turismo	Sport 

    (GT Sport) through online platform in 2019; however, this game had been held four times in Bangkok 

    International Motor Show 2019 from March – April 2019. The second event was held in Khon Kaen Province  

    in July 2019, the 3rd event was held in Chiang Mai Province in October 2019, and the fourth event was held  

	 	 	 	 in	Bangkok	 in	December	 2019.	This	 competition	was	 certified	by	 the	Royal	Automobile	Association	of	 

    Thailand under Royal Patronage.

   November

   •  The Company acquired the stocks of King of Auto Products Company Limited, which operated used car and  

    new car exhibition under the event “Fast Auto Show”. In this regard, 15 percent of the registered shares were  

    acquired for the purpose of partnering with the small automobile trade organizer and expanding business  

    opportunity in the future. 

   • A new company was established with the collaboration between Grand Prix International Public Company  

    Limited and YDM (Thailand) Company Limited to expand digital media business and increase data storage  

    channels through “Car Buddy by GPI” which is the application for searching auto shops or service centers  

    according to the types of maintenance and car brands.

 2020 January

   • The Company held Yangon International Motor Show in Myanmar for the second time from 21-23 January  

    2020 with a total of 21,596 visitors and 15 automobile companies participating and 272 cars were sold in 

    the event.

   March

   • The Company has announced the postponement of the 41st Bangkok International Motor Show twice in 

	 	 	 	 a	row	due	to	the	epidemic	of	COVID	19.	The	first	time	was	postponed	from	the	original	25	March	-	2	April	 

    2020 to 22 April - 3 May 2020 and postponed again. The second time was postponed to 15 -26 July 2020 by  

    using measures to prevent and control the epidemic of COVID-19 before entering the event and at the event.
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   • The Company has initiated e-sports competition under the name GP e-Racing which is an online game and  

    is broadcasted in various online media which had a 300% increased in visitors when compared to the previous  

    year by supported by lockdown measures from the COVID-19 epidemic, resulting in a continuous increase  

    in visitors and many automotive customers interested to become a sponsor for holding games competition  

    continuously until the end of the year. You can follow the details of the competition program for the whole  

    year through Opportunity Day in Q3/2020.   

   April

   •  The Company was approved by the Board of Directors Meeting No. 6/2020, held on 31 March 2020 that  

    approved the Company to invest in ordinary shares of True Energy Company Limited (“True Energy ”) of  

    700,000 shares or accounting 25.45% of True energy’s total issued and sold shares, resulting in True Energy  

    became an associate of the Company.

   November

	 	 	 •	 Held	Thailand	E-Project	2020	competition	which	a	clean	energy	motorsport	competition	under	certification	 

    of the Royal Automobile Association of Thailand (RAOT) to campaign using of electric cars to reduce severe  

    pollution problems in Thailand and around the world, consist of the competition of E-Kart (electric karts),  

    e-Racing (Simulator game), and E-Auto Khana (electric cars), with a focus on reducing consumption oil  

    energy, supporting the use of electricity which is clean and renewable energy. By this year is the second  

	 	 	 	 consecutive	 year	 of	 the	 competition	 by	 holding	 an	 official	 competition	 press	 conference	 at	 the	Royal 

    Automobile Association of Thailand on 26 October 2020.

 2021 January

   • According from the Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2021, January 20, 2021. Resolved to approve the  

	 	 	 	 Company	to	provide	financial	assistance	to	True	Energy	Company	Limited,	an	associate	of	the	company	is	a	 

	 	 	 	 fixed	term	loan	in	Thai	Baht	with	a	credit	line	of	not	more	than	30,000,000	THB,	at	a	rate	of	6%	per	annum	 

    of the loan drawn down. The main reason is that True Energy Company Limited needs additional funds to  

    test the combustion engine in the factory.

   October

   • According from the Board of Directors Meeting No. 6/2021, September 28, 2021. Resolved to approve to  

    increase of the registered capital True Energy Company Limited, an associated company of the Company,  

    amounting to 56,393,000 THB. The company has subscribed to a total of 62,500 newly issued ordinary shares  

    of True Energy, amounting to 6,392,625 THB. In addition, True Energy issued new shares as preferred shares  

    to new investors for 148,700 shares at a subscription price of 336.25 THB per share, representing a total 

    investment of 50,000,375 THB, with the company’s shareholding ratio changed from 25.45% to 25.75%

   December

   • The company has reduced the staff structure in the Printing Department to better suit the situation and 

    direction of the publishing industry. It is also included in the main plan of restructuring the overall 

    organizational structure to increase the proportion of employees in the business sector in new industries in  

    the future.
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 1.1.3 Company Profile 

 Company Name Grand Prix International Public Company Limited

 Address 4/299 Moo 5, Soi Ladplakhao 66, Ladplakhao Rd., Anusawaree, 

   Bangkhen Bangkok

 Type of Business  Media & Publishing

 Company registration No. 0107557000322

 Authorized Capital 300,000,000 THB 

 Paid-up Capital 300,000,000 THB

 Paid-up Stock 600,000,000 shares

 Type of Equity  Common Stock

 Par Value 0.5 THB/share

 Telephone / Fax 0-2522-1731-8 / 0-2971-7342

 Home Page https://investor.grandprix.co.th/en
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Annual Financial Statement

2019

Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht% % %

2020 2021

1. Total Revenue from Exhibition &  
 Marketing Event Business 617.53 617.5384.15 84.15 421.07 83.35

49.92 49.926.80  6.80 38.02 7.53

51.88

-

51.88

-

7.07

-

7.07

-

25.21

13.23

4.99

2.62

719.33 719.3398.02 98.02 497.54 98.48

14.56

733.89

14.56

733.89

1.98

100.00

1.98

100.00

7.67

505.21

1.52

100.00

2. Total Revenue from Online &
 Publishing Business 

3. Total Revenue from Printing Business

Total Sales & Service Revenue

Total Revenue

Other Revenue

Revenue Contribution of 31 December 2021

84% 8% 6%
Exhibition & Marketing 

Event
Online & Publishing Printing

1.2 Nature of Business Operation
1.2.1 Revenue Structure

4. Other Business
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1.2.2 Products and services

The company operates in 3 business segments: 

 1. Exhibition and event organizing business

 The important exhibitions organized by the company are the Bangkok International Motor Show and the Bangkok Used 

Car	Show.	The	Company	organized	the	first	Yangon	International	Motor	show	in	Myanmar	in	2019.	And	the	events	include	

(1) the company’s activities such as motorsport racing, quarter-mile racing, off-road car racing, and motorcycle racing (2) 

activities upon customers’ requirement, such as Automotive testing, Caravan rally, and Safe driving exercise. And eRacing 

Sport in which the Company arranged virtual racing games Gran Turismo Sport (GT Sport) through online platform in 2019.

 2.  Print and new media business

 GPI is a publisher and distributor of auto-related print media, such as Grand Prix, Motorcycle, XO Autosport magazine, 

and YuadYan newspaper, as well as the lifestyle magazine, Garage Life. Currently, the Company is developing digital media 

by collaborating with YDM (Thailand) Company Limited in development of “Car Buddy by GPI” application to expand online 

business to meet consumer needs in the changing media market.

 3. Printing business

 The company provides integrated printing services to enterprise customers in all industries such as fashion, textile, food, 

real estate, tourism, automobile industries, government, direct sale, etc. Also, new business lines are of the Company’s focus, 

including food and consumer products.

1.2.3 Competitive Conditions

 Exhibition and Event Organizing

 The automotive exhibition industry is considered to be competitive in the middle level. At present, in Thailand, there 

is only one automotive exhibition organizer behind Grand Prix International Public Company Limited. However, business 

competition in the event industry is now facing challenges and is changing at an accelerated rate with the incident of COVID-19 

as a catalyst for the contraction of event activities. And the adoption of more online events (Virtual Events) in many places to 

adapt to the changes that occur. However, the company think of the event as a hybrid event (Hybrid Event), that is, an event 

that has been deployed online will consider to be an uptrend. As cars and motorcycles are tangible products, consumers still 

need a tactile and visual experience primarily to make a proper purchase decision. Unlike e-sport events, where products are 

presented primarily through visualization and are intangible products, they are mainly presented via online channel (Virtual 

Events). Our company still seeing the exciting growth of small events is a gathering of people who have the similar interest in 

a	specific	product.	Which	can	be	considered	an	interesting	growth	area.

 Print and Digital Media

 The online media industry is one of the most competitive industries among other. Due to the low level to entry and the 

industry has high growth rate. Thus, competitors are keep coming all the time.

 Printing

	 The	publishing	 sector	 has	 seen	 a	 lot	 of	 challenge	 since	 the	 arrival	 of	 the	 internet	 era,	 resulting	 in	 the	majority	 of	 

customers shifting their advertising spending to more online media. However, at present the competition in the print media 

continues to exist. Although the industry growth direction is in downtrend. Most of producer nowadays are receiving digital 

packaging order as the boom of e-commerce.
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1.2.4 Industry Trend

 Automotive Industry Trend

 The condition of the automotive industry in Thailand for the year 2021 has the total domestic car sales of 759,119 units, 

while the total domestic car sales in 2020 stood at 792,146 units, a decrease of 4.17%, believing that purchasing power has no 

clear signs of recovery. Due to the ongoing outbreak and mutation of the COVID-19 virus in the country, coupled with the 

expectation that some customers want to wait for electric vehicles that will be gradually launched as well as the decline in the 

price of EVs, both from government support measures and the cost of producing electric cars from automakers, takes time to 

achieve economies of scale, so that the price of electric vehicles can compete with those of the saber engine group. As for the 

car export, in 2021, Thailand had a total of 959,194 cars (CBU) exports, while the total exports in 2020 were 735,842 units, an 

increase of 30.35%, with an export value of 561,147.48 million baht, an increase of 36.56%

 Media Trend

 As for the media industry, the three-quarter advertising were valued at 55,252 million baht, growing 2.1% compared to 

the same period of 2020, mainly due to the loosened of lockdown measures that were less strict than previous year. In the 

three-quarters	of	2021,	there	were	only	TV	and	online	media.	Which	still	has	growth	valued	at	27,618	million	baht,	a	growth	

of 3% and 17,524 million baht, a growth of 15%, respectively, from the trend of consumers of all ages who have access to the 

Internet and consume more at online media. Other medias still in down trend such as printing, radio, cinema and out-of-home. 

In 2022, the industries that are expected to spend the most will come from the main groups as follows: 1. Automotive, with the 

main products being electric vehicles (EV) from the government’s support policy. Causing car company to start launching more 

EV cars, especially car maker from China. Resulting in the awakening of various carmakers that have to come out to create 

campaign to display their leadership in automotive market in the near future. 2. Business that are involve with the New Normal 

era such as delivery businesses, streaming platform, E-commerce platform etc. 3. Personal loan business 4. Health and beauty 

category 5. Travel and leisure within the country.

 Printing Trend

 In terms of the publishing industry revenue from print media advertising has continued to decline. The remaining  

advertising budget received by print media is approximately 277 million baht, mainly due to the main customer groups who 

have turned to online media, causing the advertising spending on online media to continue to grow. As a result, brands and 

services	must	continually	adjust	and	move	their	money	to	market	on	online	platforms.	However,	the	market	still	has	demand	

for packaging. which has grown in parallel with the online trading business (E-commerce).
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Item

Trademark

Property Value*
(Million Baht)

Ownership

Event Title

Land

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Building and Building Improvements

Furniture 

Machines 

Equipment

Office	Equipment

Vehicles

Assets under Installation and
Construction

    Total

Owned

Leased

Owned

Leased

Owned

  Owned

 Owned

Owned

  Owned

 Owned

Bangkok International Motor Show

Bangkok Used Car Show

40.56

25.86

13.17

15.34

1.10

  33.52

 6.68

5.34

  18.74

 42.93

203.24

1.2.5 Business Assets

	 Important	characteristics	of	the	main	fixed	assets	used	by	the	Company	in	its	business	as	of	December	31,	2021

Intangible Assets

 Intangible assets as of December 31, 2021 equal to 10.21 million THB. Intangible assets consist of computer programs 

and programs during installation, etc.

 In the company’s exhibition business, the company has created a symbol for the Bangkok International Motor Show, 

which has already registered the trademark with the Ministry of Commerce and is in the process of applying for trademark 

registration for the Bangkok Used Car Show. It is expected to be able to register the trademark for the said event within 2021. 

The company’s trademarks are as follows:
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Insurer

Insurance company

Protection period

Protection

Sum assured

Insured property

Property location

Assured

Beneficiary

Grand Prix International PLC

Bangkok Insurance PLC

28 April 2020 to 28 April 2023

Property damage including additional dangers and special conditions

27,445,289 THB

Building (excluding foundation) including building improvements,  
sub-buildings, fences, walls and gates

69 Moo 2 Bung San, Ongkharak, Nakhon Nayok26120

Grand Prix International PLC

Grand Prix International PLC

Business insurance and property insurance used in business operations

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has insured against property risks which can be summarized as follows:

 1. Insurance number 720-01112-1896
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Insurer

Insurance company

Protection period

Protection

Sum assured

Insured property

Property location

Assured

Beneficiary

Grand Prix International PLC

AXA Insurance PLC

1 July 2020 to 1 July 2021

oss	or	damage	to	insured	property	due	to	fire,	lightning,	explosion,	windstorm,	
fire	or	explosion	caused	by	natural	heat	danger	from	smoldering	Earthquake	
Disaster, Aircraft Disaster, Vehicle Disaster Disasters due to water, hail, smoke, 
wildfires,	riots	and	strikes	Threats	from	acts	of	vandalism	and	malicious	intent,	
theft, gang robbery, robbery and theft that show signs of damage to the insured 
territory. Including accidents caused by external factors and it happened suddenly 
unexpectedly	which	is	not	specified	in	the	statement	of	the	policy	(AXA	FORM)

190.00 Million THB

 • Buildings and structures. All buildings (including foundations) 
  including food improvements various permanent structures and include  
	 	 electrical,	plumbing,	telephone,	air-conditioning	and	office	equipment
	 •	 Furniture	including	decorations,	fixtures	and	appliances.
 • Raw material stock
 • Stock
 • Vehicle
 • Printing machines and equipment.
 • Other assets within the responsibility of all insured whether it’s the 
  owner, rent, lease, or lease. 

4/299, 4/133, 4/137, 4/409 moo 5 Soi Ladplakhao 66, Ladplakhao Rd.,  
Anusawaree, Bangkhen Bangkok

Grand Prix International PLC

Grand Prix International PLC 
Bangkok	Bank	PLC	(Ladprao	Business	Office)	
(Because it is a building that the company mortgaged with Bangkok Bank  
Bangkok	Bank	is	therefore	the	beneficiary	only	for	the	amount	of	the	amount	
that	the	company	has	affixed	to	the	mortgage.	for	excess	benefits	the	bank	will	
return it to the company)

 2. Insurance number 2020-P1413728-SMG
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1.3 Shareholder Structure of the Group
1.3.1 Company’s shareholding structure

GPI Myanmar Company Limited 100% 49%

25.75%

Automatrix Solutions Company 
Limited 

True Energy Compa y Limited 

Subsidiary Company Associated Company

Subsidiary and Associated Company Information

Subsidiary company

Company Name  GPI Myanmar Company Limited

Address	 	 	 GEMS	4#03	3rd	floor,	GEMS	garden	condominium,

    Thazin Street, Hlaing Township, Yangon, Myanmar

Type of Business Event Organization in Myanmar

Authorized Capital 50,000 USD

Paid-up Capital 50,000 USD

Number of Share held by the Company 50,000 USD

Percentage Equity Stake 100%

Associated Company

Company Name Automatrix Solutions Company Limited

Address   139/26 Soi Ladprao 53 (Chockchai 4), Saphansong, 

	 	 	 	 Wang	Thonglang,	Bangkok

Type of Business central market for trading products or services, by using electronic  

    media via the Internet network.

Authorized Capital 4,000,000 THB

Percentage Equity Stake 49%
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Company Name True Energy Company Limited

Address   109 Moo 10 Lampaya, Banglen, Nakhon Pathom

Type of Business Power Plant Business

Authorized Capital 257,000,000 THB

Percentage Equity Stake 25.75%

1.3.2 Shareholders

	 As	of	the	book-closing	date	on	Fabruary	11,	2022,	of	the	total	number	of	shareholders	of	2,692,	the	number	of	major	

shareholders accounts for 76.12%, while that of minor shareholders accounts for 23.88%

 A list of GPI’s top 10 shareholders is as follow:

Source : The Thailand Securities Depository Co.,Ltd.

Name of shareholders Number of shares
Proportion of 
hareholdingNo.

Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow

Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow

Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow

Mr. Apisit Phanthapruek

Mr.	Sutjapot	Chaiwongkaew

Mr. Kornphong Akraputthisakun

Ms. Piyanut Jamsiriprom

Mrs.	Ruchiroj	Eamlumnow

Mr. Jaturont Komolmis

Mr.Virul Parivudhiphongs

162,283,935

77,950,250

75,560,050

26,730,000

18,193,100

14,788,400

13,127,925

12,542,100

11,070,200

8,430,000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

27.05

12.99

12.59

4.46

3.03

2.47

2.19

2.09

1.85

1.41

1.4 Amount of registered and paid-up capital
 The company has registered capital all of which are ordinary shares of 600,000,000 shares with a par value of 0.5 THB 

per share, a total value of 300,000,000 THB, all of which are issued and paid-up ordinary shares.

1.5 Issuance of other securities
 None
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2020 20212019

Annual dividend rate per share (THB)
 
Total dividend (million THB)

Dividend	rate	per	net	profit	(%)

0.08

48.00

117.45

0.06

36.00

92.58

0.18

108.00

94.86

1.6 Dividend Policy
	 Company’s	dividend	policy	is	to	pay	no	less	than	50%	of	net	profit	from	the	company’s	separate	financial	statement,	

after corporate income tax and legal reserves.  However, a dividend determined by the board of directors is based upon the 

company’s future investment plans, liquidity, operation plans as well as binding contracts the company is involving.  

	 The	final	dividend	is	approved	by	Company’s	shareholders	at	 the	annual	general	meeting,	unless	 it	 is	an	 interim 

dividend, it can be approved by the board of directors and dividend payment information will be reported to shareholders at 

the next annual general meeting.

 Dividend payment information

2. Risk Management
 Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee has assessed and reviewed key risk factors that may affect 

business operations by supervising, including determining guidelines for improvement and monitoring. To ensure that the 

Company has an adequate and appropriate risk management system. According to the principles of good corporate governance 

to prevent and reduce the impact that may occur in the future

 The Company has a total of 8 risk factors, categorized as 6 items of Exhibition and event organizing business, and 2 

items of risk from operating in online publishing business, details as follows:

1. Exhibition and event organizing business

1.1 Rivalry and competitive risk

 GPI is a leading exhibition and event organizer, especially in automotive area. However, there have been new 

organizers entering the market in recent years to operate organizing similar events, or other forms of events, such as events 

in	 the	mall,	or	 in	major	cities	such	as	Songkhla,	Khon-Kaen	and	Nakhon-Ratchasima.	Moreover,	 the	 increase	of	new	 

competitors in event organizing business can increase the level of rivalry between competitors and might negatively impact on the 

company’s	performance	and	financial	position.		

 In any case, the Bangkok International Motor Show organized by the company is considered to be the biggest and 

the most attractive automotive exhibition in Thailand. Our motor show is also accredited by Organisation Internationale des 

Construceurs d’Automobiles (OICA), an international association that provides international accreditation to motor shows across 

the globe and accredits only one motor show in each country. The company has competitive advantages compared to other 

competitors. Our exhibition is a big exhibition in Asia, covering 170,000 square meter and attended by more than 1,600,000 
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visitors. Regarded as a high important exhibition, the world-leading automakers attend to our exhibition. Moreover, the 

company	is	specialized	in	exhibition	and	event	organizing,	especially	in	automotive	industry.	We	have	experience	in	motor	

show events for 40 years and great relationship with media, as well as we are an automotive content producer and distributor. 

These advantages help us promote the company’s exhibitions and events. 

1.2 Risk from economic slowdown, natural disasters, government policy changes and political uncertainty

 The slowdown in economy, caused by global and domestic political, government policy changes, especially 

auto-	related	policies	(for	example,	Eastern	Economic	Corridor:	EEC,	ECO	Car	Project	Phase	2,	and	Promotion	of	Electric	Vehicle),	 

political uncertainty (for example, political demonstrations), has affected decision making of entrepreneurs whether to participate 

exhibitions or to hire the company to help them organize an event. Number of participants indicates the success of an event. 

Risk	factors,	such	as	severe	flood,	political	demonstration,	leading	to	event	cancellation	or	dropping	number	of	participants,	

increase the risk of loss of substantial revenue and business opportunity.   

 However, we do not see these factors impacting significantly on the Bangkok International Motor Show. 

Car manufacturers and entrepreneurs remain participation and attending the event increases every year. Moreover, the 

company’s additional strategy relates to increasing new customer base and scheduling events all through a year. 

The Company has the policy to increase the customer base and acquire the shares of a small automobile trade organizing company 

and organize related events through the year to promote the business as the leading trade fair organizer and obtain more income.

1.3 Risk from change in location of motor show events  

 The suitable place to hold the exhibition is one of the factors that brings company’s success. The Bangkok International 

Motor Show has been held at the IMPACT Arena Exhibition and Convention for years due to its huge crowd carrying capacity, 

and it is the biggest exhibition hall in Thailand. However, the location for holding a big exhibition, especially in Bangkok, still 

has some limitations. The Company cannot use the place as the exhibition venue as well as an increase in the space rental fee 

may affect the Company’s trade fair organization. 

 However, The IMPACT Arena has hosted the Bangkok International Motor Show, which has provided them large 

income	since	2009.	We	have	good	relationship	with	their	team.	Bangkok	International	Motor	Show	and	Bangkok	Used	Car	

Show organized by the Company are considered as internationally accepted events and make Thailand well-known in terms of 

automobile advancement and world-class innovations where the world-leading car brands ae exhibited. Also, it makes IMPACT 

Muang	Thong	Thani	well-known	to	the	public.	Consequently,	we	are	confident	that	we	can	continue	to	hold	the	motor	show	

events at this venue.

1.4 Risk from COVID-19

 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021, safety and uncertainty factors including announcements from the government, 

resulting in the company had to postpone the Bangkok International Motor Show from March - April to July by the company 

has changed the event style to be New Normal, which received Amazing Thailand Safety & Health Administration (SHA) from 

Tourism Authority of Thailand (TAT), Ministry of Tourism and Sports, Department of Disease Control, Department of Health, 

Department of Health Service Support, Ministry of Public Health, etc. In addition, the company has simulated the atmosphere 

of Virtual Motor Show to put more options for those who wish to buy cars to deal with such situations.  
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 However, the company is committed to dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic continuously by closely monitoring the 

pandemic situation, government policies, and preventive measures, also continuously coordinated with our stakeholders, both 

public and private sectors to respond to the expectations and satisfaction of all stakeholders by taking into account of safety 

factor	as	a	priority.	In	addition,	the	company	is	committed	to	maintaining	financial	stability,	supply	chain	management,	and	

the expectation of stakeholders for driving the business further.

 In order to reduce the impact of COVID-19 on the operating results and maintain the liquidity of the business, the 

company	issued	measures	to	reduce	expenses	such	as	compensation	budget	cuts,	organizational	restructuring,	adjust	style,	and	

work	processes	including	requesting	a	credit	line	from	the	financial	institution	in	case	of	emergency.	On	the	part	of	employees,	

the company issued a work-from-home policy and purchase COVID-19 insurance for employees, also provide a screening 

point, wear a mask, wash hands frequently, keep distance, clean touch points frequently, and publicize to educate employees 

in self-defence to ensure that the workplace is safe.

1.5 Risk from revenue volatility in exhibition organizing business during a financial year

	 The	company’s	major	revenue	is	the	revenue	from	organizing	the	Bangkok	International	Motor	Show,	which	is	held	

annually	in	the	period	of	March	to	April	so	we	earn	more	revenue	in	this	period.		We	seem	to	be	facing	unpredictability	in	

quarterly	revenue.	The	revenue	and	cost	recognition	of	the	Bangkok	International	Motor	Show	in	quarter	1	and	2	is	subject	to	

the number of the days of exhibition each quarter, each year

 However, we plan to increasingly organize exhibitions in other time of year to increase revenue from exhibition 

organizing business.  The Company has acquired the shares of used car and new trade fair organizing company, created 

partnership with small automobile trade fair organizer, and expanded the future business. In addition, the Company obtains 

income from print media and online media which can access to more consumers and targets. Moreover, printing business helps 

reduce	the	fluctuation	of	the	Company’s	revenue	in	each	quarter	and	become	extra	income	of	the	Company.

1.6 Risk from media technological change

 Over recent years, media technology has been developed for exhibition presentation and marketing promotion, for 

example, multi-media technology, light and sound technology and special technics, to attract visitors. If the Company fails to 

develop or does not have technological readiness to accommodate the rapidly changing world, its reliability, operating results, 

financial	positions,	and	business	opportunities	may	be	adversely	affected.

	 We	realize	the	importance	of	media	technology	so	we	always	deliver	our	executives,	employees	and	contractors	to	

international exhibitions such as Frankfurt Motor Show, Paris Motor Show and Tokyo Motor Show. The Company should 

adjust	itself	to	the	changing	technology	and	implement	it	in	improving	and	developing	trade	exhibition	models	to	attract	more	

visitors.

2 Online and Publishing

2.1 Risk from volatility of advertising market

	 The	major	revenue	of	the	print	media	business	is	from	advertising	sales,	generally	subject	to	economic	situation.		During	

the economic slowdown, private sector is concordantly in decline. Public consumption tends to decrease, causing entrepreneurs 

to	adjust	their	advertising	expenses	more	carefully,	which	would	affect	the	company’s	performance	and	financial	position.	 
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 However, in order to mitigate the risk, we delivered our strategy emphasizing enhancing competitiveness capacity 

as we added more content in the magazines or website banners to serve requirement of customers (such as automakers,  

car maintenance and car accessories entrepreneurs) in marketing and publication.  In addition, we delivered a full-service of 

digital marketing from content producing, promoting to event marketing. Our company has experience in event management, 

which is a competitive advantage so we can provide both advertising services and event organizing services to customers at 

the same time, to increase the value of products and services for customers to receive value for money

2.2 Risk of competition in the Publishing business

 Nowadays, rivalry and competition in the printing business and new media business is determined to be high. However, 

the number of printing entrepreneurs has been decreasing due to the changes in consumer behavior, turning to online and social 

media. The entrepreneurs have to change the ways to present their advertisements, leading to the high competition in online 

media production. Moreover, the fast growing of modern technology and various communication channels allow businesses 

to create online media easily.  This factor might increase new competitors.

 However, having worked in print media industry for over 40 years we deliver to the target customers’ content that 

they really want.  Consequently, our automotive magazine is very popular in Thailand. Furthermore, the Company is closely  

following the change of printing technology and regularly develops the printing house for modern printing work with the quality 

that	satisfies	customers.	In	the	previous	year,	new	machines	were	purchased	and	installed	for	printing	work	to	accommodate	new	

lines	of	customers.	In	addition	to	magazine	printing,	we	can	accept	packaging	printing	jobs	which	seem	to	be	steadily	growing,	

which	positively	influences	our	competitiveness	in	printing	business.	Also,	we	have	developed	our	online	media	by	type	of	

content which is presented though many channels such as Facebook and YouTube. The presented content is in concordance 

with the magazine content to meet the changing consumer behavior and generate more income for the Company. 

3. Business Development for Sustainability
 The company is committed to conducting business with ethics. Under good corporate governance to create  

sustainable	growth	taking	into	account	the	impact	on	stakeholders,	society	and	environment.Which	the	company	believes	that	 

Sustainability-Based Business Operations. It is an important foundation that will help strengthen the organization to grow 

steadily. Therefore, guidelines for sustainable development have been established as follows:

3.1 Policy and Target of Sustainability Management
 The Company has established policies and goals for sustainability management as follows: 

 (1) Adhere to conducting business with fairness Responsible for all stakeholders

 (2) Value and respect human rights Treat customers, business partners, competitors and employees equally and fairly

 (3) Raise awareness and instilling awareness among directors, executives and employees at all levels to have social and  

  environmental responsibility.

 (4) Focus on directors, executives and employees at all levels Serves to promote, support and operate in accordance  

  with sustainable development guidelines until it becomes a culture.

3.1.1 Sustainability Strategy

 (1)  Development and supervision of human resources The Company will treat employees equally and fairly. Pay attention  
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  to occupational health and safety at work as well as continually improving the skills of employees.

 (2) Environmental, Social and Governance Risk Management The company will conduct business with responsibility.  

  Respect human rights strictly comply with applicable laws and regulations. There is risk management to reduce  

  environmental, social and governance impacts.

 (3) Conducting business under good governance principles The Company will adhere to the principles of good  

  governance and business ethics and communicate the Company’s business ethics to all groups of stakeholders,  

  including inside and outside the organization

3.2 Managing impact on stakeholders in the business value chain
3.2.1 Business value chain

 Company’s main business is the business of organizing trade shows and marketing promotion activities which can 

analyze the value chain of the business with related persons in the chain as follows:

Shareholders

Employee
Trading Partners

Communities

Mass Media

Customer

Consumer

Governance Offices
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Mass Media

Costomers

1. Get the information correctly fast to the event

2. Received a good welcome from the company.

1. Quality products and services with reasonable  

 prices.

2. Fair treatment equal non-discriminatory

3. Safe working environment

4. Quality and fast after-sales service.

1. Promote a good image for the organization

2. Build a good relationship with the media

3. Ignore false communication. misrepresent or  

 is against good morals

1. Deliver quality products and services meet the  

 requirements at a fair price

2. Operate with equality and fairness without  

 discrimination

3. Take care to have a good environment. and  

 safe to work

Communities 1. Build a good relationship between each other.

2. Good and safe environment

1. Promote and cooperate with community  

 activities

2. Listen to complaints about impacts on 

 communities and the environment. to develop  

 and improve

3.2.2 Business Value Chain Stakeholder Analysis

Stakeholders Major Concerns Sustainable Development Strategy

Trading Partners

Employee

1. Satisfaction in business cooperation

2. Fair returns meet the conditions

3. Fair treatment equal non-discriminatory

1.	Good	salary	and	benefits

2. Stability and career growth

3. Equitable treatment

4. The environment is good and the work is safe.

5. There is continuous development of  

 knowledge.

1. Ensuring compliance with the terms of the  

 contract and agreed commercial terms

2. Operate with equality and fairness without  

 discrimination

3. Not collecting or paying Any other dishonest  

	 benefits

4. Adhere to equality and honesty

1.	Human	resource	management	is	efficient	and	 

 fair

2. Fair and appropriate compensation system

3. Maintain a good environment and is safe to  

 work

4. Develop personnel to have knowledge and  

 ability
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Stakeholders Major Concerns Sustainable Development Strategy

Consumers

Shareholders

Government
Offices

1. Quality products and services with reasonable  

 prices.

2. Fair treatment equal non-discriminatory

3. Have good communication Politeness and  

 etiquette in coordinating

4. Be safe for yourself and your property

1) Requires return on investment.

2) Treat shareholders equally.

3) Accurate informarion disclosure.

1. Reliability in compliance with relevant laws

2.	Cooperation	in	various	projects

1. Deliver quality products and services at fair  

 prices.

2. Operate with equality and fairness without  

 discrimination

3. Establish service standards for those involved  

 to strictly follow

4. Establish standards of safety supervision

1)	Build	investor’s	confidence.

2) Generate stable and sustainable returns.

3) Disclose accurate, clear and timely information.

4. Channels for information that shareholders can  

 access information conveniently and quickly

1. Strictly comply with relevant laws.

2. Follow the anti-corruption guidelines set by  

 the company.

3.3 Sustainability in Environmental Dimension
3.3.1 Environmental policy and practice

 The company attaches importance to environmental stewardship. And operate the business without affecting the 

nvironment, the company therefore operates under the responsibility of the environment as follow 

 (1)  Operate the business with regard to the environment as the most important; and strictly comply with environmental  

  laws and regulations

 (2) The business operation does not affect or destroy the environment and resources of the communities surrounding 

  the company

 (3)  Encourage employees to use resources effectively reduce the use of water resources reduce electricity consumption  

  energy saving 

 (4) Encourage employees of the Company to have awareness and responsibility for the environment.

	 (5)		 Respond	quickly	and	efficiently	in	 the	event	of	an	incident	affecting	the	environment	due	to	 the	Company’s 

	 	 operations	by	fully	cooperating	with	government	officials	and	related	agencies

3.3.2 Environmental performance in 2021

 In 2021, the Company has undertaken environmental activities as follows:
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2020 67,381.03 THB

59,020.21 THB2021

 (2) Waste Management

	 The	company	has	a	campaign	to	organize	a	waste	separation	project.	By	separating	clear	plastic	water	bottles	Bring	to	

support	the	activities	of	the	project	“Separate	bottles,	help	doctors”	to	create	Personal	Protective	Equipment	(PPE)	for	medical	

personnel. The 18 of 600 ml. plastic bottles can be changed to 1 set of 20 washable PPE sets, in addition to recycling used 

plastics. Reused It can also reduce infectious waste from single-use PPE kits.

 (1) Water Management

	 The	company	created	a	project	to	reduce	water	use.	Encourage	employees	at	all	levels	in	the	company	to	use	water	

economically. In 2021, the company’s expenses from using water decreased from 2020 as follows:
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2020 4.09 Million THB

3.06 Million THB2021 

 (3) Energy Management

 The company focuses on energy management especially electric power. This is an important factor in the company’s 

operations. In 2021, the company started a campaign for employees to reduce the use of electricity. By turning off the air 

conditioning and lighting systems during the day. As a result, the Company’s expenses from using electricity decreased by 

approximately 1.03 million THB.

 In addition to the guidelines for saving electricity that the company has already prepared. The company has repaired the 

old building converted to energy-saving buildings which is scheduled to be completed in June 2022. If completed, the company 

expects	to	be	able	to	significantly	reduce	electricity	consumption.

3.4 Sustainable Management in the Social Dimension
3.4.1 Socia policy and practice

 (1) Fair Business Operation

	 The	Company	operates	the	business	with	transparency	and	accountability.	We	do	not	have	the	policy	to	acquire	any	

interest	by	employing	illegal	methods	such	as	falsification	of	business	information	to	win	over	the	competitors	whose	business	

is similar to the Company’s or seeking trade secret of the competitors by illegal or inappropriate means. In addition, we promote 

and raise awareness of our personnel at all levels to be responsible for the society and be careful with any action that may cause 

an	infringement	of	intellectual	property.	We	believe	that	that	fair	business	operation	will	give	us	the	following	benefits

	 •	 We	can	create	positive	image	among	customers	as	well	as	building	their	 trust	 in	the	quality	of	our	products	and	 

  services;

	 •	 We	will	be	financially	reliable;

 • Our employees will feel honored and proud of being part of the business. 

 

 Non-infringement of intellectual property or copyright

 The company placed importance on non-infringement of intellectual property or copyright by encouraging executives and 

employees to use the company’s resources and assets effectively to increase their working ability, using copyrighted products 

and services, do not support products or actions that violate intellectual property due to the company realizes the importance 

of information security either in the matter of attack from computer viruses or from third party. Including important data loss, 

therefore, the company has established a usage policy for the company’s information technology system without the installation 

of illegal programs or software, assign rights and monitor employees’ use of software to prevent infringement of copyright or 

unrelated software use. 

 

 (2)  Respecting Human Rights

 The company has policies to support and respect human rights, place on priority to basic human rights, promote and 

respect rights and freedoms through non-discrimination, promote equality without classifying by gender and class, not allow 
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child labor or illegal labor, all executives and employees must not take any action or promote a strict human rights violation. 

On the other hand, the company has to promote human rights knowledge and instill awareness for its employees to adhere and 

follow in order to use as a guideline for practice as follows:

 (2.1) Personal rights and freedoms

	 	 	 -		 The	company	will	keep	the	employees’	personal	information	confidential,	not	forward	or	delegate	personal	 

    information to unrelated parties.

   -  Disclosure or transfer personal information would be done when receiving consent from employees. 

   -  All employees can exercise their rights and freedoms without violating others.

 (2.2) Treating employees with equality.

   - The company should treat all employees equitably without discriminating on the basis of race, nationality,  

    language, religion, gender, age and education.

   - Employees must treat each other with respect, honor each other, and behave appropriately in accordance with  

    the company’s regulations and traditions without damaging the company’s image. 

   - The company allows employees the opportunity to show their talents to the fullest by determining suitable  

    compensation based on the company’s regulations and offers opportunities for employees to gain knowledge  

    from extra training both inside and outside the company.

   - Considering performance must be done correctly and fairly.

   - Employees should avoid expressing any opinions related to differences of physical and mental, race, nationality,  

	 	 	 	 language,	religion,	gender,	age,	education,	or	any	other	matter	that	may	lead	to	conflict	in	which	they	must	 

    honor and respect each other’s opinions.

   - The company shall monitor work environment without persecution or unfair actions.

 

 (3) Fair Labor Practices

 The company realized the importance of human resource development and fair labor practices which will help increase 

the value of business and to strengthen the competitiveness and sustainable growth of the company, therefore, the company 

has established policies and practices as follows: 

 (3.1)  Respecting the human rights of employees based on human rights and abide by labor laws.

 (3.2) Providing employment processes, employment terms, and considering performance under a fair performance  

   evaluation process. Including fair compensation determination, year-end bonus consideration, allowance payment  

   and overtime pay for all employees fairly. 

	 (3.3)	 Providing	welfare	in	various	aspects	for	employees	as	required	by	law	such	as	social	security	and	other	benefits	 

   besides the law requires.

 (3.4) Providing an annual medical examination to all levels of the company’s personnel by considering the risk factors  

   based on age, gender, and work environment of the individual.

 (3.5) Promote human resources development by organizing in-house training and send personnel to attend external  

   seminars/training on a regular basis to develop work ability.
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 (3.6) Implement for employees to perform their work safely and have good workplace hygiene by providing measures  

   to prevent accidents and strengthen employees to have safety awareness including training and promoting  

   employees to have good hygiene and always maintain a healthy and safe workplace.

 (3.7)  Allows employees to show their opinions or complaints about unfair practices or improper conduct in the company  

   included providing protection to employees who report such matters. 

3.4.2 Collaborative Community and Social Development

 The Company realizes the importance of responsibility towards the community and society. Therefore, we have the 

policy on social assistance and development as follows:

 (1)  The Company gives an opportunity to the community and related persons to express their opinions about possible  

  effects on the community as well as opinions and complaints against the Company’s operation. 

 (2) The Company collaborates in operating according to international standards or agreements executed to prevent or  

  reduce environmental effects.

 (3) The Company emphasizes prompt, effective response to any incidents which affect the community, society and  

  environment due to the Company’s business operation.

 (4)  The Company encourages employees to have awareness of community and social development.

 

 In 2021, the spread of COVID-19 has greatly affected the lives of people in society. In order to promote and help improve 

the quality of life of people affected by COVID-19, the Company has undertaken the following social activities:

 •  The company sends encouragement to Medical Professionals. To cope with the spread of the COVID-19 infectious 

  disease by contributing 200,000 baht to Busarakham Hospital on May 25, 2021

  For Busarakham Hospital prepared by the Ministry of Health according to government policy who want all infected  

  people to receive medical treatment to reduce severe symptoms and reduce mortality. Service started on May 14, 2021.
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 • The company gave food boxes to give encouragement to Medical Professionals at Samasmatsart Hospital on  

  May 31, 2021
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 •  The company gave rice boxes to give encouragement to Medical Professionals at Phranangklao Hospital on  

  June 2, 2021

 • The company donated 100,000 baht to support Thammasat University Hospital. Khlong Luang District Pathum Thani  

  Province on June 10, 2021 to cope with the new wave of COVID-19 epidemic.  
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4. Management Discussion and Analysis: MD&A
Business Overview
 Grand Prix International Public Company Limited (the “Company” or “GPI”) involves in exhibition and marketing 
event business and digital and publishing media related in automotive industry and printing business. The Company’s revenue 
is mainly from the exhibition and event organizer and public relation activity such as Bangkok International Motor Show, 
Bangkok Used Car Show, Yangon International Motor Show and Digital Motor Sport.

Economic Overview
 The result of the December 2021 Thai Industries Sentiment Index (TISI), were at 86.8, up from 85.4 in November. 
This	was	an	 increase	 for	 the	4th	month	 in	a	 row.	Resulting	 the	continual	 improvement	 in	 the	confidence	of	 industrial 
operators. The supporting factor was the recovery of domestic demand after the government loosened COVID-19’s measures. 
This	resulted	in	the	economic	activities	started	to	operate	as	usual	including	manufacturing,	trade	and	domestic	travel.	While	
the government’s economic stimulus measures helping to stimulate public spending especially during the new year festival. In 
term of exports, orders continued to increase in line with the gradual recovery of the global economy. Also, the depreciation of 
Thai	baht	will	directly	benefit	to	exporters	in	term	of	price	competitiveness.	However,	there	are	couple	negative	determinants	
from the unpredictable COVID-19 epidemic situation. Meanwhile, operators encounter with high operating costs from the 
increased of energy prices and raw material. Furthermore, the shortage of semiconductors and containers has not been resolved.
           As for the media industry, the three-quarter advertising were valued at 55,252 million baht, growing 2.1% compared 
to the same period of 2020, mainly due to the loosened of lockdown measures that were less strict than previous year. 
In	the	three-quarters	of	2021,	there	were	only	TV	and	online	media.	Which	still	has	growth	valued	at	27,618	million	baht,	
a growth of 3% and 17,524 million baht, a growth of 15%, respectively, from the trend of consumers of all ages who have 
access to the Internet and consume more at online media. Other medias still in down trend such as printing, radio, cinema 
and out-of-home. In 2022, the industries that are expected to spend the most will come from the main groups as follows:  
1.Automotive, with the main products being electric vehicles (EV) from the government’s support policy. Causing car company 
to start launching more EV cars, especially car maker from China. Resulting in the awakening of various carmakers that have 
to come out to create campaign to display their leadership in automotive market in the near future. 2. Business that are involve 
with the New Normal era such as delivery businesses, streaming platform, E-commerce platform etc. 3. Personal loan business 
4. Health and beauty category 5. Travel and leisure within the country.
 As for the domestic car market, the overall sales for the year 2021 equal to 759,119 units sold, a decrease of 4.17% 
compared to car sales in the same period of the year 2020 at 792,146 cars.
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2020

% Change
12MIncome Statement (Million Baht)

12 Month

2021

Revenue from Sales& Services

Gross	Profit

   Gross Profit Margin (%)

SG&A

Comprehensive income(loss) for the period

    Net profit margin (%)

509.41

209.66

41.16

168.78

36.95

7.25

(2.33)

(1.28)

1.07

(0.44)

(14.89)

(12.83)

497.54

206.98

41.60

168.03

31.45

6.32

Revenue from Sales & Service 
	 In	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021,	the	company	has	revenue	from	sales	and	 
service of THB 497.54 million, which was at the same level as the previous year. As a result of the COVID-19 epidemic  
situation that continues to affect certain of our customer groups and The company itself is still unable to operate the business 
as usual. The aforementioned event therefore affects the Company’s revenue.

Gross Profit (Loss)
	 In	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021,	the	Company	has	gross	profit	of	THB	206.98	
million, which decreased by 1.28 % YoY caused by the situation of the COVID-19 epidemic that still affecting our customers 
and the company.

Selling and Administration Expense (SG&A)
	 In	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021,	selling	and	administration	expense	of	THB	
168.03 million decreased by 0.44% YoY. The main reason is that the company has manage costs and expenses to be in line 
with the temporary decline of the income.

Comprehensive income (loss) for the period
	 The	Company	has	Comprehensive	income	(loss)	for	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	
2021	of	THB	31.45	million,	which	net	profit	margin	was	6.32%	to	total	revenue.

Performance summary
 Performance summary for Twelve-month Periods Ended 31 December, 2021 and 2020 as follow: 
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2020

% 
Change YoYBusiness

12 Month

2021

1. Exhibition and Event Organizing

2. Print and Digital media

3. Printing

4. Other

Revenue from Sales and Service

437.84

42.99

28.59

-

509.41

(3.83)

(11.56)

(11.82)

100.00

(2.33)

421.07

38.02

25.21

13.23

497.54

 The Company has its revenue into each of business units as follows:

Exhibitions and Event Organizing Business
	 In	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021,	revenue	from	sales	and	service	of	exhibitions	
and events slightly decreased by 3.83% compared to the same period last year. This is mainly due to lockdown measures and 
the continuous of COVID-19. As a result, various of our events being held second half did not go as a plan.

Print and Digital media Business
	 In	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021,	revenue	from	sales	and	service	of	Printing	
and New media business decreased by 11.56% YoY, This is mainly due to the reduction in the public relations budget of the 
customers. And the rising of competitors in the market therefore affecting company’s income. 

Printing Business
	 In	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021,	revenue	from	sale	and	services	of	printing	
also decreased by 11.82% YoY, These was due to the ongoing outbreak of coronavirus. Affects particular group of customers 
cut out their public relations budget.

Other
	 In	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021,	revenue	from	other	business	segment	was	
THB	13.23	million,	which	is	the	revenue	generate	from	display	and	racing	car	modification	service	and	also	including	buying	
and selling collectible car.
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Financial Structure

Year
2020

% 
Change YoY

Quarter 4
2021Financial Structure (Million Bath)

Total Asset

Total Liabilities

Total Shareholder’s Equity

814.07

65.80

748.27

(3.09)

(13.13)

(2.21)

788.88

57.16

731.72

Asset
	 The	Asset	in	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,2021	was	THB	788.88	million,	which	
decreased	by	3.09%	compare	to	the	previous	year	the	main	reason	is	the	decreased	in	savings	and	fixed	deposit.

Liabilities
	 Liabilities	in	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021	was	THB	57.16	million,	which	
decreased by 13.13% compared to year 2020. The main reason is from decreased of long-term liability.

Shareholder’s Equity
	 Shareholder’s	equity	in	the	year	consolidated	financial	statement	ended	on	December	31,	2021	was	THB	731.72	million,	
which decreased by 2.21%. This is mainly from the decreased in retained earnings.
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Million THBCash Flow Statement ended 31 December 2021

Net	Cash	flows	from	operating	activities

Net	Cash	flows	used	in	investing	activities

Net	cash	flows	used	in	financing	activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

42.15

(22.68)

(55.96)

(36.45)

	 •	 Net	cash	inflows	from	operating	activities	came	mainly	from	the	inventories	non-current	asset	and	current	payable.
	 •	 Net	cash	outflows	from	investing	activities	were	mainly	from	property	plant	and	equipment	acquisition	and	investment	 
  in associate. 
	 •	 Net	cash	outflows	from	financing	activities	were	mainly	dividend	paid	out	and	 liabilities	under	finance	 lease	 
  agreements.

Cash Flows Analysis
 As at 31 December 2021, the Company reported Cash and Cash Equivalent of Baht 14.92 million, decreased by Baht 
35.45 million from the end of 2020.
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Significant Financial Ratios

2020
Financial Ratios

12 M

2021

Gross	Profit	Margin	(%)

EBITDA Margin (%)

Return on Equity (%)

Return on Asset (%)

Current Ratio (Times)

Debt to Equity (Times)

Earnings per Share (Baht)

Book value per Share (Times)

41.16

8.88

4.47

5.09

8.27

0.09

0.06

0.97

41.60

7.98

4.16

4.99

7.20

0.08

0.05

1.61
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5. General and Other Important Information
5.1 Financial Highlight

2020

2563

2563

2021

2564

2564

2019

2562

2562

Statement of Income (Unit : Million)                              

Statement of Financial Position 
(Unit : Million)      

Financial Ratio (Unit : Million)

Sales & Services Revenue

Gross	Profit

Net	Profit

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Total Asset

Gross	Profit	Margin	(%)

Net	Profit	Margin	(%)

ROE (%)

Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

ROA (%)

D/E (Times)

Total Equity

Authorized share capital

Paid-up share capital

509.41

209.66

34.09

323.48

490.59

814.07

39.13

26.67

65.80

748.27

300.00

300.00

41.16

6.69

4.47

5.05

0.09

497.54

206.98

30.79

223.00

565.88

788.88

30.94

26.22

57.16

731.72

300.00

300.00

41.60

6.19

4.16

4.99

0.08

719.33

288.65

102.72

555.76

421.06

976.81

174.52

24.98

199.50

777.31

300.00

300.00

40.13

14.28

13.16

13.24

0.26
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5.2 Referance

 Registration Service Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. 
  The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, 93 Ratchadaphisek Road, Dindaeng,  
  Bangkok 10400
  Tel.: 0-2009-9999
 Auditor D I A International Audit Co., Ltd. 
  316/32 Sukhumvit 22 Road (Soi Sainumthip) Klongtoey Bangkok 10110 
  Tel.: 0-2259-5300-2
  Fax: 0-2260-1553, 0-2259-8959

5.3 Other Important Information   None

5.4 Legal Disputes None
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Part 2 Corporate Governance
6. Corporate Governance Policy
 The Board of Directors of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited realizes that the good corporate governance 

is an important basis of corporate sustainability and a significant factor of business operation to ensure effectiveness,  

transparency and responsibility towards all stakeholders. For the past years, the Company strives for continuous development 

and promotion of good corporate governance by conducting business while considering the risk and responsibility towards all 

stakeholders together with the support of economically, socially and environmentally sustainable development.

Corporate Governance Policy
 Good corporate governance is the responsibility of directors, executives and employees at all levels to ensure that they 

perform their duties with responsibility, prudence and integrity under business code of conduct for effective business operation, 

competitiveness and good operating results. All groups of shareholders and stakeholders shall be treated fairly and equally. 

Internal data shall not be used for benefit of self and other. Information shall be disclosed transparently. Human rights shall not 

be violated. Our personnel shall have the neutral political stance and adhere to anti-corruption policy to support the management 

that focuses on sustainable growth.

Objectives of Good Corporate Governance 

 (1)  Establish transparent management system with clear standards which fosters the Company’s competitiveness and  

  operating results by taking account of long-term impacts;

 (2)  Build reliability in ethical business operation, respect the rights of and be responsible towards all groups of 

   domestic and international shareholders and stakeholders to enhance competitiveness;

 (3) Create performance measuring tools which can check and improve performance for better efficiency and 

  adjustability under the changing factors;

 (4) Indicate the scope of responsibility of the committee and executives who have interest and all related parties so that  

  the management can exercise their power within the clear scope and prevent possible conflict of interest;

 (5) Ensure that the performance is in compliance with the law, rules and regulations related to the Company’s regulations  

  and the law on securities and exchange, rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC);

 (6) Establish the system of effective use of resources by efficiently using them while taking account of social benefit  

  and practically reduce negative impacts on the environment.

Good Corporate Governance
Principles of good corporate governance of the Company can be divided into 8 principles as follows:

Principle 1
Awareness of the Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors as the 
Corporate Leader Creating Sustainable Value to the Company
 The Board of Directors is the key part of good corporate governance consisting of experts in various fields who have 
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expertise, experience, leadership, vision, and independency to make decisions. They shall dedicate their time to perform their 

duties with responsibility, prudence and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company. 

1.1 Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
  Ensure good corporate management

 (1) Determine clear and appropriate objectives and goals and review them at least once a year;

 (2) Determine the policies, strategies, plan, and annual budgets, appropriately manage important resources with 

  the management and supervise the management of directors and executives to ensure that they perform the 

  assignments effectively;

 (3)  Determine policy on financial management and ensure that the Company has appropriate financial liquidity, ability  

  to pay debts and has mechanism to deal with financial problems;

 (4)  Determine follow-up, performance assessment and report on performance on regular basis for the most effective  

  and efficient results.

  Create Sustainable Value to the Company 

 (1) Determine written business code of conduct in which the Board of Directors shall be the role model to raise  

  employees’ awareness of business ethics; 

 (2) Determine written policy on good corporate governance in compliance with the law on securities and exchange,  

  rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand by  

  assigning the Company Secretary to supervise, follow up and review the guidelines at least once a year;

 (3)  Determine appropriate and sufficient internal control system to be implemented all over the Company by assigning 

  the internal auditor to follow up and report the performance to the Audit Committee at least once a quarter, as well 

  as assessing the efficiency of internal control system at least once a year;

 (4)  Determine appropriate and sufficient risk management policy by assigning risk management working group to 

  implement the policy, follow up and report the performance results to Risk Management Committee at least once a 

  quarter;

 (5)  Determine the guidelines for making transactions which may have conflict of interest between the Company’s  

  stakeholders and disclose correct information which may have the conflict of interest;

 (6)  Determine the written policy on social responsibility to promote and raise awareness of employees at all levels of  

  social responsibility and reducing environmental impacts;

 (7)  Determine the written anti-corruption policy to promote and raise awareness of directors, executives and employees 

  at all levels of the damage caused by corruption;

 (8)  Ensure the above policies are communicated to directors, executives and employees of all levels for their 

  understanding. 

  Ensure the operations are in compliance with the law and regulations

 (1) Ensure the Company’s operations are in compliance with the relevant law, rules and regulations and the law on  

  securities and exchange, rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock  

  Exchange of Thailand pursuant to the Securities and Stock Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992), Section 89/7 - 89/10;

 (2) Supervise the internal auditor to examine or audit the Company’s performance in accordance with the applicable  

  law, rules and regulations. 



GRAND PRIX INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

48

  Monitor that the Board of Directors and the management appropriately perform the assignments

 (1) Appoint specific sub-committees as necessary to perform any tasks to ensure that significant matters shall be 

  thoroughly considered which include

  (a)  Audit Committee

  (b) Executive Committee

  (c) Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

  (d) Risk Management Committee 

 (2) Determine that the Board of Directors and sub-committees execute the board charter which clearly indicates their  

  roles, duties and responsibilities and review them at least once a year;

 (3)  Appoint senior executives through consideration of the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance 

  Committee and determine their roles, duties and responsibilities in writing;

 (4) Appoint an appropriate person to the Company Secretary by determining the qualifications, scope of duties and  

  responsibilities of the Company Secretary in accordance with the law on securities and exchange, rules and good  

  practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other applicable  

  laws;

 (5) The Company shall separate the roles and duties of the Board of Directors from those of the management as follows:

    Board of Directors  shall be responsible for determination of the main objectives and goals for business  

  operation, creation of corporate culture which adheres to the code of conduct, be the role model, take care of the  

  organizational structure and performance of the Board of Directors to be appropriate for effectively achieving the  

  main objectives and goals in business operation, nominate, develop, determine remuneration and assess the 

  performance of Chief Executive Officer and determine remuneration structure as incentives for directors, executives  

  and employees at all levels in conformity to the main objectives and goals of the Company. 

    Board of Directors in collaboration with the management shall determine and review the strategies, goals  

  and annual plans in conformity to the main objectives and goals of the Company, supervise and review risk man 

  agement system and internal control system to ensure appropriateness and sufficiency, determine the power to 

  approve which is suitable for the management’s responsibility, determine rules for resources management, 

  personnel development, annual budgets, monitor and assess the performance to ensure conformity to the Company’s  

  main objectives and goals.

    The management  shall be responsible for daily administrative tasks to ensure compliance with the strategies,  

  policies and plans approved by the Board of Directors by assigning Chief Executive Officer and the management to  

  be responsible for decision-making in compliance with the Company’s rules and regulations without intervening the  

  management decision unless it is necessary issues that the management shall propose for discussion or consideration.

 (6) Determine that the President and the Chief Executive Officer shall be different persons by clearly separating their 

  roles, duties and responsibilities as follows:

  Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the President

 1. Chair the Board of Directors’ Meeting and shareholders’ meeting;

 2.  Direct, monitor and supervise to ensure that the Board of Directors performs their duties effectively to achieve the  

  objectives, policies and main goals of the Company;
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 3. Ensure that all directors take part in promoting corporate culture consisting of the code of conduct and good corporate 

  governance and be the good role model;

 4.  Encourage the directors to employ appropriate discretion and express their opinions freely;

 5.  Strengthen good relations between executive directors and non-executive directors and between the Board of 

  Directors and the management as well as ensuring that the directors are not under the influence of the management. 

	 Roles,	Duties	and	Responsibilities	of	the	Chief	Executive	Officer

 1.  Controlling, supervising, and monitoring the operation and/or general management of the Company.

 2. Proceeding or performing for compliance with policy, work plan, and the budget approved by the Board of Directors  

  including other Committees.

 3. Monitoring and assessing the Company’s operating results on a regular basis to prevent risks from factors both inside  

  and outside the Company.

Principle 2
Determine the Company’s Main Objectives and Goals for Sustainability
 The Board of Director has determined the main objectives and goals of the Company clearly and appropriately, which 

shall be used as the guidelines for employees of all levels to work towards the same direction as well as determining the vision 

and mission of the Company, as well as strategies and annual plans that are suitable for the business model to create value to 

the business, customers, all stakeholder, and overall society in conformity to creation of sustainable value.

Principle 3
Promote Effective Committee
3.1 Structure of the Board of Directors
 The Board of Directors is the key part of good corporate governance consisting of experts in various fields who have 

expertise, experience, leadership, vision, and independency to make decisions. They shall dedicate their time to perform their 

duties with responsibility, prudence and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company under the main objectives and goals 

determined by the Company. 

3.2 Sub-committees
 The Board of Directors appoints sub-committees to perform specific tasks as necessary. The roles, duties and 

responsibilities of the Board of Directors, sub-committees and the management are clearly separated by clearly determining 

the levels of power to approve financial matters to ensure that important matters shall be thoroughly considered prior to being 

proposed to the Board of Directors.

3.3 Nomination of the Board of Directors and Subcommittees
 Rules and Procedure for Nomination of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has assigned the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee to nominate and 

select the directors according to transparent and clear rules and procedures in accordance with the Company’s regulations, 

regulations of SEC and the Stick Exchange of Thailand.  
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 (1) The Board of Directors has the policy to grant equal rights to all shareholders to nominate candidates for nomination  

  of new directors in advance by determining the rules and conditions on nomination which shall be published on the  

  Company’s website.

 (2)  Appointment of directors shall be in accordance with the Company’s rules and provisions of the applicable laws.  

  One shareholder shall have one vote for one share they hold. Each shareholder may exercise all voting rights they  

  have to elect one or many directors but they cannot divide their votes to any candidate.

 (3)  Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall review the structure and qualifications of 

  the Board of Directors and sub-committees to ensure suitability for the Company’s business operation.

 (4) The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Good Governance shall select and appoint directors by realizing 

  the structure of the Board which determines the directors shall have the knowledge, ability, and experience that  

  benefit the Company. The Company has prepared Board Skill Matrix to determine the directors’ qualifications who  

  will be recruited by considering from skill, ability, and necessity still lack, including appropriate qualifications and  

  consistent with the elements and structure of the Board based on the Company’s business strategy.

 (5) The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Good Governance shall define and review criteria and process of  

  recruiting directors by realizing Board diversity that determined to have a level of education, knowledge, competence,  

  professional skills, work experience, specialization, leadership, sweeping visions, morality and ethics without 

  restrictions on age, race, language, and gender for the benefit on making decisions and proposing opinions to the  

  Board of Directors and the shareholders’ meeting for further consideration and approval.  

  • Consider the names of directors who shall be dismissed upon the expiration of term and the names of the persons  

   nominated for election as directors;

  • Consider the persons nominated to be directors to ensure that they do not have any prohibited characteristics as  

   prescribed by the law or SEC regulations and good practices, have good work history, knowledge, skills, 

   experience, and specialization which are necessary for supporting the Company, and not conduct any business  

   with the similar nature and competitive with the Company’s business.

 (6) Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall determine succession plan of directors,  

  Chief Executive Officer and key executives of the Company.

  Rules and Procedures for Nomination of Sub-Committees 

 Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall screen the persons on the basis of principles 

and methods indicated in the Company’s rules by selecting the persons having knowledge, abilities and qualifications as  

announced by SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand in nomination and selection of sub-committees in case of dismissal 

upon expiration of term or vacancy to propose the qualified persons to the Board of Directors for further appointment.

3.4 Determination of Remuneration for the Board of Directors and Sub-committee
 The Board of Directors has assigned Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee to consider 

structure and rate of remuneration in accordance with the level of responsibilities to attract directors to lead the Company to 

achieve the short-term and long-term objectives and goals.
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3.5 Determination of Responsibility for Performance and Appropriate Time 
Management
 The Company supervises all directors to be responsible for performing their duties and allocate sufficient time on 

holding the position of directors which the Company has set a policy for limiting listed companies of non-executive directors 

shall not taking position more than 5 companies without exception and provided the executive directors and the Chief 

Executive Officer able to hold director positions in up to 3 other listed companies without exception. By considering the 

performance and dedication to perform duties in the company sufficiently and requiring each director to attend not less than 

75 percent of the total board meetings held in the year.

 In addition, the Company set the Chief Executive Officer to hold a position of director at other companies but it must 

not be an obstacle to the performance of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and that business must not be the same 

business type or direct competition with the Company’s business and shall be approved by the Board of Directors before 

holding a position of director in other companies.

3.6 Policy on Investment in Subsidiaries/Affiliated Companies
 The Board of Director has determined the policy and operation of the subsidiaries and other businesses in which the 

Company significantly invests at appropriate level including other subsidiaries and businesses in which the Company invests 

for mutual understanding. The Board of Directors shall appoint the persons to assume the position of directors, executives or 

controlling persons at the subsidiaries to endure concordant operation with the parent company and monitor the operating results 

of the subsidiaries to be used as the information for making the Company’s consolidated financial statements according to the 

standard and in due time.

3.7 Group and Individual Self-Assessment of the Board of Directors and 
Sub-Committees in group and individually
 The Board of Directors has determined the rules and arranged the group self-assessment of the Board of Directors and 

sub-committees and individual self-assessment of directors at least once a year using the assessment form as suggested by Thai 

Institute of Directors and the Stock Exchange of Thailand with following objectives:

 (1) To be aware of problems and difficulties causing the performance failure to achieve the determined objectives in  

  the previous year;

 (2) To ensure effective and efficient performance of the Board of Directors and sub-committee as they can be aware of  

  their responsibilities;

 (3)  To know how to employ knowledge, abilities and independency in expressing opinions of the Board of Directors;

 (4)  To improve the relationship between the Board of Directors and the management.

 3.7.1 Self-performance results assessment of the Board of Directors on both each Committee and an individual.

 (A) Assessment method

   It will use a form of self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees both each Committee and  

individuals by using a method of specifying the opinions of each director. By mark (√)  in the score box from 0 - 4 for just one 

box with the meaning as follows:
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   0  =  Totally disagree or no action in that regard.

   1  =  Disagree or take a bit of action in that regard.

   2  =  Agree or take reasonable action in that regard.

   3  =  Quite agree or take good action in that regard.

   4  =  Totally agree or take excellent action in that regard. 

 (B) Assessment Topics

   The assessment topics for each Committee shall be considered as appropriate. The maximum assessment topics are 

divided into 5 topics, may use different topics that can be adjusted as appropriate.

   (1)  Self-performance results assessment of the Board of Directors on each Committee.

     (1.1) Structure and qualifications of Committee.

     (1.2) Roles, duties and responsibilities of Committee.

     (1.3) Meeting of Committee.

     (1.4) Performance of Directors.

     (1.5) Relationship with the management division.

     (1.6) Self-development of Directors   

   (2) Self-performance results assessment of the Board of Directors on an individual

     (2.1) Qualifications of Directors.

     (2.2) Performance of Directors.

     (2.3) Participation in the meeting.

     (2.4) Roles, duties and responsibilities of Committee.

     (2.5) Relationship with the Directors and management. 

 3.7.2 Self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees on both each Committee and an individual.

 (A) Assessment method

   It will use a form of self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees both each Committee and  

individuals by using a method of specifying the opinions of each director. By mark (√) in the score box from 0 - 4 for just one 

box with the meaning as follows:

   0  =   Totally disagree or no action in that regard.

   1 =   Disagree or take a bit of action in that regard.

   2 =   Agree or take reasonable action in that regard.

   3 =   Quite agree or take good action in that regard.

   4   =   Totally agree or take excellent action in that regard.

 (B)  Assessment Topics

   The assessment topics for each Committee shall be considered as appropriate. The maximum assessment topics are 

divided into 5 topics, may use different topics that can be adjusted as appropriate.

   (1)  Self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees on each Committee

     (1.1) Structure and qualifications of Sub-Committees.

     (1.2) Meeting of Sub-Committees.

     (1.3) Roles, duties and responsibilities of Sub-Committees.

     (1.4) Report of Sub-Committees.
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    (2)  Self-performance results assessment of the Sub-Committees on an individual.

     (2.1) Structure and qualifications of Directors.

     (2.2) Participation in the meeting.

     (2.4) Roles, duties and responsibilities.

     (2.5) Relationship with the Directors and management.

 3.7.3 The results

   The results of group and individual performance of the Board of Directors and sub committees during the 

accounting year 2021 can be summarized as follows:

Assessment Topics

Assessment Topics

Results (Percent)

Results (Percent)

Structure and qualifications of Committee.

Roles, duties and responsibilities of Committee.

Meetings of Committee.

Performance of Directors.

Relationship with the management division.

Self-development of Directors.

   Average Results

Qualifications of Directors.

Performance of Directors.

Meetings of Directors.

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of Directors.

Relationship with the Directors and management.

   Average Results

99

99

98

98

99

99

98

100

99

99

99

100

99

Results of individual Assessment of the Board of Directors

Results of Group Assessment of the Board of Directors
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Assessment Topics

Assessment Topics

Results (Percent)

Results (Percent)

Audit Committee

Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee

Audit Committee

Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee

100

99

100

100

100

100

Results of Group Assessment of Sub-Committees

Results of individual Assessment of Sub-Committees

3.8 Trainings and Development of Directors
 Orientation of New Directors

 Orientation of new directors shall be determined for creating knowledge and understanding of the nature of business 

operation to prepare and support effective performance of new directors in key matters such as business structure, director 

structure, corporate structure, scope of power and duties, and responsibilities, and the laws related the Company’s business and 

understanding of the objectives, main goals, vision, and mission of the Company, as well as the nature of business and work 

guidelines.

 Knowledge Development of Directors

 The Company promotes and encourages the directors to attend seminars on regular basis such as the seminars organized 

by Thai Institute of Directors, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, SEC, or other independent organizations to improve their 

knowledge and performance for the benefit of more effective work. 

 Knowledge development of directors in 2021 is as follows
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NameNo. Position Tranining Program

Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow

Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi

Mr. Jaturont Komolmis

Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow

Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow

Miss Khwanchanok Aula-aiem

Chairman of the 
Executive Committee

Independent Director

Executive Committee 
Member

Executive Committee 
Member

Executive Committee 
Member

Accounting and 
Finance Director

•  Risk management to comply with Personal Data  
 Protection.

• Refreshment Responsibility Accounting 1/21
• TFRS on land, building, equipment and  
 non-current assets
• Improve accounting standards for NPEA and relief  
 measures during COVID-19
• Fraud : Prevention and Detection
• Consideration of assets used as collateral and 
 enforcing the property as collateral

• Risk management to comply with Personal Data  
 Protection.

• Risk management to comply with Personal Data  
 Protection.
• Personal Brand

• Risk management to comply with Personal Data  
 Protection.
• Fraud & Cyber Security Risk
• Preparation of Cash Budgeting for senior 
 management in planning and decision making.
• Summary of key operating statistics and financial  
 statement analysis

• Risk management to comply with Personal Data  
 Protection 
• TSRS 16, 2022 lease, problems, solutions and  
 consents to reductions rent related to COVID-19
• Property, plant, equipment year 2022 and related  
 financial reporting

1

2

3

4

5

6

3.9 Board of Directors’ Meeting
 The Board of Directors has assigned the Company Secretary to responsible for preparing sufficient and appropriate 

meeting documents, sending the meeting invitation letter to directors at least 7 days before the meeting date which shall  

determine the meeting program and agenda of the Board of Directors’ meetings in advance every year, so the directors can 

arrange a time and attend meetings continuously. The Board of Directors’ meetings is scheduled at least six times a year and 

special meetings are held as necessary. At the Board of Directors’ meeting, the Company has established a policy on the 

minimum number of a quorum for voting which must have directors not less than 2 out of 3 of the total number of directors. 
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  The meeting of each Sub-Committee will be scheduled as necessary and appropriate which shall determine the meeting 

program and agenda of the Board of Directors’ meetings in advance every year, so the directors can arrange a time and attend 

meetings continuously. The Board of Directors’ meetings is scheduled at least six times a year and special meetings are held 

as necessary. At the Board of Directors’ meeting, the Company has established a policy on the minimum number of a quorum 

for voting which must have directors not less than 2 out of 3 of the total number of directors.

Principle 4
Nomination and Development of Top Executives and Personnel Management
4.1 Management Structure
 The top executives consist of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, and Department Manager who have 

the roles, duties and responsibilities for daily management of the Company by taking account of the environment to ensure that 

the Company’s operation is in conformity to the plans, objectives and short-term and long-term main goals.

 Top executives shall have knowledge, abilities and experience that are useful for the Company’s business operation, 

have outstanding work history, qualifications and not have prohibited characteristics as stipulated the law on public companies 

and related law. Also, they shall not have any characteristics which reflect the lack of qualifications to be assigned to manage 

the Company.

 The Board of Directors has determined the number of listed companies in which the Chief Executive Officer and each 

top executive can assume the position to suit the nature and business condition of the Company which shall not exceed 3 listed 

companies by taking account of work efficiency to ensure that top executives can dedicate their time to work for the Company 

appropriately. 

4.2 Nomination of Top Executives
 Rules and Procedures for Nomination of Top Executives

 The Board of Directors has determined that Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee, in  

collaboration with the Chief Executive Officer, shall consider the rules and procedures for nomination, appointment and  

remuneration for the Company’s top executives. The succession plan shall be made to prepare the succession process of top 

executives or potential executives by selecting the persons having knowledge, skills and experience which are necessary for 

supporting the Company to achieve the determined objectives and goals.

4.3 Determination of Remuneration for Top Executives and Employees
 The Board of Directors has assigned Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee to consider 

structure and rate of remuneration in accordance with the level of responsibilities to attract top executives and employees to 

lead the Company to achieve the short-term and long-term objectives and goals.

4.4 Performance Assessment of Top Executives and Employees
 Performance Assessment of Top Executives

 Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee has determined the performance assessment  

form for top executives in which 2 parts of performance shall be assessed as follows: 
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  (1)  Assessment of work achievement by using KPI which is in line with the objectives and goals

  (2)  Assessment of main behaviors which are important for operation and conform to the corporate value

  Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall assess the performance and determine  

annual remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer prior to proposing it to the Board of Directors for consideration. 

The Chief Executive Officer shall assess the performance of top executives ranging from the Chief Operating Officer and  

Department Manager. Then, the opinions shall be proposed to Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance  

Committee prior to being presented to the Board of Directors for further consideration. 

 Assessment of Performance of Supervisors and Operational Employees

 Chief Executive Officer has assigned Human Resources Manager to make the performance assessment form for 

supervisors who are Department Managers and Division Chief and operational employees. The assessment criteria shall be in 

accordance with the overall KPI of the Company. The performance assessment shall be conducted once a year. 

 The Company has determined that the Department Managers shall assess the performance of their subordinates  

ranging from Division Managers and supervisors. Division Managers and supervisors shall assess the performance of  

operational employees under their chain of command. Human Resources Manager shall conclude the assessment results and 

present them to Chief Executive Officer for consideration of salary adjustment. 

4.5 Development of Top Executives
 The Board of Directors has determined that all new top executives shall attend the orientations to build knowledge and 

understanding of the business nature for preparation. Human Resources Manager shall coordinate all matters and encourage 

Chief Executive Officer and top executives to attend training and seminars organized by Thai Institute of Directors, the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand, SEC, or other independent organizations to improve their knowledge, skills and essential characteristics 

for moving the Company towards the determined goals.

 

4.6 Human Resources Management
 The Company emphasizes the importance of human resources management to effectively respond to the changing 

business, economic and environmental situation. The Company aims at fostering the readiness of the personnel to ensure that 

they have integrity, good quality of life, safe living, and opportunity to develop their knowledge and abilities to move the 

Company towards the achievement for sustainable growth.

Principle 5
Promote Innovations and Operate Business Responsibly
 The Board of Directors emphasizes and supports the creation of innovations which give values to the Company  

together with creating benefit to customers, suppliers or related parties. The Company shall be aware of social and 

environmental responsibilities. Our innovations shall not support inappropriate behaviors or illegal activities or violate the 

Company’s business code of conduct. 

5.1 Creation of Innovations
 Creation of innovations is the process of changing existing products to make them different and better than the  
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competitors by using cutting-edge manufacturing technology, use low energy and reduce environmental impacts. More 

importantly, the Company focuses on developing the personnel to have creativity for sustainable development so that they can 

accommodate the changing innovations in accordance with the Company’s main goals.  

 Creation of Corporate Culture to Boost Creation of Innovations 

 The Company provides personnel development training to foster their creativity in innovation making. The management 

shall take it as part of strategies review, development planning, operation improvement, and operating result monitoring for 

more effective manage of those innovative procedure. 

5.2 Business Code of Conduct
 The Board of Directors has determined the business code of conduct as the guidelines for directors, executives and 

employees at all levels to work effectively and transparently with the aim of building reliability among stakeholders for the 

benefit of sustainable value of the Company. The business code of conduct consists of (1) Code of conduct on responsibility 

towards shareholders, (2) Code of conduct on responsibility towards employees, (3) Code of conduct on responsibility towards 

customers, (4) Code of conduct on responsibility towards suppliers, (5) Code of conduct on responsibility towards trade 

competitors, (6) Code of conduct on responsibility towards accounts payable, (7) Code of conduct on responsibility towards 

financial institution creditors, (8) Code of conduct on responsibility towards supervising authorities and government agencies, 

and (9) Code of conduct on responsibility towards the society with an emphasis on social, environmental.

5.3 Effective Resources Management
 Energy Management

 (1)  Determine that energy conservation is part of the Company’s operation for development of appropriate energy  

   management system;

 (2)  Improve efficiency of the Company’s consumption of energy to conform to the relevant business and technology  

   as well as good practices;

 (3) Determine that energy conservation is the responsibility of executives and employees at all levels shall collaborate  

   in complying with the determined standards;

 (4)  The Company shall provide necessary support, including human, technological, budget, training resources, and take  

   part in expressing opinions for development of energy work.

 Procurement Management

 All procurements shall result in the receipt of products and services in accordance with the specifications in terms of 

quality, price, quantity, service time, delivery time by taking account of the Company’s policy on quality, safety, occupational 

health, and environment. The Company shall not take advantage of suppliers. Bidding shall be conducted fairly and equally with 

all suppliers. The Company shall equally maintain the business relationship with suppliers by not demanding any property or 

interest either directly or indirectly from suppliers without any exception. Procurements shall be done by carefully considering 

the interest and possible damage to the Company to reputation and image of the Company in the eye of the outsiders.

5.4 Informational Technology Management
 (1)  Determine the policy on information technology management which covers allocation of sufficient resources for  
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   business operation as well as compliance with the law, rules, regulations, and standards applicable for information 

   technology system;

 (2)  The Company has data protection regulations and indicates the standards of data protection system covering 

   confidentiality, reliability maintenance and availability of the data. Data shall be prevented from unauthorized usage  

   or modification which shall be observed by all employees;

 (3)  The Company shall assess the risk of information technology covering various aspects of risk management by  

   analyzing internal and external risks to reduce them;

 (4)  The Company emphasizes the importance of disclosure of its information to the public which shall be in compliance  

   with the Company’s code of conduct and Computer Crime Act and related laws to ensure order and utmost benefit  

   as well as preventing possible problems which may occur to the Company and related persons. 

5.5 Social, Community and Environmental Management
 The Company aims at conducting its business under good governance policy and has determined that social  

responsibility is part of its business code of conduct. Social responsibility policy has been determined as follows:

 (1)  Strive for conducting business ethically and with social responsibility;

 (2)  Strive for developing overall community and society in terms of economy, society, community, and environment;

 (3)  Respect the law and human rights without discrimination in terms of differences in race, nationality, religion, and  

   culture;

 (4)  Encourage employees to have public mind and raise aware of social responsibility for the public benefit;

 (5)  Promote activities that give sustainable benefit to the community, society and environment;

   (5.1) Corporate activities are the activities that develop the skills of directors, executives and employees of all  

     levels, create knowledge within the Company, encourage employees to take part in sharing opinions about 

     the Company, and promote environmental conservation in the Company;

   (5.2) Community activities are the activities which are in line with the Company’s business operation and give the  

     real long-term benefits to the society, community and environment, promote educational development and  

     lifelong learning, develop the quality of life of people in communities in which the Company operates its  

     business as well as the society as a whole, help the society, promote learning, and raise awareness of social  

     responsibility. 

Principle 6
Ensure appropriate risk management and internal control system
6.1 Risk Management and Internal Control
 Risk Management

 The Company aims at preventing and reducing possible risks by analyzing and reviewing risk factors which may affect 

the business operation, seek opportunities under acceptable risks, follow up the results of unacceptable risk management to 

achieve the Company’s business goals and ensure that the Company has sufficient and effective risk management.

 Risk Management Committee has performed the duties as assigned to manage and reduce risks, regularly assess risks, 

supervise unacceptable risks, and follow up to ensure sufficient and appropriate risk management system to prevent and reduce 
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possible impacts in the future in accordance with good corporate governance principles. In addition, corporate risk management 

working group has been formed, consisting of Chief Operating Officer and Department Managers of all units, totally 10 persons 

at minimum, to manage risks in each division with regular monitoring.

 Internal Control

 The Board of Directors has determined that the Company shall have appropriate and sufficient internal control system, 

assess and follow up the issues regularly. Independent internal auditor shall report operating results to Audit Committee on the 

basis of internal audit standards for the utmost benefit of the Company and acceptability among all stakeholders. The following 

guidelines are determined:

 (1) Arrange appropriate control environment;

 (2)  Arrange appropriate internal control activities;

 (3)  Arrange appropriate, reliable, and timely information technology and communication system;

 (4)  Arrange appropriate follow-up and assessment system.

6.2 Stock Trading and Use of Insider Information
  Directors, executives and all employees shall comply with the prohibitions of insider trading indicated in the Securities 

and Exchange Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992), Section 241.  

 In addition, the Company determines that directors and executives shall make and submit the reports on the change of 

holding of securities and futures contract (Form 59) of theirs and their spouses or partners, and minor child who hold more than 

30 percent of all voting rights in accordance with the form of change of securities holding to the change of securities holding 

report system on SEC’s website (https://www.sec.or.th) or notify of the change to the Company Secretary for submission to 

the above system each time of the change. 

 The Company has determined that directors and executives as well as the persons holding the executive positions in 

accounting or financial section from Department Manager or higher and equivalent and related operational employees who 

receive the internal information which is the subject matter with possibility to affect the change in securities price or value shall 

suspend their offer to buy or sell or inviting other to buy or sell the Company’s securities either directly or indirectly within 30 

days prior to and until the date of announcement of the Company’s quarterly and annual financial operating results.

6.3 Prevention of Conflict of Interest
 The transactions which may have the conflict of interest shall be made for the benefit of the company and the  

shareholders as a whole and shall be in accordance with the regulations of SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as 

other applicable law. Therefore, each transaction making shall be thoroughly considered and screened by the Audit Committee 

prior to being proposed to the Board of Directors for approval. Directors who hold interest shall not take part in the consideration 

in accordance with the rules and procedures determined by SEC.

6.4 Related Transactions and Transactions Related to Acquisition or Distribution 
of Assets
 The Board of Directors has determined the measures and procedures for approval of related transactions and transactions 

related to acquisition or distribution of the Company’s assets to ensure compliance with the regulations of SEC and the Stock 
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Exchange of Thailand as well as other applicable law. Persons who hold interest or may have conflict of interest shall not  

approval any transactions related to them. Determination of price or remuneration shall be in accordance with the normal course 

of business and general trade conditions which shall be approved by Audit Committee prior to being proposed to the Board of 

Directors and/or the shareholders’ meeting for approval. Such transactions shall be disclosed in accordance with the rules and 

procedures determined by SEC.

6.5 Report on Interest of Directors and Top Executives
 The Company has determined the rules, conditions and procedures for report on interest of directors, executives and 

related persons in accordance with Section 89/14 of Securities and Exchange Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992), as amended by 

Securities and Exchange Act (No. 4), B.E. 2551 (A.D. 2008), which requires directors and executives to report the Company of 

their interest or the interest of other related persons within the period and by the method identified by the Company as follows:

 First reporting

   The first 4 directors or executives who have just appointed as directors (including the holding of spouses and minor  

 children) shall notify Management’s Securities Holding System (Form 59) via the SEC’s website (https://www.sec.or.th)  

 within 7 days from the closing date and notify the Company Secretary to prepare a report on the interests of directors.

 Reporting holding change

   The first 4 directors or executives (including the holding of spouses and minor children) shall notify Management’s  

 Securities Holding System (Form 59) via the SEC’s website (https://www.sec.or.th) within 3 days from the closing date  

 and notify the Company Secretary to prepare a report on the interests of directors.

6.6 Anti-corruption
 Anti-corruption Policy

 Directors, executives and employees of the Company and the subsidiaries shall not act or accept any form of corruption 

either directly or indirectly for the benefit of self, family, and friend, acquaintance, either as receivers or givers of the monetary 

or non-monetary bribe. Anti-corruption policy covers the business and all internal and external units related to the Company 

and the subsidiaries by having the assessment of performing anti-corruption policy on regular basis as well as reviewing the 

guidelines and regulations to ensure conformity to the change of business, the Company’s rules and regulations and legal 

provisions.

 Guidelines for Practices

 (1) The Company’s anti-corruption measures shall be the obligations of directors, executives and employees at all  

   levels. They shall adhere to and comply with the determined measures and shall not ignore the guidelines prescribed 

   herein. In the event of any violation or non-compliance of the above rules which causes damage to the Company, the  

   person committing such violation or non-compliance shall be punished in accordance with the Company work rules

 (2) The Company shall provide justice and protect employees who report corruption cases in relation to the Company  

   by implementing whistleblower or corruption reporter protection measures as indicated in the rules and regulations  

   on whistleblowing or complaint filing of stakeholders. 

 (3)  The Company’s directors, executives and employees at all levels who commit corruption shall be considered as  

   violating the business code of conduct and are subject to disciplinary punishment as determined by the Company  

   with the possibility to be legally punished if the actions are illegal. 
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 (4)  The Company realizes the importance of sharing knowledge and understanding of compliance with this  

   anti-corruption policy with other parties who have to work in connection with the Company or cause impacts on  

   the Company. 

 (5)  The Company shall communicate anti-corruption policy through director orientation program, employee orientation  

   program and seminars held within the Company on appropriate occasions to encourage employees to work with  

   integrity, be responsible for their duties and to ensure that the business is operated under corporate code of conduct. 

 (6)  The Company determines that directors, executives and employees at all levels shall report any actions which is  

   against or may be against the principles given in the anti-corruption manual. In case of any questions about the  

   practices in this anti-corruption manual, employees shall initially consider by themselves whether such actions.

   • Are correct;

   • Are acceptable and disclosable to the society;

   • Will damage the Company’s reputation;

   Or directly ask the superior, Human Resources Department and the Company Secretary.

6.7 Good Practices Related to Anti-Corruption Measures
 To ensure clear practices related to the matters with high risk of corruption, the Company has determined the policy and 

practices related to the following matters:

 Political Neutrality and Assistance: The Company has the policy on political neutrality without giving financial or 

resources support, or performs any actions which may favor any politicians or political parties either directly or indirectly.

 Receiving and Giving of Gifts, Hospitality Fees, Service Fees, or Other Interests: The Company has determined 

that “receiving and giving of gifts, hospitality fees, service fees, or other interests shall be done by taking account of tradition 

and culture without excessive value and shall not be the omission of duties which may lead to corruption problems”.

 Charitable Donations: Company has determined that “charitable donations shall be proved as being done for giving 

assistance and support to the community and society with clear evidence and shall not be the route for any kinds of corruption”.

 Financial Support:  The Company has determined that “giving monetary support shall be proved as being done for 

fostering success of the project, for business public relations, or for the objectives of operation in transparent and legal manner 

without being used as an excuse for bribery”. 

6.8 Whistleblowing and Complaints
 The Company expects that directors, executives and all employees shall report in good faith to the Company about any 

performance which is or may be in conflict with or in discordance with good corporate governance, business code of conduct, 

or related law for improvement or correction. 

 Scope of Whistleblowing or Complaints

 In case of any doubts or any actions which may violate the good corporate governance and business code of conduct, 

violation of rules and regulations of the Company, unfair treatment at work, corruption, illegal actions which cause damage to 

the Company.

 Whistleblowing or Complaint Channels

 (1) Complaint box installed within the Company
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 (2)  The Company’s web page under “Corporate Governance > Complaint Channel and Complaint Management  

   Procedure”

 (3)  Representative assigned by the Audit Committee who is

   Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi

   Tel.: 081-148-6455 or Fax: 02-393-6190

   E-mail: dhas.udomdham@outlook.com

 Measures to Protect Whistleblowers or Complainants

 (1)  The Company shall conceal the names, addresses or other information which can identifies the complainants or  

   whistleblowers and shall keep the information of complainants or whistleblowers confidential.

 (2)  In case of complaints against directors, the Audit Committees shall protect the whistleblowers or complainants,  

   witnesses, and persons giving information for investigation from any trouble, danger or unfairness. 

 (3)  President of the Audit Committee shall consider giving orders as deemed appropriate to protect the whistleblowers  

   or complainants, witnesses, and persons giving information for investigation.

 (4)  President of the Audit Committee may assign any executive to act on his/her behalf in protecting the  

   whistleblowers or complainants, witnesses, and persons giving information for investigation. The assigned 

   executive shall not have any involvement in the complained matters either directly or indirectly.

Principle 7
Maintain Financial Reliability and Information Disclosure
 The Board of Directors shall be responsible for ensuring that financial reports and disclosure of important information 

are correct, complete, timely, transparent, and equal in accordance with the relevant rules, standards and practices.

7.1 Maintenance of Financial Reliability
 (1)  The company has determined that Accounting and Finance Department shall make and disclose financial 

   information. The persons in charge of disclosure shall have knowledge, skills and experience which are eligible for  

   the duties, responsibilities and sufficient in number. The Company has indicated that the persons in charge of  

   financial information disclosure include Chief Executive Officer, Accounting and Finance Director, and the 

   Company Secretary.

 (2) The Company emphasizes financial reliability in financial information disclosure by taking account of the 

   following factors:

   (a)  Results of sufficiency assessment of the internal system

   (b)  Auditor’s opinion about the financial statements

   (c)  Audit Committee’s opinion 

   (d)  Conformity to the Company’s objectives, main goals, strategies, and policies

 (3) The Company has determined the record of transactions in correct, complete and accountable manner in accordance  

   with general accounting standards and applicable laws. Related personnel shall adhere to the principles of  

   integrity. Transactions shall be recorded correctly and accounting and financial report shall be correct without any  

   false items. Employees at all levels shall comply with the rules and regulations of the applicable law.
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7.2 Information Disclosure
 Information Disclosure Policy

 Disclosure of information to the third party shall be appropriate, timely and sufficient for decision-making. Users shall 

have equal access to the information, and the information shall always be updated through the determined channels to protect 

main information and information which affects the Company’s securities price.

 Communication Policy

 It has been determined that some information can be communicated under the information disclosure policy in correct, 

clear, timely, and fair manner to all parties. Inappropriate words or patterns shall not be used as it may cause misunderstanding 

about the Company’s securities. Accurate information shall be communicated all over the organization to ensure compliance 

with the policy. 

  Guidelines for Information Disclosure 

    The Company has the policy on correct information disclosure which shall also be sufficient for investors’  

  decision-making through the Company’s website for users to have equal access to the information, and the  

  information shall always be updated through the determined channels.

  Persons who are authorized to disclose the Information

    The Company has assigned the following executives to have the power to and be in charge of disclosing  

  information to the public, press release, information dissemination, answering questions of shareholders, investors  

  and securities analysts

    • President

    • Chief Executive Officer

    • Chief Operating Officer

    • Chief Financial Officer 

   Exemptions of Disclosure

     The information which shall not be disclosed includes trade secret or the information which, upon disclosure,  

  may cause the loss of benefit and competitiveness, or inconclusive information or information under negotiation which  

  is subject to change and affects the Company’s securities price prior to disclosure of the financial statements to the  

  Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the information slandering trade competitors. 

7.3 Report on Social and Environmental Responsibility 
 The Company conducts its business based on the business code of conduct with responsibility and respect for the right of 

all stakeholders as well as social, community and environmental responsibility. Therefore, the policy on social and 

environmental responsibility has been determined to ensure the same business direction under the corporate culture as follows: 

 (1.1)  Ethically conduct the business with social and environmental responsibility;

 (1.2)  Comply with the law, human right, and equality without discrimination on race, nationality, religion, and culture  

    by implementing fair management and promoting sustainable development;

 (1.3)  Encourage employees to have public mind and continuously raise awareness of social and environmental  

    responsibility for the public benefit without expectations of any return;
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 (1.4)  Promote activities which give sustainable benefit to the society, community and environment both inside and  

    outside the organization.

7.4 Implementation of Technology in Information Dissemination
 The Board of Directors encourages the use of information technology in information dissemination in addition to 

dissemination as required by the regulations and through SET channel. The Board of Directors has determined that the 

information shall be disseminated in both Thai and English language on the Company’s website to ensure the most up-to-date 

information.

Principle 8
Support Participation and Communication with Shareholders
 The Company realizes the importance of shareholders and respects the rights and equality of all shareholders as prescribed 

in the Company’s articles of association and other applicable law.  

8.1 Shareholders’ Meeting, including
 • Ordinary shareholders’ meeting: held within 4 months from the end date of the Company’s accounting period

 • Extraordinary shareholders’ meeting: held for consideration of urgent matters such as the matters required by the law  

to be approved by shareholders; meeting prior to action.

  Shareholders’ Meeting Invitation

     The Company shall send shareholders’ meeting invitation along with related documents and disseminate them  

   on the Company’s website at least 30 days prior to the meeting date both Thai and English version for shareholders  

   to have sufficient time to study the information. The invitation shall indicate (1) date, time and venue of  

   shareholders’ meeting, (2) agendas, (3) objectives, rationales and opinions of the Board of Directors on each 

   proposed agenda, (4) power of attorney, and (5) supporting documents e.g. procedure of voting, counting and 

   notification of voting results.

   Arrangement of Shareholders’ Meeting

     The Company encourages all shareholders to exercise their basic rights as prescribed by the law.  

   Shareholders’ meeting procedures are as follows:

  Pre-shareholders’ Meeting Procedures

     The Company shall present key information and news on the Company’s website e.g. quarterly and annual  

   financial statements, annual registration statements (Form 56-1), annual report (Form 56-2), and shareholders’  

   meeting invitation at least 30 days prior to the meeting date and allow shareholders to propose agendas on the  

   matters they consider as important and nominate the qualified persons to be appointed as new directors at least 3  

   months prior to the date of shareholders’ meeting through the Company’s website. 

  In-shareholders’ Meeting Procedures

     The Company has implemented technology in shareholders’ meeting for shareholder registration, vote 

   counting and display of the voting results to facilitate the meeting and ensure correctness and accuracy of the 

   process. The President shall chair the shareholders’ meeting, ensure that the meeting is in accordance with the law  
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   and the Company’s rules and regulations, manage appropriate time for each agenda and give shareholders 

   opportunities to express their opinions and ask questions about the Company to the meeting, promote 

   independency, count or check votes, and record it in the minutes of meeting. 

  Post-shareholders’ Meeting Procedures

     The Company shall clearly disclose the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting and voting result on each  

   agenda by the shareholders’ meeting date or the next business date after the shareholders’ meeting date through the  

   Stock Exchange of Thailand and make the correct and complete minutes of shareholders’ meeting and submit it to  

   the Stock Exchange of Thailand within 14 days from the date of shareholders’ meeting both in Thai and English  

   language, as well as making the AGM Checklist made by Thai Investors Association.

8.2 Communication with Shareholders
 The Company has arranged the website to communicate key information and news between the Company and other 

parties e.g. shareholders, institutional investors, general investors, and allow them to have access to and ask questions equally. 

Information is classified to facilitate communication to all parties without making any group lose their investment opportunity. 

Information shall be correct and true.

8.3 Dividend Payment
 The Board of Directors has determined the policy on dividend payment at not less than 50 percent of the net profit 

declared in the consolidated financial statements after deduction of income tax and all kinds of reserves as determined by the 

Company subject to the Company’s articles of association and applicable law. 

Assessment of Good Corporate Governance
 The Company has improved the corporate governance code to conform to the Securities and Exchange Commission 

(SEC)’s amendment of good corporate governance in 2017 with the aim of being used as the guidelines for the Board of  

Directors to determine adjustment of the business according to the change in business situation and enhance competitiveness. 

In 2021, the pending matters are as follows:

Pending Matters Reasons

The Company should have an employee compensation policy 
that is consistent with the Company’s operation results in both 
short and long term.

The Company should hold a press conference to present the 
Company’s financial position.

The Board should disclose the CEO’s remuneration policy, 
both short and long term including the CEO’s performance 
results.

The Company uses KPI to measure employee performance. 
Performance is not measured according to the Balance  
Scorecard.

In the past year, the company has not held.

The Company has not disclosed yet.
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7. Corporate Governance Structure and Important Information about 
the Board of Directors, Sub-Committees, Executives, Employees, and 
Others
7.1 Organizational Structure
 As of December 31, 2021 the management of the Company included the Board of Directors and 4 committees are as 

follows;

 1. Audit Committee

 2. Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee

 3. Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

 4. Executive Committee

Organizational Chart

Internal Audit Chief Executive Officer

Company Secretary

Audit Committee
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7.2 Board Information
The Board of Directors consists of 9 directors. Details of the Directors as of December 31, 2021 are as follows;

1. Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn Chairman of the Board

  Independent Director

2. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow Director

  Chairman of the Executive Committee

  Chief Executive Officer

3. Mrs. Ruchiroj Eamlumnow Director.

4. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director

  Chairman of the Audit Committee

  Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee member

5. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem Independent Director

  Chairman of the Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

  Audit Committee member

6. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi Independent Director

  Chairman of the Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee

  Audit Committee member

  Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee member

7. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis Director

  Executive Committee member

  Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee member

8. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow Director

  Executive Committee member

  Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee member

9. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow Director

  Executive Committee member

  Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee member 

  Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee member
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Director’s Profile

Position:

• Chairman of the Board

• Independent Director

Age:

• 74 years

Date of Appointment:

• 5 years 8 months (holding positions on April 28, 2016)

Education:

• Master of Economics - Thammasart University

• Bachelor of Economics - Thammasart University
Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn

Training Program: 

• Strategic Board Master Class (SBM)

• Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP)

• Ethical Leadership Program (ELP)

• Corporate Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries  

 (CGI) 

• Financial Institutions Governance Program (FGP)

• Monitoring of the Quality of Financial Reporting (MFR)

• Audit Committee Program (ACP)

• Chartered Director Class (R-CDC)

• Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)

• Director Certification Program (DCP)

Shareholding in the Company (%): 

• None

Relationship between the Board and the Management: 

• None

Work Experience:

Listed Company

2017 - Present : Chairman of Audit Committee - Nutrix Plc.

2016 - Present : Chairman - Saha Thai Terminal Plc.

2015 - Present  : Chairman of Audit Committee - BSY Group Plc.

2011 - Present  : Chairman - Taokaenoi food & Marketing Plc.

2004 - 2015  : Chairman - Preecha Group Plc.

2004 - 2015  : Chairman - Siam Panich Leasing Plc.

2004 - 2015  : Chairman - Siam Commercial Leasing Plc.

2002 - 2019 : Chairman - Maybank Kim Eng (Thailand) Plc.

Non - Listed Company

• 2015 - Present : Director - B.S.Y. Construction Co., Ltd.

• 2017 - 2019  : Chairman - SCB Protect Co., Ltd.
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Position: 

• Director

• Chairman of Executive Committee

• Chief executive officer

Age:

• 78 years

Date of Appointment:

• 7 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)

Education: 

• Honorary Doctor of Philosophy - Suan Sunandha Rajabhat University

• Honorary Doctor of Arts - Rajamangala University of Technology

• Honorary Doctor of Philosophy - Ramkhamhaeng University

• Master of Political Science - Ramkhamhaeng University 

• Honorary Bachelor of Arts - Rajamangala University of Technology

Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow

Training Program:

• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

• Executive Development Program (EDP)

• Risk management to comply with Personal Data Protection.

Shareholding in the Company (%):

• 27.05 (on December, 31 2021)

Relationship between the Board and the Management:

• Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow’s spouse

• Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow’s father

• Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow’s father

• Mr. Jaturont Komolmis’s uncle  

Work Experience:

Listed Company

• None

Non - Listed Company

• 2015 - Present  : Director - Eamlumnow Co., Ltd

• 2010 – Present : Director - Grand Prix Golf Club Co., Ltd.

• 2009 - Present : Chairman - Blue Diamond Golf and Water Sports Club Co., Ltd.

• 1983 - 2017 : Director - Yachiyoda Alloy Wheel Co., Ltd.
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Position:

• Director

Age:

• 75 years

Date of Appointment:

• 7 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014) 

Education: 

• Vocational Certificate - Vocational Education Institution

Mrs. Ruchiroj Eamlumnow

Training Program:

• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

Shareholding in the Company (%): 

• 2.09 (on December, 31 2021)

Relationship between the Board and the Management: 

• Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow’s spouse

• Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow’s mother

• Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow’s mother

• Mr. Jaturont Komolmis’s aunt

Work Experience:

Listed Company 

• None

Non - Listed Company

• None
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Position: 

• Independent Director

• Chairman of Audit Committee

• Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee  

  Member

Age:

• 73 years 

Date of Appointment:

• 7 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014) 

Education:

• Doctor of Public Administration - Ramkhamhaeng University

• Master of Public Administration - Institute of Development  

  Administration

• Bachelor of Science in Chemistry, Chulachomklao Royal  

  MilitaryAcademy

Gen.Dr.Surapan Poomkaew

Training Program:

• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

• Leader Program - Capital Market Academy

Shareholding in the Company (%): 

• None

Relationship between the Board and the Management:

• None

Work Experience:

Listed Company

• 2015 - Present : Director - Sino Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.

• 2013 - Present  : Director - National Power Supply Plc

Non - Listed Company

• None
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Mr.Kanokphand Chulakasam 

Position: 

• Independent Director

• Chairman of Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate   

  Governance Committee

• Audit Committee Member

Age:

• 67 years

Date of Appointment:

7 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)

Education:

• Bachelor of Political Science Program - Thammasat  

   University

Training Program:

• Director Certification Program (DCP)

• Executive Development Program (EDP)

Shareholding in the Company (%): 

• 0.08 (on December, 31 2021)

Relationship between the Board and the Management:

• None

Work Experience:

Listed Company

• None

Non - Listed Company

• 2006 - 2014 : Governor - Sports Authority of Thailand
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Dr.Dhas Udomdhammadhakdi

Position: 

• Independent Director

• Chairman of Risk Management and Sustainable Development 

  Committee

• Audit Committee member

• Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee    

  Member

Age:

• 63 years 

Date of Appointment:

• 7 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014) 

Education:

• Doctor of Philosophy Program in Social Science - Magadh University

• Master of Business Administration (International Management) 

  - University of Dallas

• Diploma in Auditing - Chulalongkorn University 

• Bachelor of Accounting - Thammasat University

Training Program: 

 • Role of the Chairman Program (RCP) 46/2020

 • Strategic Board Master Class (SBM) 7/2019

 • Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP) 33/2019

 • Boards that Make a Difference (BMD) 8/2018

 • Diploma for Passing the Examination of Director certification Program 1/2018

 • Director Certification Program (DCP) 248/2017

 • Board Nomination and Compensation Program (BNCP) 2/2017

 • Risk Management Program for Corporate Leaders (RCL) 3/2016

 • Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 121/2015

 • Executive Development Program (EDP)

 • IT Risk and IT Governance 3/2018

 • Corporate Sustainability Strategy S01-S06/2019

 • Corporate governance Audit - Federation of Accounting Professions

 • Anti-Corruption Working Paper 3/18

 • Risk Management (Advance) 1/18

 • COSO 2013 Framework for Internal Control System (Advance) 1/18

 • Essential Roles of Those Charged with Governance on New Auditor Reports

 • Risk Management (Basic)

 • Mergers & Acquisitions

 • M&A in Action Financial & Pricing Strategies

 • Outbound Investment Commercial, Legal & Tax Strategies

 • Joint Ventures Agreement

 • Refreshment Responsibility Accounting 1/21

 • TFRS on land, building, equipment and non-current assets
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 • Improve accounting standards for NPEA and relief measures during COVID-19

 • Get ready for PDPA

 • Fraud: Prevention and Detection

 • Consideration of assets used as collateral and enforcing the property as collateral

 • Directing HR to suit with COVID-19

 • How to make sustainability along with business

 • Climate Change and greenhouse reporting in One Report

 • Road to Join Thai CAC

 • Road to Certify with Thai CAC

 • Agile Auditing: IA Clinic 2/2021 

 • Sustainability, ESG and a company’s reporting

 • Sustainability Thailand

 • Tax consideration for outbound investment

 • The role of the company secretary in Anti-Corruption

 • Preparation after the COVID-19 epidemic

 • Corporate Re-Structure

 • ESG, from theory to practice

 • Business and human rights in One Report

 • One report, Environment disclosure requirement: Greenhouse Gas Reporting & Disclosure

 • ESG and IA Role in Sustainability

 • Prevent and detect corruption for sustainable business

 • Modern Slavery: Tackling the greatest human right challenge of our time

Shareholding in the Company (%):

• None

Relationship between the Board and the Management: 

• None

Work Experience:
Listed Company

2020 - Present : Chairman of Risk management - NR Instant Produce PLC.

2020 - Present : Corporate Governance, and Social Affair for Sustainable Development Committee – 

  NR Instant Produce PLC.

2019 - Present : Nomination and Remuneration Committee - NR Instant Produce PLC.

2018 - Present : Audit Committee - NR Instant Produce PLC.

Non - Listed Company

• 2020 – Present : Chairman – True Energy Co., Ltd.

• 1994 - Present :  Director - Tannon Co., Ltd.
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Position:

• Director

• Executive Committee Member

• Risk Management and Sustainable Development  

  Committee Member

Age:

• 62 years

Date of Appointment:

• 7 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)

Education:

• Bachelor of Business Administration - Chiang Mai University

Mr. Jaturont Komolmis

Training Program:

• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

• Executive Development Program (EDP)

• Risk management to comply with Personal Data Protection.

Shareholding in the Company (%): 

• 1.85 (on December, 31 2021)

Relationship between the Board and the Management: 

• Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow and Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow’s  

  nephew

• Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow’s cousin

• Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow’s cousin

Work Experience:

Listed Company

•  None

Non - Listed Company

2018 - Present : Director – GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.

2009 - Present : Director - Blue Diamond Golf and Water Sports Club Co., Ltd.



Form 56-1 one report

77

Position:

• Director

• Executive Committee Member

• Risk Management and Sustainable Development  

  Committee Member

Age:

• 50 years

Date of Appointment:

• 7 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)

Education:

• Bachelor of Arts - California State University

Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow

Training Program:

• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

• Director Certification Program (DCP)

• Executive Development Program (EDP)

• Risk management to comply with Personal Data Protection 

Shareholding in the Company (%): 

• 12.59 (on December, 31 2021)

Relationship between the Board and the Management: 

• Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow and Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow’s son

• Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow’s brother

• Mr. Jaturont Komolmis’s cousin

Work Experience:

Listed Company

•  None

Non- Listed Company

2018 - Present : Director – GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.

2009 - Present : Director - Blue Diamond Golf and Water Sports Club Co., Ltd.
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Position: 

• Director

• Executive Committee Member

• Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee  

  Member

• Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee  

  Member

Age:

• 47 years

Date of Appointment:

• 6 years 4 months (holding positions on August 29, 2014)

Education:

• Business Administration - Assumption University

Mr.Peeraphong Eamlumnow

Training Program:

• Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

• Director Certification Program (DCP)

• Thammasat Leadership Program

• Executive Development program (EDP)

• AseanPlus Treasures Outstanding Charisma (ATOC)

• Updated COSO Enterprise Risk Management: Integrating  

 with Strategy and Performance

• COSO 2013 Framework for Internal Control System  

   (Advance) 1/18

• Risk management (Advance) 1/18

• Corporate Governance Audit

• Corporate Governance for Executives (CGE)

• Executives with sustainability reports and social  

   compensation 2/19

• CFO Refresher Course # 1 

• M&A in Action Financial & Pricing Strategies

• Risk management to comply with Personal Data 

 Protection.

• Fraud & Cyber Security Risk

• Preparation of Cash Budgeting for senior management in  

 planning and decision making.

• Summary of key operating statistics and financial 

 statement analysis 

Shareholding in the Company (%): 

• 12.99 (on December, 31 2021)

Relationship between the Board and the Management:

• Mr. Prachin Eamlumlow and Mrs. Rujiroj Eamlumnow’s son

• Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow’s brother

• Mr. Jaturont Komolmis’s cousin

Work Experience:

Listed Company

•  None

Non- Listed Company

• 2020 – Present : Director - True Energy Co., Ltd.

• 2019 – Present : Director - Automatrix Solutions Co., Ltd.

• 2012 - Present : Director - Dream Garage Design & Construction Co., Ltd.

• 2009 - Present : Director - Blue Diamond Golf and Water Sports Club Co., Ltd.
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Changes in Securities Holding of directors and Management 

including spouse and minor child at December 31, 2021.

Name of Directors  Number of shares 
at 01/01/2021

Number of shares 
at 31/12/2021

Number of shares 
increase/(decrease) 

during the year

1. Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn

2. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow

3. Mrs. Ruchiroj Eamlumnow

4. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew

5. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem

6. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi

7. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis

8. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow

9. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow

10. Miss. Khwanchanok Aula-aiem

-

162,283,935

12,542,100

-

500,000
-
-

11,070,200

75,560,050

77,950,250

-

-

172,833,934

12,542,100

-

500,000
-
-

11,070,200

75,560,050

77,950,250

-

-

(10,549,999)

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-

-
-

The primary authorized directors with signature authority on behalf of the Company

 Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow, Mr. Jaturont Komolmis, Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow and Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow, two-

fourths of these sign with the Company seal affixed.

Independent Committee 

 The independent committee is required to be part of the governance structure of the Company.  The independent 

committee, whose role is to oversee all decisions involving an actual or perceived conflict of interest between listed companies 

and the executive directors or the majority shareholders, or other companies that has the same executive directors or majority 

shareholders.  The independent committee must be independent from the majority shareholders to ensure that the Company 

is organized and operated in interests of every shareholder equally, not in the interest of the insiders. Moreover, the Company 

abides by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission on the composition of the independent committee that there 

must be at least one third of independent directors out of total directors, and at least 3 persons, which are;

 1. Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn Independent Director

 2. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director

 3. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem Independent Director

 4. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi Independent Director
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 Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
 The Board of Directors have the scope of power and responsibilities towards the Company management in conformity 

to the Company’s objectives, policies and regulations, resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting, and shall comply with the law 

on securities and exchange, rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand as well as the law related to the Company’s business. The Board of Directors shall perform their duties with 

responsibilities, prudence and integrity. For the utmost benefit of the Company, the roles, duties and responsibilities of the 

Board of Directors are determined as follows:

 1. Perform their duties in accordance with the laws, objectives and regulations of the Company as well as the resolutions  

  of the shareholders’ meeting with honesty, integrity and maintain the benefit of the Company;

 2. Consider and approve important matters related to the Company’s operation on annual basis such as vision,  

  mission, strategies, financial goals, risks, plans, and budgets as well as controlling and supervising the management  

  to perform in accordance with the determined policies and plans efficiently and effectively;

 3. Supervise the administration and operating results of the management or any persons assigned perform such duties 

  to ensure conformity to the policies determined by the Company;

 4. Monitor and assess the Company’s operating results continuously to ensure conformity of the Company’s strategic  

  plan and budgets;

 5. Ensure that the management has reliable accounting system, financial reports and audit procedure as well as ensuring  

  that the Company has sufficient and appropriate internal control system;

 6. Determine policies and perform audit on risk management and follow up the operating results of the Company’s risk  

  management;

 7. Consider approving the acquisition or sale of any asset, investment and any action in accordance with relevant 

  notification, regulations and rules;

 8. Consider approving the transactions related to the Company in compliance with relevant notification, regulations  

  and rules;

 9. Determine the guidelines for transactions which may have the conflict of interest between the Company’s stakeholders  

  and shareholders and determine the procedures and disclosure of the information about the transactions which may  

  have the conflict of interest in complete and correct manner and disclose it in the annual report (Form 56-1 One 

  Report);

 10. Determine corporate good governance pursuant to the law on securities and exchange, rules and good practices of  

  Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as the law related to the  

  Company’s business;

 11. Determine social responsibility policy as part of the business code of conduct since the Company realizes the  

  importance of “the society” as a significant mechanism to help the Company’s business remain and grow sustainably  

  and acceptable for all related parties. The management shall perform in accordance with the policy and report the  

  result of performance according to social responsibility to the Board of Directors, encourage employees at all levels  

  to have awareness of social and environmental responsibility for the public benefit, and create activities to support  

  the society and the environment on regular and continuous basis;
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 12.  Encourage employees at all levels to have awareness of ethics and morals by making manual on the Company’s  

  business ethics and code of conduct;

 13. Promote and encourage the Board of Directors to attend the training to improve necessary knowledge and skills  

  to perform the directors’ duties on regular basis and disclose the information on training and knowledge improvement 

  of the directors in annual report (Form 56-1 One Report);

 14. The Board of Directors has issued the notification on “anti-corruption policy” in writing to promote and raise  

  awareness of directors, executives and employees at all levels of the risks of corruption;

 15. Consider appointing the Chief Executive Office and sub-committees, determine the scope of power and duties and  

  responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer and sub-committees to take care of the administrative system and  

  internal control system in accordance with the determined policy;

 16. Consider appointing the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board of Directors comply with the law, notifications,  

  rules and regulations;

 17. The Board of Directors determines that the President and Managing Director shall be different persons. Therefore, the  

  scope of power and responsibilities of the President have been decided in terms of determination of the policy for  

  the Managing Director to perform his/her regular administrative tasks. The President shall supervise the performance 

  of the management, and provide suggestions and assistance without participation and intervention in daily 

  administration which is the duty of the Managing Director under the scope of power given by the Board of Director. 

 Furthermore, the President shall have leadership skill to ensure that the directors will not be under the influence of the 

management. The President shall chair the Board of Directors’ meeting and shareholders’ meeting fairly and effectively, support 

and encourage the participants to vote and strictly comply with the good corporate governance. 

7.3 Information on Sub-Committees
(1) Audit committee

The audit committee consists of 3 members as follows;

 1. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Chairman

 2. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem Member

 3. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi* Member 

Remark: *Dr.Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi is an auditor with an adequate knowledge and extensive experience in audit. 

He is a certified public accountant with a bachelor’s degree in Accounting, from Thammasat University. 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

 The Company has issued the Audit Committee Charter which determines the key roles, duties and responsibilities 

assigned by the shareholders’ meeting or the Board of Directors’ Meeting. The Audit Committee shall perform their duties 

with responsibility, prudence and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company as follows:

 1. Perform audit to ensure that the Company has correct financial statements (quarterly and annual) and appropriately  

  disclose related information of the Company prior to submission to the Board of Directors;

 2. Perform audit to ensure that the Company has appropriate and effective internal control system and internal audit  

  control and consider independency of the internal auditor as well as approving the appointment, transfer or dismissal 

  of the internal auditor or other divisions in charge of the internal audit;
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 3. Perform audit to ensure that the Company has appropriate and effective risk assessment and risk management system; 

 4. Perform audit to ensure that the Company complies with the with the law on securities and exchange, rules and good  

  practices of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as the law  

  related to the Company’s business;

 5. Consider selecting for appointment and dismissal of the Company’s auditor and propose the remuneration of the  

  auditor, coordinate with the auditor regarding the objectives of audit, scope, subject matters, guidelines, plans, and  

  problems found during the audit and issues that the auditor considers essential as well as attending meetings with  

  the auditor without the presence of the management at least once a year;

 6. Consider related transactions or transactions which may have the conflict of interest to ensure correctness and  

  completeness and compliance with the law and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and completely disclose  

  the information about making of the transactions to ensure that such transactions are reasonable and useful for the  

  Company;

 7. Make the Audit Committee’s report by disclosing it in the annual report (Form 56-1 One Report). Such report shall 

  be signed by the President of the Audit Committee;

 8. Perform the audit to ensure accuracy of references and self-assessment form related to anti-corruption measures of  

  the Company in accordance with Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC);

 9. In performing the duties of Audit Committee, if the Audit Committee find or doubt that there may be the following  

  transactions or actions which could significantly affect the financial status and operating results of the Company,  

  the Audit Committee shall report the Board of Directors to take corrective action within the period specified by the 

  Audit Committee:

  (a) Transactions which may have the conflict of interest

  (b) Corruption or abnormal events or significant errors in the internal control system

  (c) Violation of the law on securities and exchange, rules and good practices of Securities and Exchange Commission  

   (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as the law related to the Company’s business

 10. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

(2) Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee

The Risk Management and Sustainable Development Committee consists of 4 members as follows;

 1. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi Chairman

 2. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis Member 

 3. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow Member

 4. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow Member

Duties and Responsibilities of Risk Management Sustainable Development Committee

 Risk Management

 1.  Determine and review corporate risk management policy related to the Company’s business operation which are in  

  concordance with the objectives, main goals, strategies, and acceptable risks to be the guidelines for all employees 

  and review risk management policy regularly at least once a year;
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 2. Give suggestions on monitoring and assessment of risk management results to Risk Management Committee for  

  effective implementation in risk management;

 3. Supervise analysis of all risks including internal and external factors, opportunities and possible impacts to the overall  

  operation of the Company such as strategic risk, operation risk, financial risk, compliance risk and corruption risk;

 4. Consider reporting the results of corporate risk management and give opinions on possible risks and guidelines for  

  determination of mitigation plan and development of corporate risk management to risk management working group  

  to ensure continuous effectiveness;

 5. Follow up the result of acceptable risk management from risk management working group to seek possible solutions  

  and prevention of future occurrences at least once a quarter;

 6. Supervise the risk management planning and risk management system or procedure to reduce impacts on the 

  Company’s business, follow up and assess the result of performance under the risk management framework in the  

  entire organization to ensure that the Company has appropriate risk management system;

 7. Promote and develop risk management at all levels including equipment to ensure continuity and effectiveness as  

  well as fostering the organization to have risk management culture;

 8. Ensure that each division complies with the determined risk management policy and plan;

 9. Report the results of corporate risk management to the Board of Directors, and in case of important matters which  

  may significantly affect the Company, such matters shall be reported to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement  

  and consideration without delay;

 Sustainable Development

 1. Consider and set goals, policies, strategies, and action plans for sustainable development that are in line with the  

  Company’s economic, social and environmental business operations.

 2. Supervise the implementation of policies, strategies and action plans for sustainable development, through the 

  Sustainable Development Working Group.

 3. Promote and support activities such as labor and staff management. Employee welfare employee development and  

  Training conservation of resources and the environment and promote the development of communities and society  

  around the company to achieve the goals according to the sustainable development policy.

 4. Supervise, review and monitor the progress of the operation and assess the effectiveness of the implementation of  

  the sustainable development policy.

(3) Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee consists of 4 members as follows;

 1. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem Chairman 

 2. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew Member

 3. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi Member 

 4.  Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow Member 
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Duties and Responsibilities of Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee

 Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall perform their duties with responsibility, care 

and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company as follows:

 1. Consider overall and individual components and qualifications of the Board of Directors to ensure suitability for  

  the size, type and complexity of the Company’s business in terms of education, knowledge, expertise, skill,  

  experience, and specialization in relation with the Company’s business, and independency as determined by the  

  Company;

 2. Consider qualifications of the top executives that suit the Company’s business management to achieve the determined  

  vision in terms of education, experience, knowledge, and expertise by taking account of important business-related  

  factors such as economic and industrial condition and trends as well as the business competitiveness;

 3. Determine procedure and rules on personnel recruitment in accordance with the structure and qualifications prescribed  

  in Clause 1 and Clause 2 on the basis of transparent rules and procedure of recruitment;

 4. Ensure that the Company provide orientations and useful documents to newly appointed directors;

 5. Review succession plan of top executives of the Company to ensure continuity of business operation in case of  

  management succession;

 6. Support the Company to give opportunities to minority shareholders to nominate the candidates for selection of the  

  Board of Directors;

 7. Select qualified directors to the members of sub-committees to be proposed to the Board of Directors’ Meeting for  

  appointment upon vacancy;

 8. Review and propose the criteria for consideration of remuneration which is suitable for the directors’ responsibilities  

  by linking the remuneration to the overall operating results of the Company to attract and retain skilled, quality and  

  potential directors. The Board of Directors shall approve the remuneration prior to presenting to the annual general  

  shareholders’ meeting for approval of the annual performance assessment and consider the adjustment of appropriate  

  remuneration to top executive of the Company prior to proposing it to the Board of Directors for further approval;

 9. Determine the policy, rules and good practices for business operation to ensure conformity to good corporate 

  governance by making the manual on good corporate governance and business code of conduct for executives and  

  employees of all levels to rely on as the performance guidelines. Directors, executives and employees at all levels  

  shall be obliged not to ignore compliance with the rules indicated in the good corporate governance manual;

 10. Follow up, review and revise the Company’s corporate governance to ensure conformity to good corporate governance  

  of  Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as other applicable  

  laws;

 11. Support communication of good corporate governance to ensure understanding of directors, executives and employees  

  at all levels to extent of becoming the corporate culture.

(4) Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of 4 members as follows;

 1.  Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow Chairman of the Executive Committee

 2.  Mr. Jaturont Komolmis Executive Committee 
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 3.  Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow Executive Committee 

 4.  Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow Executive Committee

Duties and Responsibilities of Executive Committee

 The Company has issued the Executive Committee Charter which determines the key roles, duties and responsibilities 

assigned by the Board of Directors in the Company’s management. The Executive Committee shall perform their duties with 

responsibility, prudence and integrity for the utmost benefit of the Company as follows:

 1. Manage the Company’s business in conformity to the objectives, goals, policies, strategies, business plans, and  

  budgets approved by the Board of Directors;

 2. Consider proposals of the management in determining the annual objectives, goals, policies, strategies, business  

  plans, and budgets, financial and investment plan, human resources management plan, and information technology  

  plan by assessing the Company’s achievements in accordance with Key Performance Indicator (KPI) to be proposed  

  to the Board of Directors for further consideration;

 3. Follow up and report the monthly, quarterly and annual operating results in comparison to the determined goals and  

  budget and give opinions to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement and consideration on regular basis;

 4. Create the corporate culture which adheres to business code of conduct and be a good role model;

 5. Determine and review organizational structure and corporate management power;

 6. Consider paying interim and annual dividend based on the Company annual performance and give opinions to the 

  Board of Directors for further consideration of the shareholders’ meeting;

 7. Have the power to authorize one or many executives or other persons to perform any task within the specified period  

  under the supervision of the Executive Committee which also includes cancellation or revocation, change or 

  replacement of the authorized persons or power as deemed appropriate;

 8. Have the power to approve financial matters in accordance with work-related regulations and the power to approve  

  as approved by the Board of Directors’ Meeting;

 9. Have the power to appoint committees or working groups to carefully screen the information about specific issues by  

  determining the power, duties and responsibilities, as well as supervising performance of the working groups for 

  achievement of the determined objectives and goals;

 10. Perform other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.

7.4 Management Information
As of December 31, 2021, 5 executive directors attending the meetings are as follows;

 1. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow Chief Executive Officer

 2.  Mr. Jaturont Komolmis Chief Operation Officer in Marketing and Sales

 3.  Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow Chief Operation Officer in Business Development

 4.  Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow       Chief Operation Officer in Media Production

 5.  Miss Khwanchanok Aula-aiem Account and Finance Director
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7.5 Employee Data
The company has employees for a period of 3 years as follows:

Level
2019

Male Male MaleFemale Female FemaleTotal Total Total

2020 2021

Manager

Employee

Total

 The company realized the importance of human resource development and fair labor practices which will help increase 

the value of business and to strengthen the competitiveness and sustainable growth of the company, therefore, the company 

has established policies and practices as follows: 

 (1)  Respecting the human rights of employees based on human rights and abide by labor laws

  • Labor Disputes

   In the previous year until 31 December 2021, the Company had no labor disputes in which the Company was the  

 party or litigant which may significantly affect the Company’s business operation.

 (2)  Providing employment processes, employment terms, and considering performance under a fair performance  

evaluation process. Including fair compensation determination, year-end bonus consideration, allowance payment and overtime 

pay for all employees fairly. 

  •  Executive Remuneration

   As of 31 December 2021, remuneration for 5 executive directors is totaled 30,386,166.50 Baht paid out in the  

 forms of Salary, Bonus and Provident Fund

  •  Employees’ Remuneration

   As of 31 December 2021, the total remuneration for 187  employees (excluding executives) was 120,978,187.11  

 Baht which included salary, bonus, provident fund, and other remunerations.

 (3) Providing welfare in various aspects for employees as required by law such as social security and other benefits 

besides the law requires

  • Provident Fund

   The Company established the provident fund abiding by the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 (including the  

 amendment). As of March 1, 2011, every employee has a right to register to be a member of the provident fund  

 following the conditions that assets of the fund consist of money contributed by employees at 5% of salary of each 

 employee and money contributed by employer.  In case of membership termination, employee has right to receive benefit  

 payouts calculated by employment period as the following details;

4

126

130

1

96

97

5

222

227

4

122

126

1

94

95

5

216

221

4

112

116

1

75

76

5

187

192
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Employment Period of Contribution Rate and Contribution Benefit Paid to
Employee of Terminated Membership

Less than 1 year 

More than 1 year but less than 2 years

More than 2 but less than 3 years

More than  3 year but less than 4 years 

More than 4 years

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

  • Life insurance, accident disability insurance and group health insurance

   The Company offers benefits for employees in the forms of life insurance, accident disability insurance and  

 group health insurance since the company realizes employees are significantly important human resources which help  

 enhance the Company’s stability and development.  Details of these benefits are as follows;

   (1) Group life insurance death benefits 

    Except  A. If the insured commits suicide.

          B. If a beneficiary intentionally kills the insured for the death benefit.

   (2) Group accident insurance covering death/loss of body parts or physical ability as a result of an accident at  

    work and at work. 

   (3) Group health insurance covering medical fee for sickness or injury from accident. 

  • Emergency loans for employees

   The Company provides loans to employees who have immediate need as the result of an emergency and have no  

 other source of money available.  Employees can borrow money from the Company of not exceeding 3 times of their  

 salary and repay the loan within a 2-year period with interest free with regard to the Company conditions.

  • Funeral grant

   The Company provides funeral grant that helps with some funeral costs of employee and their family member  

 who has died to encourage one who grieves the loss. Moreover, the company permits employees to take days off but  

 still get paid for their family member’s funeral grant. 

  • Hospital visit

   Considering employee’s living is important, the Company provides hospital visit to employee who has been  

 admitted to hospital for days at a time to encourage them.

  • Marriage grant and new born baby blessing

   Considering employee’s living is important, the Company provides marriage grant that helps with some marriage  

 costs of employee and new born baby blessing for the baby who has been born in order to encourage employee.

  • Scholarships for employees’ children

   The Company offers scholarships for employees’ children every year to support employees’ education costs of  

 their children. The scholarships are divided into 2 types; scholarship for students who have outstanding academic 

 performance and scholarship to support children’s education from kindergarten to college.
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 (4) Providing an annual medical examination to all levels of the company’s personnel by considering the risk factors 

based on age, gender, and work environment of the individual

  • Annual Medical Examination

   The company placed on good health of its employees, therefore, provided medical examination and Pap test for  

 female employees annually.
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 (5) Promote human resources development by organizing in-house training and send personnel to attend external  

seminars/training on a regular basis to develop work ability.

  Human Resources Development Policy

  The company realized the importance of human resources which being an important part that make the company 

can achieve its goals and plans as defined, therefore, the company issued policies to promote the human resources development 

and training continuously. Also, the company focused on enhancing skill for management, service and teamwork to increase 

efficiency and work safety. The company provided training by people who have knowledge and capabilities from both outside 

and inside the company including online training to employees regularly.
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  In the fiscal year 2021, 200 company’s employees had received training and development out of 32 training 

courses. (1 internal training courses and 31 external training courses) or 2,745 hours. Examples of training courses and seminars 

that employees attended to develop their abilities, skills and knowledge that are beneficial to the performance of duties and 

business are as follows:

 Internal training courses 

 1. Risk management to comply with Personal Data Protection.

 External training courses

  1. HR Trends for the Next Normal of Work

  2. Creating infographics for travel and hospitality businesses

  3. 4 types of employment contracts

  4. Get ready for PDPA 

  5. Personal Brand

  6. Prepare HR documents in accordance with Personal Data Protection

  7. PDPA Forum 2021: Implementing PDPA in 360 Degree for the New Normal

  8. THSI Exclusive Coaching: Prepare before the assessment

  9. How to Write an Effective MD&A 

 10. KPI techniques and performance appraisal

 11. Digital HR Transformation

 12. Smart Secretary& Super Admin

 13. Organizational structure design

 14. Fraud & Cyber Security Risk 

 15. Management and take care of employees during the COVID-19 epidemic

 16. How to write a Job description

 17. Supervisor skills, assigning tasks, assigning tasks, teaching tasks, and following up

 18. Risk Management from COVID-19 Epidemic

 19. ESG Showcase: PTTEP Sustainable Development 

 20. Data management techniques with Microsoft Excel 

 21. Sustainable Supply Chain Management

 22. Preparing for Personal Data Protection with Case Studies and Practice

 23. Virtual: Supervisory Skills

 24. TOTAL REWARDS FORUM 2021

 25. Preparation of Cash Budgeting for senior management in planning and decision making.

 26. Summary of key operating statistics and financial statement analysis 

 27. THE STANDARD ECONOMIC FORUM 2021 

 28. The Great Reform: Thailand’s Tipping Point for a Sustainable Future

 29. Thailand HR Day 2021 “2022 Thailand’s Future of Workforce: The Great Reset Rebuild & Restart”

 30.  TSRS 16, 2022 lease, problems, solutions and consents to reductions rent related to COVID-19

 31. Property, plant, equipment year 2022 and related financial reporting 
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 (6) Implement for employees to perform their work safely and have good workplace hygiene by providing measures 

to prevent accidents and strengthen employees to have safety awareness including training and promoting employees to have 

good hygiene and always maintain a healthy and safe workplace.

  The company committed to care and protect on the safety, occupational health and working environment of  

personnel, properties, and work process, issuing policies to support various activities to promote safety, occupational health 

and maintain a working environment that is always safe for life and property of employees, community and society. 

  The agency of safety, occupational health and work environment together with the committee of safety, 

occupational health and work environment and the agency of safety, occupational health and work environment developed a 

safety management system to control, prevent and resolve dangers from the company’s operations along with organizing 

activities to promote knowledge and understanding about safety for all employees, resulting in zero accident in an organization 

for the past year. The company has statistics on accidents until 31 December 2021, with the accumulated number of days 

without accidents until suspension of work was 2,516 days.

  In the 2021, the company has taken actions on safety, occupational health and environment as follows:

  1. Training to educate/Meeting on safety.

  The company cares about the health of its employees, by surveillance to prevent various diseases that may occur  

  especially the spread of the COVID-19 by doing the following:

   - Prepare a preventive and emergency plan in the event of the COVID-19 outbreak.

   - Require employees to wear masks while working.

   - There is a temperature check before going into the building.

   - Contains alcohol for cleaning Disinfect all doors entering and exiting the building.

   - Determine the pick-up point - delivery of parcels

   - Public relations and campaigns to prevent various diseases regularly. Emergency plan training.

  2. Training to educate/Meeting on safety.

   - Training on the project to develop the potential of hazardous chemicals management

   -  Training course on basic green industry knowledge through e-learning system under the project to promote  

    and develop enterprises towards green industry Emergency plan training

  3. Emergency plan training

   The committee of safety, occupational health and work environment and the agency of safety, occupational health  

  and work environment jointly held emergency response training such as fire protection and fighting drill training
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List 2020 2021

Audit fees for the company 

 - Financial Statements in 3 Quarter

 - Annual Financial Statement

Audit fees for the subsidiary companies

 - Financial Statements in 3 Quarters

 - Annual Financial Statement

Other expenses *

Total

1,000,000

700,000

60,000

140,000

125,410

2,025,410

1,020,000

800,000

30,000

50,000

59,932

1,959,932

Remark: * Other expenses for ex sample Travel expenses, Copy fee, Overtime, and telephone charges

  4. Awards

   - Campaign to reduce the statistics of accidents from working to zero for the year 2021 (Zero Accident Campaign  

    2021) by the Ministry of Labor

   -  Green Industry Level 2, Green Activity by the Ministry of Industr

  5. Safety inspection for operating equipment and working environment is as follows:

   - Electrical inspection.

   -  Environmental inspection (light, sound, heat stress, air, and wastewater).

   -  Forklift inspection.

   -  Emergency light inspection.

   -  Fire extinguisher inspection.

 (7) Allows employees to show their opinions or complaints about unfair practices or improper conduct in the company 

included providing protection to employees who report such matters.  

  

7.6 Other Important Information
 Auditor’s Remuneration

 The Company appointed DIA International Company Limited to be the auditor for the Company and the subsidiaries 

for the accounting period ended 31 December 2021. Details of the expenses are as follows:

(Unit : TBH)
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 In 2021, the Company and the subsidiaries used the auditing service only and no other service was hired from DIA 

International Company Limited and other persons or entities related to the auditor or the auditing office which the auditor 

belongs to.

 Company Secretary 

 The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Kitkallaya Somroumrom to be the Company Secretary. Duties and 

responsibilities of the Company Secretary as determined as follows:

 1. Take care and give advice to committees and executives about the rules and laws they are supposed to know and  

  ensure compliance on regular basis;

 2. Take care of activities of the Board of Directors, be responsible for arrangement of the Board of Director’s Meeting  

  and shareholders’ meeting in compliance with the law and the Company’s regulations;

 3. Take minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting and shareholders’ meeting and coordinate compliance with the  

  meeting resolutions;

 4. Ensure disclosure of the information and report of information in their part in accordance with the rules and 

  regulation of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and SEC;

 5. Prepare and keep the following documents:

  5.1 Registration of Directors

  5.2 Board of Directors’ Meeting documents and minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting

  5.3 Shareholders’ Meeting invitation and minutes of meeting

  5.4 Company’s annual report (Form 56-1 One Report)

 6. Retain reports on directors’ and executives’ interests;

 7. Perform other tasks as determined by Capital Market Supervision Committee.

 Investor Relation

 Investor Relations is responsible for all communications between the Company and its shareholders and investors. 

By disclosing the appropriate information of the company to the relevant departments, investor and the public as required which 

must be performed as follows:

 Disclose relevant information accurately and sufficiently to investors in a timely manner and fair to all parties by 

 refraining from using words or inappropriate form that may cause misunderstanding of the Company’s securities

 • Do not disclose inconclusive information or in the process of negotiating which is uncertain or exaggeration

 • Provide opportunities for all relevant parties to can access and inquire

 • Protect sensitive and confidential information and does not disclose information that is considered to be significant  

  internal information, which may affect investment decisions or affect the rights of shareholders before being 

  officially published to the Stock Exchange of Thailand

 • Refrain from disclosing information related to the Company’s operating results. During the period of 30 days prior  

  to the date the Company will disclose the quarterly and annual results to the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including  

  no meetings to provide information. Organize a group meeting or answer any questions related to the operating  

  results for shareholders, investors, securities analysts and the media, and to comply with the internal control 

  regulations set by the Company.
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 • Perform duties with honesty on the basis of fairness and transparency For the benefit of the company and related  

  stakeholders and do not use inside information for personal gain and others

 • Operate in accordance with the rules, regulations, and relevant laws. 

 Communication Channels

 The Company shall be disclosed through the following channels:

 •  Website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand

 • Other key information shall be disclosed on website: http://investor.grandprix.co.th.

 • Other communication channels e.g. shareholders’ meeting, analyst meeting, investor conference, roadshow, 

  company visit, and other investor relation activities as deemed appropriate

  - In the year 2021, the Company held an activity called Opportunity Day: Listed companies meet investors which  

   were presented through the VDO Conference only on 8 September 2021.

 • Press release and press conference 

 • Investor relation contact at 02-522-1731 to 8 Ext. 309 or E-mail: ir@grandprix.co.th

8 Report of Key Performance on Good Governance
8.1 Monitoring to ensure compliance with corporate governance policy
  With determination in developing the Company’s operating guidelines that consistent with good corporate governance 

principles, resulting in the Company was able to improve the score in the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed 

Companies 2021 (CGR 2021) held by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD). From the 2020, the Company received 

an overall assessment score of 87 points, which is 4 stars or equivalent to “ very good “ and in 2021 the Company received an 

overall assessment score of 92 points, which is 5 stars   equivalent to “Excellent”. 

 In addition, the Company has joined “Collective Action Against Corruption (CAC) project, which has signed the 

Declaration of Intent Against Corruption since 3 September 2014 which the Company has implemented the requirements of 

CAC and passed certification on 30 September 2020.
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 At the Board of Directors’ meeting in 2021, the Board has considered various matters which summarizes the significance 

as follows:

 - To review vision, mission and approve the company’s action plan for the year 2021.

 - To revise and review good corporate governance and charter of the Board of Directors.

 - To approve the remuneration of the Board of Directors and the subcommittees.

 - To approve the appointment of the auditors and the determination of the audit fees.

 - To approve the financial statements.

 - To approve the company’s annual budget.

 - To approve the allocation of legal reserves and dividends.

 - To approve investment plans in the company’s important projects.

 - To review criteria and methods for nominating directors and sub-committee.

8.2 Summery of committee performance over the past year
 Record of the Directors’ Attendance to the meetings in 2021
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 In addition, in 2021 the Board had held 1 meeting between non-executive and independent directors on 13 December 

2021 in which 4 directors out of 9 directors attended the meeting with the agenda on good corporate governance, sustainable 

development, risk management from the COVID-19 pandemic, including a succession plan for the Chief Executive Officer to 

determine the direction of the Company’s business operation. After the meeting, the Chief Executive Officer will be informed 

of the meeting result to formulate a strategy and the company’s action plan.

8.3 Director remuneration
 At the general meeting 2021, which was held on March 31, 2021, shareholders approved the remuneration for the 

directors of the committees and sub-committees that it could be paid out through meeting allowances and bonuses to the 

directors with collectively no more than 6 Million Baht.

 Criteria for setting remuneration for the Board of Directors and the sub-committees are as follows;

Position Quarterly Remuneration
(Baht)

Meeting Allowance
/ per Time (Baht)

Chairman of the Board

Director

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee

Chairman of the Risk Management and 
Sustainable Development Committee

Risk Management and Sustainable 
Development Committee

Chairman of the Nominations, Remuneration 
and Corporate Governance Committee

Nominations, Remuneration and Corporate 
Governance Committee

50,000

40,000

50,000

40,000

50,000

40,000

50,000

40,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000
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Individually remuneration for the directors in 2021 is as follows;

1. Mr. Yuth Vorachattarn

2. Mr. Prachin Eamlumnow

3. Mrs. Ruchiroj Eamlumnow

4. Gen. Dr. Surapan Poomkaew

5. Mr. Kanokphand Chulakasem

6. Dr. Dhas Udomdhammabhakdi

7. Mr. Jaturont Komolmis

8. Mr. Anothai Eamlumnow

9. Mr. Peeraphong Eamlumnow
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160,000

-

160,000

160,000

160,000

160,000

-

-

-

200,000

-

160,000

520,000

520,000

680,000

-

-

-

268,800

-

172,800

172,800

172,800

172,800

-

-

-

628,800

-

492,800

1,032,800

1,032,800

1,272,800

-

-

-

-

-

-

120,000

120,000

120,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

60,000

60,000

60,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

80,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Remark: * The 4 executive directors did not receive the meeting allowance per meeting, quarterly remuneration and pension.

Other Remunerations

There are no other remunerations apart from the above remunerations.
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9 Internal Control and Related Transactions
9.1 Internal controls and risk management
 Opinions of the Board of Directors on the adequacy and appropriateness of the internal control system.

 The internal control system, good governance, and risk management are important mechanisms to succeed and achieve 

objectives for the Company and group companies by the environments and business conditions are changed rapidly all the time. 

The Company focuses on having a good internal control system that also effective and comprehensive in all activities. Setting 

authorities and duties for performance at both management and operational level, in order to have efficient and effective work 

and use of resources, protect and take care of properties, providing reports and financial statement that are reliable, complete, 

accurate, and timely as well as the correct operations, compliance with laws and related regulations for the best interest of 

stakeholders. In addition, it helps promote sustainable growth, transparency, morality in line with the Company’s vision and 

mission.

 The Company has determined an internal control system that consistent with the framework and guidelines of internal 

control of the Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission (COSO) with the following components 

and operations:

 1. Control Environment

 We support an efficient and effective internal control environment. The management structure is established, with broad 

oversight, structures, reporting lines and appropriate authorities and responsibilities in the pursuit of objectives. Each executive 

is independent to approve and improve policy to be in line with the internal and external changes. We also emphasize human 

resource provision and administration in alignment with the standards and culture.

 2. Risk Management

 We are ready to encounter with any changes that affect the Company’s businesses and enable assessment of related risks 

and analyze risks to determine how the risks should be managed. We also identify and assess changes that could impact the 

system of internal control; 

 3. Control Activities

 •  We develop control activities that help mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives in an acceptable level;

 • We select and develop general control activities over technology to support the achievement of the objectives; 

 • We deploy control activities through policies that establish what is expected and procedures that put policies 

  into action.

 4. Information & Communication

 • We obtain and use relevant and quality information to support the functioning of internal control; 

 • We internally communicate information, including objectives and responsibilities for internal control, necessary to  

  support the functioning of internal control;

 • We communicate with external parties regarding matters affecting the functioning of internal control. 

 5. Monitoring Activities

 We perform monitoring activities in the executive and operating levels, by chiefs and executives of each line to ascertain 

whether the components of internal control are present and functioning.  The results of monitoring activities are reported to the 

Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Chief Executive Officer and the executive directors regularly.
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 From evaluating the Company’s internal control system in 5 aspects mentioned above, the Board of Directors along 

with 3 directors from the Audit Committee agree that the Company has a suitable and sufficient internal control system. 

The Board of Directors is aware that any internal control system, may not be possible to assure all the damage caused by  

a material fault, but it can prevent or acceptable at a reasonable level.

 The opinion of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors in case it is different.

 - Not different - 

9.2 Transactions Which the Company accepted and Provident service

Person/ juristic person 
with joint benefits

Reletionship Type of mutual 
transaction

Value of 
mutual trans-
action (Baht) 
Year 2020

Opinion on 
connected 
transaction

1. Blue Diamond Golf and  
    Water Sport Club Co., Ltd.

2. Yachiyoda Allow Wheel  
    Co., Ltd.

3. GPI Myanmar Co., Ltd.

4. Automatrix Solution Co., Ltd.

5. True Energy Co., Ltd.

- Common director/
   shareholder

- Common director/
   shareholder

-  Subsidiary and
   Common director/
   shareholder

-  Associate and
   Common director/
   shareholder

-  Associate and
   Common director/
   shareholder

- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales

- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales

- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales

- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales

- Service Charge
- Other Incomes
- Service Cost
- Cost of Sales

592,018.00
569,104.00

2,309,708.98
244,447.00

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

230,000.00
-
-
-

-
     2,947,178.08

-
-

Market Price

Market Price

Market Price

Market Price

Market Price
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Accounts receivable at December 2021

(Unit : Baht)

Person/ juristic person with
joint benefits

Blue Diamond Golf and 
Water Sport Club Co., Ltd.

True Energy Co., Ltd

- Trade Accounts Receivable

- Other Receivable

266,134.68

2,702,375.00

-

3,224,178.08

Necessity and reasonableness of mutual transactions

 Such mutual transactions between the Company and corporate or person may be occurred significant conflict, which are 

revenue from providing exhibit space, printing service, consulting and management fee. Those mutual transactions are  

considered by audit committee according to the above table and commented those related party transactions are fair market 

price, reasonable condition of transactions and appropriateness for the maximum benefits of the Company. 
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Measures or procedure for the approval of mutual transactions

 Measures or procedure for the approval of mutual transactions of the Company has been regulated for mutual transactions 

of persons who may has conflict of interests and transparency to keep the benefit of the Company. The Company has conformed 

to the law regarding securities and securities exchange, and the regulations, announcements, orders or rules of the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand that involved with mutual transactions also director committees, management committees or 

stakeholders can’t attend the approving mutual transactions meeting. In case, the regulation defined that it has to approve from 

the Company board’s meeting. The Company would set audit committee to consider and comment about the necessary and 

appropriate those transactions. General trade term condition transaction and uncommon trade term condition transaction have 

principles as follows;

 General trade term condition transaction

 As general trade condition mutual transaction has been considered and commented by audit committee before 

presenting to board committee for approving in principles then management committee approved those transactions. If the 

transaction has similarly trade term with person of ordinary prudence in general party agreement with bargaining power 

without position of management committee or related person. 

 Furthermore, the Company provided summary of transactions for presenting to audit and board committee’s meeting 

quarterly.

 Uncommon trade term condition transaction

 uncommon trade condition transaction generally has been considered and commented by audit committee before 

presenting to board committee and/or shareholders’ meeting for approving as follow to the law regarding securities and 

securities exchange, and the regulations, announcements, orders or rules of the Stock Exchange of Thailand that involved with 

mutual transactions.

 If the Company sell advertisement or transactions with corporate/person that may occurred conflict of interests. 

The Company would define reasonably revenue contribution and provide summary of these transactions to audit and board 

committee quarterly.

 However, if audit committee are not professional in considering of mutual transactions that may be occurred, 

The Company will arrange a professional person who is independent advisor such as financial advisor, Independent expert and 

asset appraiser. The comment from audit committee or professional person is used for assembling to make decision of board 

committee or shareholders therefore to assure the transaction is not a benefit transferring to the Company or shareholders but 

the transactions are appropriateness for the maximum benefits of every shareholders. The Company disclosed mutual 

transactions in annual report and notes to financial statement, which are reviewed or audited from the Company’s auditor.
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Tendency or policy for mutual transactions in the future

 In the future, the Company will proceed the mutual transactions between the Company and corporate or person may be 

occurred significant conflict due to these mutual transactions are necessary and caused the benefits to the Company. Tendency 

of the mutual transactions in the future are as follows;

 1. Normal business transactions such as providing exhibit space and advertising services these are normal business  

  practices in general. Moreover, price and trade conditions depend on market trade conditions. The Company expects  

  that those transactions will occur continuously.

 2. Support normal business transactions such as utility services and purchasing advertisements these are normal support  

  business in general. Moreover, price and trade conditions depend on market trade conditions. The Company expects  

  that those transactions will occur continuously.

 3. Assets or services transactions such as buying or selling assets, the Company expects that those transactions will be  

  occurred if necessary.

 4. The Company would not provide financing for any major shareholders, committees or related company. 

  The Company would provide financing to subsidiaries or associated company depend on shares proportion (if any)  

  then the Company considers the interest rate in the period and analyses the reasonable interest rate according to the  

  risk of loaners.

 After the Company’s first initial public offering, the Company has practiced strictly to the law regarding securities and 

securities exchange, and the regulations, announcements, orders or rules of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and measures or 

procedure that involved with mutual transactions.
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Part 3 financial statement
Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Shareholders of Grand Prix International Public Company Limited

Opinion

	 I	have	audited	 the	accompanying	consolidated	and	separate	financial	 statements	of	Grand	Prix	 International	Public	

Company	Limited	and	subsidiaries	(the	Group)	and	of		Grand	Prix	International	Public	Company	Limited	which	comprise	the	

consolidated	and	separate	statements	of	financial	position	as	at	December	31,	2021,	and	the	consolidated	and	separate	statements	

of	 comprehensive	 income,	 consolidated	 and	 separate	 statements	 of	 changes	 in	 shareholders’	 equity	 and	 consolidated	 and	 

separate	 statements	of	 cash	flows	 for	 the	year	 then	 ended,	 and	notes	 to	 the	financial	 statements,	 including	 a	 summary	of 

significant	accounting	policies.

	 In	my	opinion,	the	accompanying	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	present	fairly,	in	all	material	respects,	

the	financial	position	of	Grand	Prix	International	Public	Company	Limited	and	subsidiaries	and	of	Grand	Prix	International	

Public	Company	Limited	as	at	December	31,	2021,	and	their	financial	performance	and	cash	flows	for	the	year	then	ended	in	

accordance	with	Thai	Financial	Reporting	Standards.

Basis for Opinion

	 I	conducted	my	audit	in	accordance	with	Thai	Standards	on	Auditing.	My	responsibilities	under	those	standards	are	

further	described	in	the	Auditor’s	Responsibilities	for	the	Audit	of	the	Consolidated	and	Separate	Financial	Statements	section	

of	my	report.	I	am	independent	of	the	Group	in	accordance	with	the	Federation	of	Accounting	Professions’	Code	of	Ethics	for	

Professional	Accountants	together	with	the	ethical	requirements	that	are	relevant	to	my	audit	of	the	consolidated	and	separate	

financial	statements,	and	I	have	fulfilled	my	other	ethical	responsibilities	in	accordance	with	these	requirements.	I	believe	that	

the	audit	evidence	I	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	my	opinion.

Emphasis of the matters

	 As	I	did	not	provide	any	qualified	conclusion	in	such	case.	I	draw	your	attention	to	note	13.3	to	financial	statements	

about	 the	 litigation	 that	 the	associated	company	 is	sued	as	a	guarantor.	Court	of	 the	first	 instance	rule	 that	such	company	 

altogether	with	defendants	3	and	4	to	jointly	repay	the	debt	if	there	is	remaining	debt	from	public	auction	of	the	mortgaged	

assets	of	defendants	1,	3	and	4.	The	management	has	an	opinion	that	the	possible	liabilities	is	remote,	therefore	provision	is	

not	set	up	in	statement	of	financial	position.

Key Audit Matters

	 Key	audit	matters	are	those	matters	that,	in	my	professional	judgment,	were	of	most	significance	in	my	audit	of	the	

consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	of	the	current	period.	These	matters	were	addressed	in	the	context	of	my	audit	

of	the	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	as	a	whole,	and	in	forming	my	opinion	thereon,	and	I	do	not	provide	a	

separate	opinion	on	these	matters.
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Key audit matters and audit procedures are described below

	 Revenue	from	services	recognition.	Auditing	procedures	are	as	follows.	(Consolidated		financial	statements)	Since	the	

Company	has	revenues	from	various	main	business	operations	such	as	revenues	from	sales	and	services	as	stated	in	note	to	

financial	statements	no.4.1	which	may	cause	errors	in	revenue	recognition.	Revenue	from	services	are	main	revenues	recognized	

in	 different	methods	which	may	have	 risks	 in	 obtaining	 incorrect	 information	 for	 revenue	 recognition.	 I,	 therefore,	 have	 

considered	such	matter	as	key	audit	matter

Risk response

	 I	have	audited	revenue	from	services	recognition	of	the	Company	by

	 •	 To	assess	and	test	information	technology	system	and	internal	control	relating	to	revenues	cycle	by	inquiring	person		

	 	 in	charge,	understanding	and	sampling	test	whether	the	operation	is	compliance	with	internal	control	system.

 •	 To	audit	by	sampling	contract	and	supporting	document	during	the	period	and	period	near	the	end	of	reporting	period		

	 	 in	order	to	the	audit	the	existence	and	accuracy	whether	recording	is	in	conformity	with	revenues	recognition	policy.

	 •	 To	review	credit	note	issued	by	the	Company	after	the	reporting	period.

	 •	 To	make	analytical	review	in	disaggregated	for	auditing	unusual	 transaction	throughout	 the	period	especially	 that	 

	 	 posted	by	journal	voucher.	

	 •	 To	 audit	 supporting	 document	 relating	 to	 credit	 note	 approved	 by	 authorized	 officer	 by	 sampling	 and	 test	 the 

	 	 accuracy	of	calculation.

Other Information

	 Management	is	responsible	for	the	other	information.	The	other	information	comprises	information	in	the	annual	report	

but	does	not	include	the	financial	statements	and	my	auditor’s	report	thereon,	which	I	obtained	prior	to	the	date	of	this	auditor’s	

report,	and	the	annual	report,	which	is	expected	to	be	made	available	to	me	after	that	date.

	 My	opinion	on	the	financial	statements	does	not	cover	the	other	information	and	I	do	not	and	will	not	express	any	form	

of	assurance	conclusion	thereon.

	 In	connection	with	my	audit	of	the	financial	statements,	my	responsibility	is	to	read	the	other	information	identified	

above	and,	in	doing	so,	consider	whether	the	other	information	is	materially	inconsistent	with	the	financial	statements	or	my	

knowledge	obtained	in	the	audit,	or	otherwise	appears	to	be	materially	misstated.

	 If,	based	on	the	work	I	have	performed	on	the	other	information	that	I	obtained	prior	to	the	date	of	this	auditor’s	report,	 

I	conclude	that	there	is	a	material	misstatement	of	this	other	information,	I	am	required	to	report	that	fact.	I	have	nothing	to	

report	in	this	regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate Financial 

Statements

	 Management	is	responsible	for	the	preparation	and	fair	presentation	of	the	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	

in	accordance	with	Thai	Financial	Reporting	Standards,	and	for	such	internal	control	as	management	determines	is	necessary	

to	enable	the	preparation	of	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	that	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	

due	to	fraud	or	error.

	 In	preparing	the	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements,	management	is	responsible	for	assessing	the	Group’s	

and	the	Company’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern,	disclosing,	as	applicable,	matters	related	to	going	concern	and	using	
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the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	unless	management	either	intends	to	liquidate	the	Group	or	to	cease	operations,	or	has	

no	realistic	alternative	but	to	do	so.

	 Those	charged	with	governance	are	responsible	for	overseeing	the	Group’s	financial	reporting	process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

	 My	objectives	are	to	obtain	reasonable	assurance	about	whether	the	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	as	a	

whole	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error,	and	to	issue	an	auditor’s	report	that	includes	my	

opinion.	Reasonable	assurance	is	a	high	level	of	assurance,	but	is	not	a	guarantee	that	an	audit	conducted	in	accordance	with	

Thai	Standards	on	Auditing	will	always	detect	a	material	misstatement	when	it	exists.	Misstatements	can	arise	from	fraud	or	

error	 and	 are	 considered	material	 if,	 individually	 or	 in	 the	 aggregate,	 they	 could	 reasonably	be	 expected	 to	 influence	 the	 

economic	decisions	of	users	taken	on	the	basis	of	these	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements.

 

	 As	part	of	an	audit	 in	accordance	with	Thai	Standards	on	Auditing,	 I	exercise	professional	 judgment	and	maintain 

professional	skepticism	throughout	the	audit.	I	also:

	 •	 Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements,	whether	 

	 	 due	to	fraud	or	error,	design	and	perform	audit	procedures	responsive	to	those	risks,	and	obtain	audit	evidence	that	is	 

	 	 sufficient	 and	 appropriate	 to	 provide	 a	 basis	 for	my	opinion.	 	The	 risk	 of	 not	 detecting	 a	material	misstatement 

	 	 resulting	from	fraud	is	higher	than	for	one	resulting	from	error,	as	fraud	may	involve	collusion,	forgery,	intentional	 

	 	 omissions,	misrepresentations,	or	the	override	of	internal	control.

	 •	 Obtain	 an	 understanding	 of	 internal	 control	 relevant	 to	 the	 audit	 in	 order	 to	 design	 audit	 procedures	 that	 are 

	 	 appropriate	in	the	circumstances,	but	not	for	the	purpose	of	expressing	an	opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	the	Group’s	 

	 	 internal	control.

	 •	 Evaluate	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	the	reasonableness	of	accounting	estimates	and	related	 

	 	 disclosures	made	by	management.ร

	 •	 Conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	management’s	use	of	the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	and,	based	on	the	 

	 	 audit	evidence	obtained,	whether	a	material	uncertainty	exists	related	to	events	or	conditions	that	may	cast	significant	 

	 	 doubt	 on	 the	Group’s	 and	 the	Company’s	 ability	 to	 continue	 as	 a	 going	 concern.	 If	 I	 conclude	 that	 a	material 

	 	 uncertainty	exists,	I	am	required	to	draw	attention	in	my	auditor’s	report	to	the	related	disclosures	in	the	consolidated	 

	 	 and	separate	financial	statements	or,	if	such	disclosures	are	inadequate,	to	modify	my	opinion.	My	conclusions	are	 

	 	 based	on	the	audit	evidence	obtained	up	to	the	date	of	my	auditor’s	report.	However,	future	events	or	conditions	may	 

	 	 cause	the	Group	to	cease	to	continue	as	a	going	concern.

	 •	 Evaluate	 the	 overall	 presentation,	 structure	 and	 content	 of	 the	 consolidated	 and	 separate	 financial	 statements, 

	 	 including	the	disclosures,	and	whether	the	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	represent	the	underlying	 

	 	 transactions	and	events	in	a	manner	that	achieves	fair	presentation.

	 Obtain	sufficient	appropriate	audit	evidence	regarding	 the	financial	 information	of	 the	entities	or	business	activities	

within	the	Group	to	express	an	opinion	on	the	consolidated	financial	statements.	I	am	responsible	for	the	direction,	supervision	

and	performance	of	the	group	audit.	I	remain	solely	responsible	for	my	audit	opinion.

	 I	communicate	with	those	charged	with	governance	regarding,	among	other	matters,	the	planned	scope	and	timing	of	

the	audit	and	significant	audit	findings,	including	any	significant	deficiencies	in	internal	control	that	I	identify	during	my	audit.
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	 I	also	provide	those	charged	with	governance	with	a	statement	that	I	have	complied	with	relevant	ethical	requirements	

regarding	independence,	and	to	communicate	with	them	all	relationships	and	other	matters	that	may	reasonably	be	thought	to	

bear	on	my	independence,	and	where	applicable,	related	safeguards.

	 From	 the	matters	 communicated	with	 those	charged	with	governance,	 I	determine	 those	matters	 that	were	of	most 

significance	in	the	audit	of	the	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	of	the	current	period	and	are	therefore	the	key	

audit	matters.	I	describe	these	matters	in	my	auditor’s	report	unless	law	or	regulation	precludes	public	disclosure	about	the	

matter	or	when,	in	extremely	rare	circumstances,	I	determine	that	a	matter	should	not	be	communicated	in	my	report	because	

the	 adverse	 consequences	 of	 doing	 so	would	 reasonably	 be	 expected	 to	 outweigh	 the	 public	 interest	 benefits	 of	 such 

communication.

D	I	A	International	Audit	Co.,	Ltd.

(Mrs. Suvimol Chrityakierne)

C.P.A.	(Thailand)	Registration	No.	2982

February	23,	2022
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Financial Statement

As	at	December	31,	2021
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หมายเหตุุประกอบงบการเงินเป็นส่่วนหน่�งของงบการเงินน้�
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Notes to the financial statements
For	the	year	ended	December	31,	2021

Grand	Prix	International	Public	Company	Limited	and	Subsidiaries

1. General information
 Registration:	

	 	 Grand	 Prix	 International	 Public	Company	Limited	 (“the	Company”)	 is	 a	 juristic	 person	which	 incorporated	 in	 

	 	 Thailand	on	April	30,	1982.	The	Company	was	 listed	 in	 the	Stock	of	Exchange	of	Thailand	on	December	1,	2017.	 

	 	 The	major	shareholders	is	Eamlumnow	group	by	shareholding	60.19%	(2020:	60.19%)

	 Place	of	business:		

	 	 Head	office	No.	4/299,	Moo	5,	Soi	Ladplakhao	66,	Ladplakhao	Road,	Kwang	Anusawaree,	Khet	Bangkhen,	Bangkok.	

	 	 Branch	office	1	No.	4/137,	Moo5,	Soi	Ladplakhao	66,	Ladplakhao	Road,	Kwang	Anusawaree,	Khet	Bangkhen,	Bangkok.	

	 	 Branch	office	2		No.	4/309,	Moo5,	Soi	Ladplakhao	66,	Ladplakhao	Road,	Kwang	Anusawaree,	Khet	Bangkhen,	Bangkok.	

	 	 Branch	office	3		No.	4/133,	Moo	5,	Soi	Ladplakhao	66,	Ladplakhao	Road,	Kwang	Anusawaree,	Khet	Bangkhen,	Bangkok.

	 	 Branch	office	4	No.	69,	Moo	2,	Tambon	Bueng	Sal,	Amphur	Ongkharak,	Nakhon	Nayok.	

	 Major	Business:	

	 	 1.	Providing	space	for	motor	show	exhibition	and	automotive	related	products	and	marketing		promotion	services

	 	 2.	Advertising	media	in	printing,	television	and	website

	 	 3.	Production	and	distribution	of	books

				 	 4.	Printing	services

	 	 5.	Other

  Coronavirus Disease 2019 Pandemic

 	 	 The	Coronavirus	disease	2019	(“COVID-19”)	pandemic	is	continuing	to	evolve,	resulting	in	an	economic	slowdown	 

	 	 and	adversely	impacting	most	businesses	and	industries.	This	situation	may	bring	uncertainties	and	have	an	impact	on	 

	 	 the	environment	in	which	the	Group	and	the	Company	operate.	

 

	 Nevertheless,	 the	Group’s	and	 the	Company’s	management	will	 continue	 to	monitor	 the	ongoing	development	and	 

	 regularly	assess	the	financial	impact	in	respect	of	valuation	of	assets,	provisions	and	contingent	liabilities.

2. Basis of preparation of the financial statements
	 2.1	Statement	of	compliance

	 The	financial	statements	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2021	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	Thai	Financial	 

	 Reporting	Standards	enunciated	under	the	Accounting	Professions	Act	B.E.	2547	and	their	presentation	has	been	made	in	 

	 compliance	with	the	requirement	of	the	Notification	of	the	Office	of	the	Securities	and	Exchange	Commission	relating	to	 

	 the	format	of	the	financial	statements	of	securities	companies	(version	3)	No.	SorThor	6/2562	dated	8	January	2019.

	 The	financial	statements	in	Thai	language	are	the	official	statutory	financial	statements	of	the	Company.	The	financial	 

	 statements	in	English	language	have	been	translated	from	the	Thai	language	financial	statements.

	 The	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	on	a	historical	cost	basis	except	where	otherwise	disclosed	in	the	accounting	 

	 policies.
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	 2.2	Basis	of	consolidation

	 	 The	consolidated	financial	statements	for	the	year	ended	December	31,	2021	and	2020	include	financial	statements	 

	 	 of	Grand	Prix	International	Public	Company	Limited.	The	Company	held	the	following	subsidiaries	and	associates.

 Subsidiaries:

	 a.	 The	Company	is	deemed	to	have	control	over	an	investee	or	subsidiaries	if	it	has	rights,	or	is	exposed,	to	variable	returns	 

	 	 from	its	involvement	with	the	investee,	and	it	has	the	ability	to	direct	the	activities	that	affect	the	amount	of	its	returns.

	 b.	 Subsidiaries	are	fully	consolidated	as	from	the	date	of	acquisition,	being	the	date	on	which	the	Group	obtains	control,	 

	 	 and	continue	to	be	consolidated	until	the	effective	date	when	such	control	ceases.

	 c.	 The	financial	statements	of	subsidiaries	are	prepared	using	the	same	significant	accounting	policies	as	the	Company.

	 d.	 Material	 balances	 and	 transactions	 between	 the	Company	 and	 its	 subsidiaries	 have	 been	 eliminated	 from	 the 

	 	 consolidated	financial	statements.

	 e.	 Non-controlling	interests	is	the	amount	of	any	gain	or	loss	and	the	net	assets	of	a	subsidiary	that	is	not	held	by	the	 

	 	 Company	 and	 is	 presented	 separately	 in	 the	 consolidated	 income	 statement	 and	 in	 the	 shareholders’	 equity	 in	 the 

	 	 consolidated	statement	of	financial	position.

 Associates:

	 a.	 Associates	are	those	entities	in	which	the	Company	has	significant	influence,	but	not	control,	over	the	financial	and	 

	 	 operating	policies.
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3. New financial reporting standards
	 3.1	Financial	reporting	standards	that	became	effective	in	the	current	year	

	 	 During	the	year,	the	Group	has	adopted	the	revised	and	new	financial	reporting	standards	and	interpretations	which	 

	 	 are	effective	for	fiscal	periods	beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2021.	These	financial	reporting	standards	were	aimed	

	 	 at	alignment	with	the	corresponding	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	with	most	of	the	changes	directed	

	 	 towards	clarifying	accounting	treatment	and	providing	accounting	guidance	for	users	of	the	standards.

	 	 The	adoption	of	these	financial	reporting	standards	does	not	have	any	significant	impact	on	the	Group’s	financial	 

	 	 statements.

  

	 3.2	Financial	reporting	standard	that	will	become	effective	for	fiscal	years	beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2022	

	 	 The	Federation	 of	Accounting	Professions	 issued	 a	 number	 of	 revised	financial	 reporting	 standards,	which	 are 

	 	 effective	for	fiscal	years	beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2022.	These	financial	reporting	standards	were	aimed	at	 

	 	 alignment	with	the	corresponding	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	with	most	of	the	changes	directed	 

	 	 towards	 clarifying	 accounting	 treatment	 and,	 for	 some	 standards,	 providing	 temporary	 reliefs	 or	 temporary 

	 	 exemptions	for	users.

	 	 The	management	of	the	Group	is	currently	in	process	of	evaluating	the	plan	to	be	executed	and	considering	the	 

	 	 impact	of	these	standards	on	the	financial	statements	in	the	year	when	they	are	adopted.

4. Significant accounting policies
	 4.1	Revenues	and	Expenses	Recognition

	 	 Revenues	are	recognized	when	a	customer	obtains	control	of	the	goods	or	services	in	an	amount	that	reflects	the	 

	 	 consideration	to	which	the	Group	expects	to	be	entitled,	excluding	value	added	tax	and	is	after	deduction	of	any	 

	 	 trade	discounts.

  Sale of goods and services

	 	 Revenues	from	sales	of	goods	are	recognized	when	a	customer	obtains	control	of	the	goods,	generally	on	delivery	 

	 	 of	the	goods	to	the	customers.	Revenues	from	sales	presented	are	invoiced	value,	excluding	discounts	and	returns.

	 	 In	case	sales	with	right	to	return	within	the	specific	period,	the	Company	will	estimate	goods	returned	at	the	end	of	 

	 	 every	reporting	period.	Revenue	is	recognized	to	the	extent	that	it	is	highly	probable	that	a	significant	reversal	in	the	 

	 	 amount	of	cumulative	revenue	recognized	will	not	occur.	Therefore,	the	amount	of	revenue	recognized	is	adjusted	

	 	 for	estimated	returns,	which	are	estimated	based	on	the	historical	data.

	 	 Revenue	for	rendering	of	services	is	recognized	over	time	or	at	a	point	in	time	as	the	services	are	provided.	The	 

	 	 elated	 costs	 are	 recognized	 in	 profit	 or	 loss	when	 they	 are	 incurred.	Revenue	 from	 rendering	of	 services	were	 

	 	 consisted	of:

	 	 a.	 Revenues	from	providing	area	for	showing	merchandise	and	organizing	activities	are	recognized	based	on	the	 

	 	 	 proportion	of	completed	service	(according	to	area	and	duration	of	service	provided).

	 	 b.	 Revenues	from	printed	advertisement	are	recognized	when	they	are	released.	Revenues	from	advertising	on	TV	 

	 	 	 and	airtime	are	recognized	when	it	is	broadcasted.	Revenue	from	advertising	on	Website	recognized	based	on	 

	 	 	 the	proportion	of	completed	service	(according	to	duration	of	service	provided)
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 	 c.	 Income	from	printing	services	Recognize	when	good	is	delivered.		 	 	

	 	 d.	 Revenue	from	other	services	Recognize	when	service	is	rendered.

	 	 e.	 Barter	income	arises	from	the	exchange	of	difference	goods	or	service,	which	is	recognized	at	fair	value	of	those	 

	 	 	 goods	or	service	in	exchange.

  Other income

	 	 a.	 Interest	income	is	calculated	using	the	effective	interest	method	and	recognized	on	an	accrual	basis.	The	effective	 

	 	 	 interest	rate	is	applied	to	the	gross	carrying	amount	of	a	financial	asset,	unless	the	financial	assets	subsequently	 

	 	 	 become	credit-impaired	when	it	is	applied	to	the	net	carrying	amount	of	the	financial	asset	(net	of	the	allowance	 

	 	 	 for	expected	credit	loss	multiplied	by	effective	interest	rate).

	 	 b.	 Dividends	are	recognized	when	the	right	to	receive	the	dividends	is	established.	

	 	 c.	 Other	income	and	expenses	are	recognized	on	an	accrual	basis.			

	 4.2	Cash	and	cash	equivalents

	 	 Cash	 and	 cash	 equivalents	 consist	 of	 cash	 on	 hand	 and	 cash	 at	 banks,	 and	 short-term	 investments	with	 high 

	 	 liquidity	with	an	original	maturity	of	three	months	or	less	and	not	subject	to	withdrawal	restrictions.

	 4.3	 Inventories

	 	 Inventories	are	stated	at	 the	 lower	of	cost	or	net	 realizable	value.	Finished	goods	are	valued	at	cost	by	specific 

	 	 method.	Cost	of	raw	materials	and	supplies	are	valued	at	cost,	using	the	weighted	average	method.	The	cost	of	goods	 

	 	 comprises	 raw	material	 cost,	 conversion	 cost	 by	 allocating	 fixed	manufacturing	 expenses	 based	 on	 normal 

	 	 manufacture	capacity.

	 4.4	Financial	instruments

	 	 The	Group	initially	measures	financial	assets	at	its	fair	value	plus,	in	the	case	of	financial	assets	that	are	not	measured	 

	 	 at	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss,	transaction	costs.	However,	trade	receivables,	that	do	not	contain	a	significant	 

	 	 financing	component	are	measured	at	the	transaction	price	as	disclosed	in	the	accounting	policy	relating	to	revenue	 

	 	 recognition.

  Classification and measurement of financial assets

	 	 Financial	assets	are	classified,	at	initial	recognition,	as	to	be	subsequently	measured	at	amortized	cost,	fair	value	 

	 	 through	other	comprehensive	income	(“FVOCI”),	or	fair	value	through	profit	or	loss	(“FVTPL”).	The	classification	 

	 	 of	financial	assets	at	initial	recognition	is	driven	by	the	Group’s	business	model	for	managing	the	financial	assets	 

	 	 and	the	contractual	cash	flows	characteristics	of	the	financial	assets.

  Financial assets at amortized cost 

	 	 The	Group	measures	financial	assets	at	amortized	cost	if	the	financial	asset	is	held	in	order	to	collect	contractual	 

	 	 cash	flows	and	the	contractual	terms	of	the	financial	asset	give	rise	on	specified	dates	to	cash	flows	that	are	solely	 

	 	 payments	 of	 principal	 and	 interest	 on	 the	 principal	 amount	 outstanding.	 Financial	 assets	 at	 amortized	 cost	 are 

	 	 subsequently	measured	using	the	effective	interest	rate	(“EIR”)	method	and	are	subject	to	impairment.	Gains	and	 

	 	 losses	are	recognized	in	profit	or	loss	when	the	asset	is	derecognized,	modified	or	impaired.
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  Financial assets at FVTPL

	 	 Financial	assets	measured	at	FVTPL	are	carried	in	the	statement	of	financial	position	at	fair	value	with	net	changes	 

	 	 in	fair	value	recognized	in	profit	or	loss.

  Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

	 	 The	Group’s	financial	liabilities	are	recognized	at	fair	value	net	of	transaction	costs	and	classified	as	liabilities	to	be	 

	 	 subsequently	measured	at	amortized	cost	using	the	EIR	method.	Gains	and	losses	are	recognized	in	profit	or	loss	 

	 	 when	the	liabilities	are	derecognized	as	well	as	through	the	EIR	amortization	process.	In	determining	amortized	 

	 	 cost,	the	Group	takes	into	account	any	fees	or	costs	that	are	an	integral	part	of	the	EIR.	The	EIR	amortization	is	 

	 	 included	in	finance	costs	in	profit	or	loss.	 	

  Derecognition of financial instruments

	 	 A	financial	asset	is	primarily	derecognized	when	the	rights	to	receive	cash	flows	from	the	asset	have	expired	or	have	 

	 	 been	transferred	and	either	the	Group	has	transferred	substantially	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	the	asset,	or	the	Group	

	 	 has	neither	transferred	nor	retained	substantially	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	the	asset	but	has	transferred	control	of	 

	 	 the	asset.		

	 	 A	financial	liability	is	derecognized	when	the	obligation	under	the	liability	is	discharged	or	cancelled	or	expires.	 

	 	 When	an	existing	financial	liability	is	replaced	by	another	from	the	same	lender	on	substantially	different	terms,	or	

	 	 the	 terms	of	 an	 existing	 liability	 are	 substantially	modified,	 such	 an	 exchange	or	modification	 is	 treated	 as	 the 

	 	 derecognition	of	the	original	liability	and	the	recognition	of	a	new	liability.	The	difference	in	the	respective	carrying	 

	 	 amounts	is	recognized	in	the	statement	of	profit	or	loss.

  Impairment of financial assets

	 	 For	trade	receivables	and	contract	assets,	the	Group	applies	a	simplified	approach	in	calculating	ECLs.	Therefore,	 

	 	 the	Group	does	not	track	changes	in	credit	risk,	but	instead	recognizes	a	loss	allowance	based	on	lifetime	ECLs	at	 

	 	 each	 reporting	date.	 It	 is	based	on	 its	historical	credit	 loss	experience	and	adjusted	 for	 forward-looking	 factors 

	 	 specific	to	the	debtors	and	the	economic	environment.	

  Offsetting of financial instruments

	 	 Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	offset	and	the	net	amount	is	reported	in	the	consolidated	statement	of	 

	 	 financial	position	 if	 there	 is	a	currently	enforceable	 legal	right	 to	offset	 the	recognized	amounts	and	there	 is	an 

	 	 intention	to	settle	on	a	net	basis,	to	realize	the	assets	and	settle	the	liabilities	simultaneously.

 

	 4.5.	Investments	in	subsidiaries	and	associate

	 	 Investments	in	subsidiaries	and	associate	is	accounted	for	in	the	separate	financial	statements	using	the	cost	method	 

	 	 net	of	allowance	for	impairment	loss	(if	any).				

	 	 Investment	in	associate	is	accounted	for	in	the	consolidated	financial	statements	using	the	equity	method.

	 4.6.	Investment	property

	 	 Investment	property	refers	to	real	estate	held	to	benefit	from	rental	income	either	from	an	increase	in	the	value	of	 

	 	 an	asset	or	both	which	present	as	cost	less	allowance	for	impairment	(if	any)
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	 4.7	Property,	plant	and	equipment

	 	 Assets	belonging	to	the	Company

	 	 Land	is	stated	at	cost	less	provision	for	impairment	(if	any).

	 	 Building	and	equipment	are	stated	at	cost	 less	accumulated	depreciation	and	provision	for	 impairment	 (if	any). 

	 	 Cost	is	included	direct	related	expense	incurred	in	bringing	the	assets	to	their	present	location	and	condition.

	 	 Repairs	and	maintenance	are	recorded	in	the	statement	of	comprehensive	income	during	the	accounting	period	as	 

	 	 incurred.	The	cost	of	major	renovation	and	replacement	cost	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	according	to	specific	

	 	 period	will	be	included	in	book	value	of	assets	and	charged	for	depreciation.	However,	in	case	the	replaced	items	 

	 	 were	included	in	book	value	of	assets	will	be	written	off.

  Depreciation

	 	 Depreciation	is	recognized	as	expense	in	the	statement	of	comprehensive	income	and	calculated	on	a	straight-line	 

	 	 method	over	the	estimated	useful	life	of	each	assets	which	is	separately	considered	for	material	components	and	the	 

	 	 estimated	useful	life	of	the	assets	are	as	follows:	

	 	 	 Building	 20	Years

	 	 	 Building	improvements	 3-20	Years

	 	 	 Machinery	 5,	10,	20	Years

	 	 	 Tools	and	equipment	 2-10	Years

	 	 	 Office	furniture	 5,	10	Years

	 	 	 Office	equipment	 2-10	Years

	 	 	 Vehicle	 5,	7,	10	Years

	 	 Land	and	assets	under	construction	are	not	depreciated.

	 	 An	item	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	is	derecognized	upon	disposal	or	when	no	future	economic	benefits	are	 

	 	 expected	from	its	use	or	disposal.	Any	gain	or	loss	arising	on	such	disposal	of	an	asset	is	included	in	the	income	 

	 	 statement	when	the	asset	is	derecognized.

	 4.8	Leases	

	 	 At	inception	of	contact,	the	Group	assesses	whether	a	contract	is,	or	contains,	a	lease.	A	contract	is,	or	contains,	a	 

	 	 lease	 if	 the	 contract	 conveys	 the	 right	 to	 control	 the	 use	 of	 an	 identified	 asset	 for	 a	 period	 in	 exchange	 for 

	 	 consideration.

  The Group as a lessee

	 	 The	Group	applies	a	single	recognition	and	measurement	approach	for	all	leases,	except	for	short-term	leases	and	 

	 	 leases	of	low-value	assets.	At	the	commencement	date	of	the	lease	(i.e.	the	date	the	underlying	asset	is	available	for	

	 	 use),	the	Group	recognizes	right-of-use	assets	representing	the	right	to	use	the	underlying	assets	and	lease	liabilities	

	 	 based	on	lease	liabilities	based	on	lease	payments.

  Right-of-use assets

	 	 Right-of-use	assets	are	measured	at	cost,	less	any	accumulated	depreciation,	any	accumulated	impairment	losses,	 

	 	 and	adjusted	for	any	remeasurement	of	lease	liabilities.	The	cost	of	right-of-use	assets	includes	the	amount	of	lease	 
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	 	 liabilities	initially	recognized,	initial	direct	costs	incurred,	and	lease	payments	made	at	or	before	the	commencement	

	 	 date	of	the	lease	less	any	lease	incentives	received.	

	 	 Depreciation	of	right-of-use	assets	are	calculated	by	reference	to	their	costs,	on	the	straight-line	basis	over	the	

	 	 shorter	of	their	estimated	useful	lives	and	the	lease	term.

	 	 	 Leasehold	rights-Land	 6	Years

	 	 	 Building	and	structures	 10,	20	Years

	 	 	 Furniture,	fixtures,	and	office	equipment	 5,	10,	20	Years

	 	 If	ownership	of	 the	 leased	asset	 is	 transferred	 to	 the	Group	at	 the	end	of	 the	 lease	 term	or	 the	cost	 reflects	 the 

	 	 xercise	of	a	purchase	option,	depreciation	is	calculated	using	the	estimated	useful	life	of	the	asset.

  Lease liabilities

	 	 Lease	liabilities	are	measured	at	the	present	value	of	the	lease	payments	to	be	made	over	the	lease	term.	The	lease	 

	 	 payments	include	fixed	payments	less	any	lease	incentives	receivable,	variable	lease	payments	that	depend	on	an	 

	 	 index	or	a	rate,	and	amounts	expected	to	be	payable	under	residual	value	guarantees.	Moreover,	the	lease	payments	 

	 	 include	the	exercise	price	of	a	purchase	option	reasonably	certain	to	be	exercised	by	the	Group	and	payments	of	 

	 	 penalties	for	terminating	the	lease,	if	the	lease	term	reflects	the	Group	exercising	an	option	to	terminate.	Variable	 

	 	 lease	payments	that	do	not	depend	on	an	index	or	a	rate	are	recognized	as	expenses	in	the	period	in	which	the	event	 

	 	 or	condition	that	triggers	the	payment	occurs.	

	 	 The	Group	discounted	the	present	value	of	the	lease	payments	by	the	interest	rate	implicit	in	the	lease	or	the	Group’s	 

	 	 incremental	borrowing	rate.	After	the	commencement	date,	the	amount	of	lease	liabilities	is	increased	to	reflect	the	 

	 	 accretion	of	interest	and	reduced	for	the	lease	payments	made.	In	addition,	the	carrying	amount	of	lease	liabilities	 

	 	 is	remeasured	if	there	is	a	change	in	the	lease	term,	a	change	in	the	lease	payments	or	a	change	in	the	assessment	of	 

	 	 an	option	to	purchase	the	underlying	asset.

	 	 Short-term	leases	and	leases	of	low-value	assets

	 	 A	lease	that	has	a	lease	term	less	than	or	equal	to	12	months	from	commencement	date	or	a	lease	of	low-value	assets	 

	 	 is	recognized	as	expenses	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	lease	term.

	 4.9	 Intangible	assets

	 	 Intangible	assets	acquired	by	 the	Group	and	subsidiaries,	which	have	definite	useful	 life,	are	stated	at	cost	 less 

	 	 accumulated	amortization	and	provision	for	impairment	(if	any).

	 	 Intangible	assets	is	amortized	and	recorded	in	profit	or	loss	as	follows:

	 	 Computer	software	is	amortized	by	using	a	straight-line	method	over	the	economic	life	of	the	asset	since	it	is	ready	 

	 	 to	be	used	within	10	years.

	 	 Intangible	assets	under	development	are	not	amortized.

									4.10	Impairment	of	non-financial	assets

	 	 At	 the	 end	of	 each	 reporting	 period,	 the	Group	performs	 impairment	 reviews	 in	 respect	 of	 the	 property,	 plant 

	 	 right-of-use	assets	and	equipment	investment	properties	and	other	intangible	assets	whenever	events	or	changes	in	 

	 	 circumstances	indicate	that	an	asset	may	be	impaired.	An	impairment	loss	is	recognized	when	the	recoverable	amount	 
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	 	 of	an	asset	is	less	than	carrying	value	of	such	assets.	The	recoverable	value	is	fair	value	of	such	asset	less	costs	to	 

	 	 sell	or	its	value	in	use	of	such	asset	whichever	is	higher.	

	 	 An	impairment	loss	is	recognized	in	profit	or	loss.	

	 4.11	 Accounting	estimates

	 	 	 Preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	with	the	Financial	Reporting	Standards	required	the	management	 

	 	 	 to	make	several	estimation	and	assumption	which	affect	the	reported	amounts	in	the	financial	statements	and	notes	 

	 	 	 related	 thereto.	Consequent	 actual	 results	may	differ	 from	 these	 estimates	 and	may	be	 adjusted	 in	 the	 next 

	 	 	 accounting	period.	Significant	accounting	estimate	are	Allowance	for	expected	credit	losses	and	provision	for	 

	 	 	 impairment	of	assets.

	 4.12	 Provision

	 	 A	provision	is	recognized	if,	as	a	result	of	a	past	event,	the	Group	has	a	present	legal	or	constructive	obligation	 

	 	 that	can	be	estimated	reliably,	and	it	is	probable	that	an	outflow	of	economic	benefits	will	be	required	to	settle	the	 

	 	 obligation.	Provisions	are	determined	by	discounting	the	expected	future	cash	flows	at	a	pre-tax	rate	that	reflects	 

	 	 current	market	assessments	of	the	time	value	of	money	and	the	risks	specific	to	liability.	The	unwinding	of	the	 

	 	 discount	is	recognized	as	finance	cost.	

	 4.13	 Employee	benefit	obligations

	 	 a.		Provident	Fund

	 	 	 	The	Group	has	established	provident	fund	under	the	defined	contribution	plan.		The	fund’s	assets	are	separated	 

	 	 	 	entitles	which	are	administered	by	the	external	fund	manager.	The	Company	and	employees	made	contribution	 

	 	 	 	into	 such	 provident	 fund.	The	Company’s	 contribution	 payments	 to	 the	 provident	 fund	were	 recorded	 as 

	 	 	 	expenses	in	the	profit	or	loss	in	the	incurred	period.

	 	 b.		Employee	benefits

	 	 	 	Post-employment	benefits	and	other	long-term	employee	benefits,	the	Group	has	obligations	in	respect	of	the	 

	 	 	 	severance	payments	 it	must	pay	 to	employees	upon	retirement	under	 labor	 law.	The	Company	treats	 these	 

	 	 	 	severance	payment	 obligations	 as	 the	 post-employment	 benefits.	 In	 addition,	 the	Company	provides	 other 

	 	 	 	long-term	employee	benefits	such	as	full-time	working	period	reward.	The	obligation	under	the	post-employment	 

	 	 	 	benefits	 and	 other	 long-term	 employee	 benefits	 are	 determined	 by	 a	 professionally	 qualified	 independent	 

	 	 	 	actuary	 based	 on	 actuarial	 techniques,	 using	 the	 projected	 unit	 credit	method.	Under	 the	 new	 accounting 

	 	 	 	policy,	the	Company’s	commitment	about	long-term	employee	benefits	under	the	labor	law	were	recognized	 

	 	 	 	in	the	financial	statements	using	the	Projected	Unit	Credit	Method,	in	the	past	such	benefits	were	recognized	 

	 	 	 	when	paid.					

	 4.14	 Provision	for	Liabilities	and	Contingent	Assets		

	 	 The	Group	recognized	a	provision	for	liabilities	when	an	entity	has	a	present	legal	or	constructive	obligation	as	a	 

	 	 result	of	a	past	event.	It	is	probable	that	an	outflow	of	economic	benefits	resources	will	be	required	to	settle	the	 
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	 	 obligation	 and	 reliable	 estimate	 can	 be	made	of	 the	 amount	 of	 the	 obligation.	The	 contingent	 assets	will	 be 

	 	 separately	recognized	as	an	asset	if	it	has	factors	supported	that	they	will	be	virtually	received.

	 4.15	 Foreign	currency	translation

	 	 a.		Functional	and	presentation	currency

	 	 	 	Items	 included	 in	 the	financial	 statements	of	 each	of	 the	Company	and	 subsidiary	are	measured	using	 the 

	 	 	 	currency	of	 the	 primary	 economic	 environment	 in	which	 the	 entity	 operates	 (“the	 functional	 currency”). 

	 	 	 	The	 consolidated	financial	 statements	 are	 presented	 in	Thai	Baht,	which	 is	 the	 company’s	 functional	 and 

	 	 	 	presentation	currency	of	the	Company	and	subsidiary.

	 	 b.		Transactions	and	balances	 	 	

	 	 	 	Foreign	currency	transactions	are	translated	into	the	functional	currency	using	the	exchange	rates	prevailing	at	 

	 	 	 	the	 dates	 of	 the	 transactions	 or	 valuation	where	 items	 are	 re-measured.	 Foreign	 exchange	 gain	 and	 loss 

	 	 	 	resulting	 from	 the	 settlement	 of	 such	 transactions	 and	 from	 the	 translation	 at	 year	 end	 exchange	 rates	 of 

	 	 	 	monetary	assets	and	liabilities	denominated	in	foreign	currencies	are	recognized	in	the	profit	or	loss.	When	a	 

	 	 	 	gain	or	loss	on	a	non-monetary	item	is	recognized	in	other	comprehensive	income,	any	exchange	component 

	 	 	 	of	 that	 gain	 or	 loss	 is	 recognized	 in	 other	 comprehensive	 income.	Conversely,	when	 a	 gain	 or	 loss	 on	 a 

	 	 	 	non-	monetary	item	is	recognized	in	profit	and	loss,	any	exchange	component	of	that	gain	or	loss	is	recognized	 

	 	 	 	in	profit	and	loss.

	 	 	 c.	 Subsidiary

	 	 	 	 The	results	and	financial	position	of	subsidiary	(which	is	not	the	currency	of	a	hyper-inflationary	economy)	 

	 	 	 	 hat	have	a	functional	currency	different	from	the	presentation	currency	are	 translated	into	 the	presentation	 

	 	 	 	 currency	as	follows:	

	 	 	 	 -	 Assets	and	liabilities	for	each	statement	of	financial	position	presented	are	translated	at	the	closing	rate	at 

	 	 	 	 	 the	date	of	that	statement	of	financial	position.

	 	 	 	 -	 Income	and	expenses	for	each	statement	of	comprehensive	income	or	income	statement	are	translated	at	 

	 	 	 	 	 average	exchange	rates	and

	 	 	 	 -	 Resulting	exchange	differences	are	recognized	in	other	comprehensive	income.

	 4.16	 Foreign	Currency	Transactions	 	 	

	 	 	 Transactions	in	foreign	currencies	are	translated	to	Thai	Baht	at	the	foreign	exchange	rates	ruling	at	the	date	of	 

	 	 	 the	transactions.

	 	 	 Monetary	 assets	 and	 liabilities	 denomated	 in	 foreign	 currencies	 at	 the	 statement	financial	 position	 date	 are 

	 	 	 translated	to	Thai	Baht	at	the	foreign	exchange	rates	ruling	at	that	date.	Gain	or	loss	on	exchange	rate	is	recorded	 

	 	 	 in	statement	of	income.

	 	 	 Non	-	monetary	assets	and	liabilities	measured	at	historical	cost	in	foreign	currencies	are	translated	to	Thai	Baht	 

	 	 	 at	the	date	of	the	transactions.
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	 4.17	 Income	Tax

	 	 	 Income	tax	comprises	current	income	tax	and	deferred	income	tax.

	 	 	 a.	 Current	Income	Tax

	 	 	 	 The	Group	 records	 the	 current	 income	 tax	 as	 expense	 for	 the	 occurring	 period	 in	 the	 statement	 of	 

	 	 	 	 comprehensive	income	by	calculating	income	tax	as	described	in	the	Revenue	Code.

	 	 	 b.	 Deferred	Tax

	 	 	 	 The	Group	ecords	deferred	tax	of	temporary	differences	between	the	carrying	amounts	of	assets	and	liabilities	 

	 	 	 	 as	at	the	end	of	reporting	period	and	tax	base	of	related	assets	and	liabilities	by	using	enforceable	tax	rate	as	at	 

	 	 	 	 the	end	of	reporting	period.		

	 	 	 The	Group	recognizes	deferred	tax	liabilities	of	temporary	differences	liable	to	tax	for	all	items.	However,	deferred	 

	 	 	 tax	assets	for	temporary	differences	used	for	tax	deduction	including	unutilized	tax	loss	in	the	amount	probable	that	 

	 	 	 the	Company	has	sufficient	taxable	profit	to	utilize	such	temporary	difference	to	deduct	tax	and	unutilized	tax	loss.

	 	 	 The	Group	will	review	carrying	amount	of	deferred	tax	assets	at	each	reporting	date	and	will	reduce	such	carrying	 

	 	 	 amount	 if	 it	 is	 probable	 that	 the	Company	 and	 subsidiaries	will	 have	 no	 sufficient	 future	 taxable	 profits	 for	 

	 	 	 benefit	utilization	of	partial	or	all	deferred	tax	assets.		 	

	 	 	 The	Group	will	record	deferred	tax	directly	to	shareholders’	equity	in	case	income	tax	incurred	is	related	to	the	 

	 	 	 transaction	recorded	directly	to	shareholders’	equity.

	 4.18	 Earnings	per	share

	 	 Earnings	per	share	as	stated	in	the	statement	of	comprehensive	income	is	basic	earnings	per	share.		The	basic	 

	 	 earnings	per	share	is	determined	by	dividing	net	profit	for	the	year	by	the	weighted	average	number	of	common	 

	 	 shares	issued	and	paid-up.						

	 4.19		 Related	party	transactions

	 	 Related	parties	comprise	individuals	or	enterprises	that	control,	or	are	controlled	by,	the	Group,	whether	directly	 

	 	 or	indirectly,	or	which	are	under	common	control	with	the	Group.

	 	 They	also	include	associated	companies	and	individuals	or	enterprises	which	directly	or	indirectly	own	a	voting	 

	 	 interest	in	the	Group	that	gives	them	significant	influence	over	the	Group,	key	management	personnel,	directors,	 

	 	 and	officers	with	authority	in	the	planning	and	direction	of	the	Group’s	operations.

	 4.20		 Fair	value	measurement

	 	 Fair	value	is	the	price	that	would	be	received	to	sell	an	asset	or	paid	to	transfer	a	liability	in	an	orderly	transaction	 

	 	 between	buyer	and	seller	(market	participants)	at	the	measurement	date.	The	Group	applies	a	quoted	market	price	 

	 	 in	an	active	market	to	measure	their	assets	and	liabilities	that	are	required	to	be	measured	at	fair	value	by	relevant	 

	 	 financial	reporting	standards.	Except	in	case	of	no	active	market	of	an	identical	asset	or	liability	or	when	a	quoted	 

	 	 market	price	is	not	available,	the	Group	measures	fair	value	using	valuation	technique	that	are	appropriate	in	the	 

	 	 circumstances	and	maximizes	the	use	of	relevant	observable	inputs	related	to	assets	and	liabilities	that	are	required	 

	 	 to	be	measured	at	fair	value.
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	 	 All	assets	and	liabilities	for	which	fair	value	is	measured	or	disclosed	in	the	financial	statements	are	categorized	 

	 	 within	the	fair	value	hierarchy	into	three	levels	based	on	categorize	of	input	to	be	used	in	fair	value	measurement	 

	 	 as	follows:

	 	 Level	1		 Use	of	quoted	market	prices	in	an	observable	active	market	for	such	assets	or	liabilities

	 	 Level	2	 Use	of	other	observable	inputs	for	such	assets	or	liabilities,	whether	directly	or	indirectly

	 	 Level	3	 Use	of	unobservable	inputs	such	as	estimates	of	future	cash	flows

	 	 At	the	end	of	each	reporting	period,	the	Group	determines	whether	transfers	have	occurred	between	levels	within	 

	 	 the	fair	value	hierarchy	for	assets	and	liabilities	held	at	the	end	of	the	reporting	period	that	are	measured	at	fair	 

	 	 value	on	a	recurring	basis.

	 4.21	 Significant	accounting	judgments	and	estimates

	 	 The	 preparation	 of	 financial	 statements	 in	 conformity	with	 financial	 reporting	 standards	 at	 times	 requires 

	 	 management	to	make	subjective	judgments	and	estimates	regarding	matters	that	are	inherently	uncertain.	These	 

	 	 judgments	 and	 estimates	 affect	 reported	 amounts	 and	disclosures,	 and	 actual	 results	 could	 differ.	 Significant	 

	 	 judgments	and	estimates	are	as	follows:	

  Revenue from contracts with customers

  Identification	of	performance	obligations

	 	 In	identifying	performance	obligations,	 the	management	is	required	to	use	judgement	regarding	whether	each	 

	 	 promise	to	deliver	goods	or	services	is	considered	distinct,	taking	into	consideration	terms	and	conditions	of	the	 

	 	 arrangement.	In	other	words,	if	a	good	or	service	is	separately	identifiable	from	other	promises	in	the	contract	and	

	 	 if	the	customer	can	benefit	from	it,	it	is	accounted	for	separately.

  Determination	of	timing	of	revenue	recognition

	 	 In	 determining	 the	 timing	 of	 revenue	 recognition,	 the	management	 is	 required	 to	 use	 judgement	 regarding	 

	 	 whether	performance	obligations	are	satisfied	over	time	or	at	a	point	in	time,	taking	into	consideration	terms	and	 

	 	 conditions	of	the	arrangement.	The	Company	and	its	subsidiaries	recognize	revenue	over	time	in	the	following	 

	 	 circumstances:

	 	 -			The	customer	simultaneously	receives	and	consumes	the	benefits	provided	by	the	entity’s	performance	as	the	 

	 	 	 entity	performs	

	 	 -			The	entity’s	performance	creates	or	enhances	an	asset	 that	 the	customer	controls	as	 the	asset	 is	created	or 

   enhanced; or

	 	 -			The	entity’s	performance	does	not	create	an	asset	with	an	alternative	use	to	the	entity	and	the	entity	has	an	 

	 	 	 enforceable	right	to	payment	for	performance	completed	to	date	 	 	

	 	 	 Where	the	above	criteria	are	not	met,	revenue	is	recognized	at	a	point	in	time.	

	 	 Where	revenue	is	recognized	at	a	point	in	time,	the	management	is	required	to	determine	when	the	performance	 

	 	 obligation	under	the	contract	is	satisfied

  Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets   

	 	 In	determining	an	allowance	for	expected	credit	losses	of	trade	receivables	and	contract	assets,	the	management	 

	 	 needs	to	make	judgement	and	estimates	based	upon,	among	other	things,	past	collection	history,	aging	profile	of	 
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	 	 outstanding	debts	and	the	forecast	economic	condition	for	groupings	of	various	customer	segments	with	similar	 

	 	 credit	 risks.	The	Group’s	historical	 credit	 loss	 experience	and	 forecast	 economic	conditions	may	also	not	be 

	 	 representative	of	whether	a	customer	will	actually	default	in	the	future. 

  Provision for devaluation of inventories

	 	 In	determining	provision	for	devaluation	of	inventories,	the	management	is	required	to	make	estimates	of	the	 

	 	 expected	 loss	 incurred	 of	 inventories.	The	 provision	 for	 devaluation	 of	 inventories	 is	 considered	 by	 normal 

	 	 expected	 selling	 price	 less	 selling	 expenses	 and	provision	 for	 devaluation	 of	 inventories	 slow	movement	 or 

	 	 obsolete	by	the	age	of	inventories.

  Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets intangible assets  

  nvestments in subsidiaries and associate

	 	 In	determining	depreciation	of	plant	and	equipment	and	right-of-use	assets	and	amortization	of	intangible	assets,	 

	 	 the	management	is	required	to	make	estimates	of	the	useful	lives	and	residual	values	(if	any)	and	to	review	useful	 

	 	 lives	and	residual	values	when	there	are	any	changes.

	 	 In	addition,	the	property,	plant	and	equipment,	right-of-use	assets	intangibles	assets	investment	in	subsidiaries	 

	 	 and	associate	are	subject	to	impairment	if	there	is	an	indication,	they	may	be	impaired,	and	impairment	losses	are	 

	 	 recorded	in	the	period	when	it	is	determined	that	their	recoverable	amount	is	lower	than	the	carrying	amount.

	 	 Indications	 include	 significant	 falls	 in	 the	market	 value	 of	 assets	 or	 the	 future	 economic	 benefits	 of	 assets, 

	 	 significant	changes	in	the	overall	business	strategy	impacting	to	the	future	utilization	of	assets,	significant	negative	 

	 	 industry	or	economic	trends,	significant	loss	of	market	share,	and	significant	unfavorable	regulatory	and	court	 

	 	 decisions	that	impact	the	business.

	 	 The	impairment	analysis	of	property,	plant	and	equipment,	right-of-use	assets	intangible	assets	investments	in	 

	 	 subsidiaries	and	associate	requires	management	to	make	subjective	judgments	concerning	estimates	of	cash	flows	 

	 	 to	 be	 generated	by	 the	 assets	 or	 the	 cash	generating	units	 and	 to	 choose	 a	 suitable	 discount	 rate	 in	 order	 to 

	 	 determine	 the	 present	 value	 of	 those	 cash	flows.	The	 cash	flow	 estimates	 are	 based	 on	 currently	 available 

	 	 information	about	the	operations	and	require	management	to	make	judgments	regarding	future	market	conditions	 

	 	 and	future	revenues	and	expenses	relevant	to	the	assets	or	the	cash	generating	units	subject	to	the	review.	Events	 

	 	 and	 factors	 that	may	 significantly	 affect	 the	 estimates	 include,	 among	others,	 competitive	 forces,	 changes	 in 

	 	 revenue	growth	trends,	cost	structures,	changes	in	discount	rates	and	specific	industry	or	market	sector	conditions.

  Deferred tax assets

	 	 Deferred	tax	assets	are	recognized	for	temporary	difference	arising	between	the	tax	bases	of	assets	and	liabilities	 

	 	 and	their	carrying	amounts	for	financial	reporting	purposes	as	at	the	end	of	reporting	period	when	it	is	highly	 

	 	 probable	that	the	Group	will	generate	sufficient	taxable	profits	from	their	future	operations	to	utilize	these	deferred	 

	 	 tax	assets.	If	management	need	to	estimate	the	amounts	of	the	deferred	tax	assets	that	the	Group	should	recognize,	

	 	 they	take	into	account	the	amount	of	taxable	profit	expected	in	each	future	period.

  Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

	 	 The	obligation	 under	 defined	benefit	 plan	 is	 determined	based	on	 actuarial	 valuations.	 Inherent	within	 these 

	 	 calculations	are	assumptions	as	to	discount	rates,	future	salary	increases,	mortality	rates	and	other	demographic	 

	 	 factors.
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  Leases

  The incremental borrowing rate of lease contract

	 	 The	Group	cannot	readily	determine	the	interest	rate	implicit	in	the	lease,	therefore,	the	management	is	required	 

	 	 to	exercise	judgement	in	estimating	its	incremental	borrowing	rate	(IBR)	to	discount	lease	liabilities.	The	IBR	is	 

	 	 he	rate	of	interest	that	the	Company	would	have	to	pay	for	obtaining	an	asset	of	a	similar	value	to	the	right-of-use	 

	 	 asset	in	a	similar	economic	environment	with	similar	term	of	loan	and	collateral

  Determining the lease term with extension and termination options

	 	 In	determining	the	lease	term,	the	management	is	required	to	exercise	judgement	in	assessing	whether	the	Group	 

	 	 is	reasonably	certain	 to	exercise	 the	option	to	extend	or	 terminate	 the	 lease	considering	all	 relevant	facts	and	 

	 	 circumstances	that	create	an	economic	incentive	for	the	Group	to	exercise	either	the	extension	or	termination	 

	 	 option.	After	the	commencement	date,	the	company	reassesses	the	lease	term	if	there	is	a	significant	event	or	 

	 	 change	in	circumstances	that	is	within	its	control	and	affects	its	ability	to	exercise	or	not	to	exercise	the	option	to	 

	 	 extend	or	to	terminate.

  Litigation 

	 	 The	management	used	judgment	to	assess	the	effect	litigation,	and	this	involves	evaluating	the	degree	of	proba 

	 	 bility	that	a	loss	will	be	incurred	and	the	management’s	ability	to	make	a	reasonable	estimate	of	the	amount	of	 

	 	 that	loss.	Changes	in	the	factors	used	in	management’s	evaluation	and	unanticipated	events	may	result	in	actual	

	 	 results	differing	 from	 the	estimates.	However,	 if	management	believes	 that	no	 significant	 loss	will	 result,	no 

	 	 related	provision	are	recorded	as	at	the	end	of	reporting	period.

5. Transaction with related parties
	 5.1			Relationship	between	the	related	parties	summarized	as	follows:

  Related persons or company Relationship type

	 	 GPI	Myanmar	Co.,	Ltd.	 Subsidiary	and	Common	director

	 	 Blue	Diamond	Golf	and	Water	Sport	Club	Co.,	Ltd.	 Related	companies	and	Common	director/shareholder

	 	 Automatrix	Solutions	Co.,	Ltd.	 Associated	and	Common	director

	 	 True	energy	Co.,	Ltd.	 Associated	and	Common	director

	 	 Key	management	 Person	with	 power	 and	 responsibility	 for	 planning	 

	 	 	 	 order	and	control	various	businesses	of	the	business,	 

	 	 	 	 whether	directly	or	indirectly,	of	the	company	(Whether 

	 	 	 	 acting	at	the	executive	level	or	not.)

  Type of transactions Pricing policy

	 	 Revenues	from	providing	area	for	

	 	 	 showing	merchandise	 Market	price	charging	to	general	customer

	 	 Revenues	from	printing	services	 Market	price	charging	to	general	customer

	 	 Revenues	advertising	services	 Market	price	charging	to	general	customer

	 	 Revenues	artwork	services	 Market	price	charging	to	general	customer
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	 	 Revenues	office	for	rental	 	 Agreed-upon	prices

	 	 Management	income	 	Agreed-upon	prices

	 	 Interest	received	from	short-term	loans	

	 	 	 to	associated	company		 		Interest	rate	6%	-	7%	per	annum

	 	 Leasehold	rights	and	event	space	rental	 		Agreed-upon	prices

	 	 Advertising	and	public	relations	wages	 	Market	price	charging	to	general	customer

	 5.2			Transactions	in	the	statement	of	comprehensive	income

	 	 Significant	revenues	and	expenses	with	related	parties	for	the	year	summarized	as	follows:
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	 5.3			Transactions	in	the	statement	of	financial	position

				 	 Significant	balance	with	related	parties	summarized	as	at	December	31,	2021	and	2020	as	follows:
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As	at	December	31,	2021	and	2020	the	Company	has	short-term	loan	credit	line	total	amount	of	Baht	98.00	million	

and	48.00	million,	respectively,	at	interest	rate	MOR,	MLR	and	F/D+0.90%	per	annum.	Such	credit	line	have	been	

secured	by	mortgaging	certain	land	with	its	construction	of	the	Company	as	stated	in	note	15	and	such	credit	line	

have	been	secured	by	fixed	deposit	value	Baht	50.00	million,	of	company	as	stated	in	note	19,	at	the	end	of	the	year,	

the	Company	did	not	use	such	credit	line.

6. Cash and cash equivalents
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7. Trade and other current receivables
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	 Aging	of	trade	accounts	receivable	are	as	follows.

	 Movement	of	the	allowance	for	inventories	devaluation	for	the	year	as	follows:
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8. Short-term loans to associated company
	 As	at	December	31,	2021	and	2020,	the	Company	has	loaned	to	True	Energy	Co.,	Ltd.	in	the	amount	of	Baht	50.00	million,	 

	 and	Baht	 20.00	million,	 respectively,	with	 a	 one-year	 loan	 agreement	 bearing	 interest	 rate	 6%	 and	 7%	per	 annum,	 

	 respectively.

9. Inventories
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10. Other current financial assets
	 As	at	December	31,	2021	and	2020,	the	Company	had	investments	in	fixed	deposit	due	payment	10	month	and	12	month	 

	 with	two	bank	amount	of	Baht	100.05	million,	and	Baht	200.04	million,	respectively,	at	interest	rate	0.15%	-	0.55%	per	 

	 annum	and	interest	rate	0.20%	-	1.00%	respectively.

11. Other non-current financial assets

12. Investments in subsidiary
 Details	of	investments	in	subsidiaries	as	presented	in	separate	financial	statements	are	as	follows	:

 The	subsidiary	was	registered	on	28	November	2018	in	the	Republic	of	the	Union	of	Myanmar
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	 	 During	the	year	2021,	the	Company	invest	in	Associated	Company	2	times,	totaling	Baht	8.35	million	as	follows

	 	 a.	 According	to	resolution	of	the	Board	of	Director	meeting	no.	6/2021	held	on	October	28,	2021,	approved	to	invest	 

	 	 	 in	Associated	company	(Automatrix	Solutions	Co.,	Ltd)	in	previous	shareholding	proposition,	in	amount	of	Baht 

	 	 	 1.96	million	from	amount	of	Baht	1.96	million,	(divided	into	shares	19,599	ordinary	shares,	par	value	of	100	baht	 

	 	 	 per	share)	to	amount	of	Baht	3.93	million,	(divided	into	39,198	ordinary	shares,	par	value	of	100	baht	per	share).		

	 	 b.	 According	to	resolution	of	the	Board	of	Director	meeting	no.	6/2021	held	on	October	28,	2021,	approved	to	invest	 

	 	 	 in	Associated	company	(True	Energy	Co.,	Ltd.)	in	amount	of	Baht	6.39	million	from	amount	of	Baht	250.00	million,	

	 	 	 (divided	into	shares	62,500	ordinary	shares,	par	value	of	100	baht	per	share)	to	amount	of	Baht	256.39	million,	 

	 	 	 (divided	 into	 762,500	ordinary	 shares,	 par	 value	 of	 100	baht	 per	 share)	which	 increase	 its	 stake	 from	25.45% 

	 	 	 to	25.75%

	 13.3	Significant	matter	of	associated	company	(True	Energy	Co.,	Ltd.)

  Litigation

  Lawsuit	1

	 	 Associated	 company	was	filed	 in	 a	 civil	 lawsuit	 from	 a	 bank	 as	 a	 guarantor	 for	True	Energy	Lopburi	Co.,	 Ltd. 

	 	 defendant	No.1	(former	subsidiary	of	True	Energy	Co.,	Ltd.)	altogether	with	4	defendants,	Amount	claimed	totaling	 

	 	 Baht	141.35	million	with	interest	rate	of	12%	per	annum	of	principal	amounting	to	Baht	128.26	million.	Charge	interest	 

	 	 from	 the	 date	 of	 the	 indictment	 (September	 3,	 2018),	The	Company	was	 the	 second	defendant	 for	mortgage	 and 

	 	 gua	antee	offences.	The	Court	of	First	instance	ruled	that	the	four	defendants	had	lost	the	case	since	December	3,	2019.	 

	 	 Currently,	The	case	is	in	the	process	of	foreclosure	for	public	auction	of	the	mortgage	assets	of	defendants	1,	3	and	 

	 	 4.	Defendants	 2,	 3	 and	 4	must	 jointly	 pay	 off	 public	 auction	 is	 ongoing	 any	 remaining	 debts.	 Currently,	 the	 

	 	 Public	auction	of	such	assets	has	not	ended.

	 	 The	Company	management	of	and	its	associated	companies	are	of	the	opinion	that	the	company	has	no	liabilities	that	 

	 	 may	 arise	 from	 the	 above	 lawsuits	 because	 according	 to	 the	file	 of	 civil	 court	 litigation	 has	 stated	 that	 there	 are 

	 	 mortgage	collateral	totaling	Baht	252.62	million.	This	is	expected	to	be	sufficient	for	potential	liabilities.		Therefore,	 

	 	 the	liabilities	are	not	accursed	in	the	financial	statements.

	 13.2	Movements	of	the	investment	in	associated	company	for	the	year	as	follows:
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	 	 To	enter	into	acquisition	of	investment	contract	in	such	associated	company,	the	Company	Management	has	applied	 

	 	 cautionary	principle	in	entering	into	investment	contracts	to	prevent	issues	regarding	debt	or	damages	possibly	incurred	 

	 	 before	the	Company	jointly	invested.	As	stated	in	investment	contract	no.10,	events	that	occur	before	or	on	the	contract	 

	 	 date	if	any	damages	or	debts	are	in	place	with	the	associated	company	in	addition	to	the	damages	or	debts	disclosed	in	 

	 	 the	investment	contract.	Due	to	actions	prior	to	or	on	the	date	on	which	any	investment	is	completed	by	the	seller	or	 

	 	 director	who	holds	the	position	prior	to	the	date	the	investment	is	completed.	Under	this	agreement,	the	Seller	shall	be	 

	 	 responsible	for	any	damages	or	debts	incurred	by	the	Associated	Company.	Such	lawsuit	was	not	disclosed	in	investment	 

	 	 contract	by	the	associated	company.	As	a	result	of	the	agreement,	the	Company	is	not	liable	for	any	liabilities	that	may	 

	 	 arise	from	such	litigation.	

	 	 In	addition,	on	August	9,	2021,	Mr.	Chamrat	Techanithi	(Major	shareholder	and	director	of	associated	company)	has	 

	 	 sent	letter	of	intent	to	the	associated	company	confirm	to	pledge	that	he	agreed	to	be	bounded	and	will	be	responsible	 

	 	 for	repaying	the	debts	arising	from	court	ruling	in	the	Aforementioned	case	to	the	plaintiff	or	to	any	other	person	who	 

	 	 has	obtained	the	right	to	receive	the	debt	payment	or	legally	replaced	the	plaintiff	on	behalf	of	the	associated	company	 

	 	 in	full	amount	without	conditions.

  Lawsuit	2

	 	 Associated	company	and	its	party	have	been	sued	by	third	parties	and	its	party	and	for	offences	committed	of	unlawful	 

	 	 ordered	by	administrative	authorities	or	government	officials.	The	plaintiff	requested	the	court	to	revoke	the	building	 

	 	 construction	license	Aor	1,	revoke	fuel	type	changes	order	regarding	the	factory	license	(Ror	Ngor	4),	and	revoke	the	 

	 	 process	of	arranging	for	public	hearings	(relating	to	electricity	production	license).	The	Court	of	first	instance	dismissed	 

	 	 the	case.

	 	 Currently,	the	case	is	under	consideration	appeal	by	the	Supreme	Administrative	Court.	The	Company	Management	 

	 	 and	 its	 associated	 company	 expect	 the	Administrative	Court	 to	 dismiss	 the	 case,	 as	well	 as	 the	Court	 of	 first 

	 	 instance	rule.

  Significant long-term contract

	 	 On	September	24,	2015,	associated	company	entered	into	PPA	with	Provincial	Electricity	Authority	(PEA)	for	electric	 

	 	 power	production	and	electric	power	delivery	at	the	price	defined	in	the	agreement.	The	term	of	agreement	is	5	years	 

	 	 and	has	become	effective	since	the	signing	date	by	both	parties.	The	agreement	will	be	renewed	automatically	every	5	 

	 	 years	each	 time	until	Associated	Company	will	 request	 to	 terminate	agreement.	The	electricity	sale	was	plan	 to	be	 

	 	 commencing	traded	on	March	21,	2018.		

	 	 However,	from	2018	to	the	present,	there	have	been	delays	in	the	process	of	obtaining	electricity	production	license	and	 

	 	 control	energy	production	license,	along	with	the	installation	of	some	critical	equipment	and	the	testing	of	the	system	 

	 	 has	 not	 been	 completed,	 caused	Associated	 company	 to	 postpone	 the	 commence	date	 of	 electricity	 sale	with	 the 

	 	 Provincial	Electricity	Authority	(PEA)	several	times	and	have	been	approved	by	the	PEA	every	time.

	 	 On	June	22,	2021,	the	PEA	granted	Associated	company’s	request	to	postpone	the	commence	date	of	electricity	sale	to	 

	 	 May	24,	2022.	if	Associated	company	is	unable	to	start	electricity	trading	within	60	days	from	the	starting	electricity	 

	 	 trading	date	 indicated	 in	 postpone	 electricity	 trading	 agreement,	PEA	will	 impose	 a	fine	of	 0.33%	per	 day	of	 the 

	 	 collateral	amount	of	Baht	1.80	million,	and	if	more	than	12	months,	the	contract	will	be	terminated.
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	 	 In	September	2021,	the	associated	company’s	Electricity	production	license	and	Regulated-power	production	license	 

	 	 were	approved	by	Energy	Regulatory	Commission	(ERC).		

	 	 In	October	2021,	the	associated	company	successfully	tested	the	generator	to	the	first	synchronization	system

	 	 In	November	until	December	2021.	The	associated	company	tested	Load	Rejection	4	Step	(25%,	50%,	75%	and	100%	 

	 	 of	the	electricity	sales	volume	under	the	power	sale	contract)	and	tested	the	generator	connected	to	the	trial	run	in	the	 

	 	 power	sales	volume	of	9	MW	(100%	of	the	electricity	sales	volume	under	the	power	sale	contract).	Non-stop	for	24 

	 	 hours	 in	 conjunction	with	 the	Provincial	Electricity	Authority	 (PEA)	The	final	 test	was	 completed	 on	December 

	 	 28,	2021.

	 	 Currently,	the	aassociated	company	is	waiting	for	operation	notice	receipt	from	the	Office	of	the	Energy	Regulatory	 

	 	 Commission	 recently	 came	 to	 inspect	 the	 factory	 on	February	3,	 2022.	Whenever	 receiving	operation	notice,	 the 

	 	 aassociated	company	will	send	letter	to	Provincial	Electricity	Authority	(PEA)	requesting	approval	for	commercial	 

	 	 operation	date	(COD),	which	is	expected	to	be	able	to	process	the	power	supply	within	March	2022.

  Increase registered capital

	 	 The	 extraordinary	 shareholder	meeting	 of	Associated	 company	No.	 2/2021	 held	 on	October	 13,	 2021,	 of	True 

	 	 Energy	Co.,	Ltd.	 (True	Energy)	 passed	 resolution	 to	 approve	 to	 increase	 its	 registered	 capital	 by	 issuing	148,700 

	 	 preferred	shares	amount	of	Baht	50.00	million,	invested	by	non-related	individual	(Shareholder	group	C)	and	62,500	 

	 	 ordinary	shares	amount	of	Baht	6.39	million,	invested	by	the	Company	(Shareholder	group	B),	which	increase	its	stake	 

	 	 from	25.45%	to	25.75%.		

	 	 In	addition,	Shareholder	agreement	of	shareholder	group	A,	B	and	C	dated	on	October	13,	2021	has	mutually	agreed	 

	 	 to	decrease	registered	capital	of	True	Energy	in	order	to	terminate	preferred	shares	when	maturity	period	has	been	 

	 	 reached,	seven-years	period	since	shareholder	group	C	has	invested	in	True	Energy.	The	Company	agree	to	sell	partial	 

	 	 of	share	of	True	Energy	to	Mr.Chamrat	Techanithi	(Shareholder	group	A)	to	keep	the	previous	company’s	stake	(25.45%)	 

	 	 at	 fair	 price	which	 assessed	 by	 an	 independent	 financial	 advisor	who	 approved	 by	 the	 Securities	 and	Exchange 

	 	 Commission;	or	the	fair	price	that	mutually	agreed	by	shareholders	group	A	and	B;	and	it	may	be	discounted	by	15	 

	 	 percent	of	the	fair	price.	If	shareholder	group	A	has	complied	with	the	condition	in	the	agreement.

14. Investment property
	 As	at	December	31,	2021	and	2020,	the	Company	had	investment	property	book	value	of	at	Baht	32.24	million,	the	fair	 

	 value	 amounted	 to	Baht	 49.64	million.	The	 fair	 value	 of	 such	 investment	 properties	 assessed	 by	 the	management	 is 

	 determined	by	purchase	price	nearby	the	land.
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	 As	at	December	31,	2021,	the	Company	has	a	fully	depreciated	property,	plant	and	equipment	still	in	use	have	cost	value	 

	 of	Baht	149.78	million	(2020	:	Baht	123.39	million)

	 As	at	December	31,	2021,	certain	of	 land	with	 its	construction	at	book	value	amounting	 to	Baht	41.20	million	(As	at 

	 December	31,	2020:	Baht	43.90	million)	have	been	used	as	collateral	for	bank	overdraft,	short-term	loans	from	financial	 

	 in	stitution	as	stated	in	note	6.

16. Right-of-use assets
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17. Other intangible assets

18. Deferred income tax / income tax expenses
	 18.1	Deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	after	appropriate	offsetting	have	been	included	in	the	statement	of	financial	position	 

	 	 		are	as	follows:
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	 18.2	The	movement	of	deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	as	presentation	in	the	consolidated	and	separate	financial	statements	 

	 	 		Incurred	for	the	year	are	as	follows:
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	 18.3	 Income	tax	recognized	in	profit	or	loss	for	the	year	ended	December	31,	2021	and	2020	as	follows:

	 18.4	 	Income	tax	on	components	of	other	comprehensive	income	for	the	year	ended	December	31,	2021	and	2020	as	follows:
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19. Non-current non-cash financial assets pledged as collateral

	 As	 at	December	 31,	 2021	 and	2020	 the	Company	pledged	fixed	deposit	 at	 2	 banks	 amount	 of	Baht	 0.32	million	 as 

	 collateral	for	Bank’s	letter	guarantee	to	Metropolitan	Electricity	Authority	for	electricity	usage	usage	and	monthly	mailing	 

	 post	service	to	Thai	mailing	post	Co.,	Ltd.	as	stated	in	note	30.3		

	 As	at	December	31,	2021,	The	Company	used	a	fixed	deposit	of	a	bank	of	Baht	50.00	million	as	collateral	for	short-term	 

	 loans.	Notes	stated	in	note	5	(As	at	December	31,	2020:	Nil)

Fixed	deposit

	 18.5	 Reconciliation	between	 income	 tax	expenses	and	 the	product	of	accounting	profit	multiplied	by	 income	 tax	 rate 

	 	 	 for	the
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20. Trade and other current payables

21. Unearned revenues
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22. Lease liabilities

	 As	at	December	31,	2021	and	2020,	Future	minimum	lease	payments	required	under	the	lease	agreements	were	as	follows:

	 As	at	December	31,	2021,	the	Company	has	vehicle	leasing	contract	with	a	private	company	paid	by	60	installation	at	baht	 

	 91,407.00	each	and	ended	in	June	2026.

	 As	at	December	31,	2020,	the	Company	has	space	rental	contract	with	a	related	company	such	rental	contract	was	expire	 

	 during	the	year	on	(May	14,	2021).	The	Company	extended	the	contract	by	3	year	which	expired	on	May	14,	2024.	and	 

	 has	fully	rental	fee	in	advance.
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23. Non-current provisions for employee benefits
	 23.1		Movement	of	the	present	value	of	the	employee	benefit	obligations	are	as	follows:

		 23.2		Employee	benefit	expenses	recognized	in	the	statement	of	comprehensive	income	for	the	year	are	as	follows:
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	 23.3		Actuarial	gain	recognized	in	other	comprehensive	income	arise	sing	from	these	principle	assumption	as	follows:

	 23.4		Principal	actuarial	assumptions	used	at	the	calculation	date	were	as	follow:

	 23.5		ensitivity	analysis

	 	 	 Reasonably	 possible	 changes	 at	 the	 reporting	 date	 to	 one	 of	 the	 relevant	 actuarial	 assumptions,	 holding	 other 

	 	 	 assumptions	constant,	would	have	affected	the	defined	benefit	obligation	by	the	amounts	shown	below.	Employee	 

	 	 	 benefit	obligations
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	 	 	 Although	the	analysis	does	not	take	into	account	of	the	full	distribution	of	cash	flows	expected	under	the	plan,	it	does	 

	 	 	 provide	an	approximation	of	the	sensitivity	of	the	assumptions	shown.

24. Legal reserve
	 According	to	the	Public	Company	Limited	Act	B.E.2535,	the	Company	has	appropriated	its	reserve	as	a	legal	reserve	not	 

	 less	than	5%	of	the	annual	net	profit	deducted	by	the	total	deficit	brought	forward	(if	any)	until	the	reserve	reaches	an	 

	 amount	not	 less	 than	10%of	 the	authorized	share	capital.	The	 legal	 reserve	 is	not	available	 for	dividends	distribution. 

	 At	present,	the	reserve	is	fully	reserved.

25. Dividend
	 25.1		During	the	year	2021,	the	Company	had	paid	dividend	2	times,	totaling	Baht	48.00	million	as	follows

	 	 	 According	to	the	Board	of	Director	meeting	no.2/2021	held	on	February	19,	2021,	the	Company	passed	resolutions	 

	 	 	 as	to	approve	pay	the	dividend	from	retained	earnings	as	of	December	31,	2020	(remaining	portion)	for	the	total 

	 	 	 eligible	shares	of	600	million	shares	at	the	rate	of	Baht	0.05	per	share	totaling	Baht	30.00	million	to	the	approved	by	 

	 	 	 the	Annual	General	Meeting	of	2021	on	March	31,	2021.	The	Company	already	paid	such	dividend	on	April	27,	2021.

	 	 	 According	to	the	Board	of	Director	meeting	no.4/2021	held	on	August	11,	2021,	the	Company	passed	resolutions	as	 

	 	 	 to	approve	pay	the	interim	dividend	from	performance	as	of	year	2021	for	the	total	eligible	shares	of	600	million	 

	 	 	 shares	at	the	rate	of	Baht	0.03	per	share	totaling	Baht	18.00	million.	The	Company	already	paid	such	dividend	on	 

	 	 	 September	10,	2021.

	 25.2		According	to	the	Board	of	Director	meeting	no.5/2020	held	on	March	27,	2020,	the	meeting	passed	resolution	to	 

	 	 	 indefinitely	postpone	annual	ordinary	shareholder	meeting	of	the	year	2020	and	cancel	resolution	dividend	payment	 

	 	 	 of	the	year	2019	approved	in	the	Board	of	Director	meeting	no.2/2020	held	on	February	18,	2020.		However,	the	 

	 	 	 Board	of	Director	meeting	passed	resolution	to	approve	interim	dividend	from	retained	earnings	as	at	December	31,	 

	 	 	 2019	(remaining	portion)	to	shareholders	Baht	0.08	per	share	amount	of	Baht	48.00	million.		Such	dividend	will	be	 

	 	 	 approved	by	the	next	shareholder	meeting.	The	Company	already	paid	such	interim	dividend	on	April	24,	2020.
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26. Directors’ remuneration and management benefit expenses
	 Directors’	remuneration	is	the	benefits	paid	to	the	Company’s	directors	excluding	salaries	and	relating	benefits	which	were	 

	 paid	to	executive	directors	according	to	Section	90	of	the	Public	Company	Limited	Act.

	 Management	benefit	expenses	focuses	expenses	relating	to	salaries,	remunerations	and	other	benefits	to	the	directors	and	 

	 management,	in	accordance	with	the	definitions	of	the	Office	of	the	Securities	and	Exchange	Commission.	Management	 

	 under	definition	includes	a	chief	executive	officer,	the	next	four	executive	levels	immediately	below	that	chief	executive	 

	 officer	 and	 all	 persons	 in	 positions	 comparable	 to	 these	 fourth	 executive	 levels	 including	 a	 chief	 executive	officer	 in 

	 accounting	or	finance	or	comparable	positions.

27. Provident fund
	 The	Company	and	the	employees	has	jointly	established	provident	fund	in	accordance	with	the	provident	fund	Act	B.E. 

	 2530.	The	Company	has	to	make	contribution	and	the	employees	have	to	paid	to	the	fund	on	monthly	basis	at	rate	5%	of	 

	 their	salary	and	will	pay	to	employees	when	they	resign	according	to	the	regulation	of	the	fund	of

	 For	 the	years	 ended	December	31,	2021,	 the	Company	made	a	 contribution	 to	 the	provident	 fund	 in	 amount	of	Baht 

	 4.31	million	(2020:	Baht	4.36	million)

28. Expenses by nature
	 Significant	expenses	by	nature	for	the	years	as	follows:
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	 30.2		As	at	December	31,	2021	the	Company	has	commitments	to	pay	consulting	fee	to	an	expert	Baht	9.10	million	with 

	 	 	 1	year.	When	the	contract	is	expired	and	not	any	party	want	to	terminate	the	contract,	it	will	automatically	renewed.	 

	 	 	 (2020	:	about	Baht	8.89	million)

	 30.3		The	Company	had	commitment	to	pay	supporting	expenses	to	Thai	Automotive	Industry	Association,	a	co-host	of	 

	 	 	 Bangkok	International	Motor	Show,	with	the	Company.	The	Company	is	a	member	of	Organization	International	Des	 

	 	 	 Constructeurs	D’Automobiles	(OICA),	an	international	Association,	who	certified	the	standard	of	motor	show	every	 

	 	 	 two	years.	The	Company	will	contribute	to	association	Baht	5.00	million	for	the	year	certified	by	OICA	and	Baht	4.00	 

	 	 	 million	for	the	year	uncertified.

	 30.4		As	at	December	31,	2021	and	2020,	the	Company	has	contingent	liabilities	from	letter	of	guarantee	to	Metropolitan	 

	 	 	 Electricity	Authority	 issued	by	bank	for	electricity	usage	amount	of	Baht	0.31	million	and	monthly	mailing	post	 

	 	 	 service	with	Thailand	Post	Co.,	Ltd.	amount	of	Baht	0.01	million,	 total	amount	of	Baht	0.32	million,	secured	by 

	 	 	 fixed	deposit.

29. Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information
	 29.1	Non-cash	transactions	for	the	year	ended	December	31,	2021,	were	as	follows:

	 	 	 -	The	Company	purchased	property,	plant	and	equipment	amounting	to	Baht	0.32	million	by	credit.	

	 	 	 -	The	Company	has	purchased	vehicle	Baht	5.00	million	presented	as	lease	liabilities.

	 29.2		Non-cash	transactions	for	the	year	ended	December	31,	2020,	were	as	follows:	 	 	

	 	 	 -	The	Company	transfer	other	non-current	assets	(Barter	goods)	amounting	to	Baht	0.35	million	to	property,	plant	and	 

	 	 	 			equipment	and	transfer	Office	equipment	at	book	value	amounting	to	Baht	0.19	million	to	other-noncurrent	assets.

	 	 	 -	The	Company	purchased	property,	plant	and	equipment	amounting	to	Baht	1.45	million	by	credit.

30. Commitments and contingent liabilities 
	 30.1	The	Company	had	commitments	to	pay	the	construction	contract,	rental	and	service	charge	according	to	agreements	 

	 	 	 as	follows:
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32. Financial instruments
 Financial instrument risk management objectives and policies

	 The	Group’s	financial	instruments	principally	comprise	cash	and	cash	equivalents,	 trade	and	other	current	receivables,	 

	 other	current	financial	assets,	non-current	non-financial	assets,	Short-term	loans	to	associated,	long-term	loan,	short-term	 

	 loans	from	financial	institutions,	trade	and	other	current	payables,	and	lease	liabilities.	The	Group	has	related	risks	with	 

	 these	financial	instruments	and	how	they	are	managed	is	described	below.

 Credit risk

	 Credit	risk	is	the	potential	financial	loss	resulting	from	the	failure	of	a	customer	or	counterparty	to	settle	its	financial	and	 

	 contractual	 obligations	 to	 the	Company	 as	 and	when	 they	 fall	 due.	Management	 has	 a	 credit	 policy	 in	 place	 and	 the 

	 exposure	 to	credit	 risk	 is	monitored	on	an	ongoing	basis.	Credit	evaluations	are	performed	on	all	customers	requiring	 

	 credit	over	a	certain	amount.	At	the	reporting	date	there	were	no	significant	concentrations	of	credit	risk.	The	maximum	 

	 exposure	to	credit	risk	is	represented	by	the	carrying	amount	of	each	financial	asset	in	the	statement	of	financial	position.	 

	 However,	due	to	the	large	number	of	parties	comprising	the	Company’s	customer	base,	Management	does	not	anticipate	 

	 material	losses	from	its	debt	collection.

 Market risk

	 Interest	rate	risk	is	the	risk	that	future	movements	in	market	interest	rates	will	affect	the	results	of	the	Company’s	operations	 

	 and	its	cash	flows.

	 The	Company	is	primarily	exposed	to	interest	rate	risk	from	long-term	investments.	The	management	has	considered	that	 

	 the	interest	rate	risk	is	low	as	the	interest	rates	are	mainly	fixed.
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The	Group’s	profit	before	tax	does	not	significantly	impact	by	change	in	interest	rates.

Liquidity risk
The	table	below	summarizes	the	maturity	profile	of	the	Group’s	non-derivative	financial	liabilities	as	at	31	December	2021	and	2020	

based	on	contractual	undiscounted	cash	flows:
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33. Fair value of financial instruments
	 Since	the	majority	of	the	Group’s	financial	instruments	are	short-term	in	nature	or	carrying	interest	at	rates	close	to	the	 

	 market	interest	rates,	their	fair	value	are	not	expected	to	be	materially	different	from	the	amounts	presented	in	the	statements	 

	 of	financial	position.

	 The	carrying	value	and	fair	value	of	financial	asset	and	financial	liability	as	at	are	presented	as	follows:
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	 The	fair	value	of	financial	instruments	is	estimated	on	the	following	criteria.

	 The	 fair	 value	 of	 investment	 in	 equity	 instruments	 of	 non-listed	 companies	 has	 been	 determined	 by	 analysis	 and	 

	 considering	change	in	the	invested	companies’	financial	position	and	operating	performance,	including	other	several	factors,	 

	 and	concluded	that	the	cost	of	those	investments	has	appropriately	represented	the	fair	value	of	the	investments.	

	 During	the	current	year,	there	was	no	transfer	within	the	fair	value	hierarchy.

 Fair value hierarchy 

	 The	Group	had	the	assets	that	were	measured	at	fair	value	and	liabilities	for	which	fair	value	were	disclosed	using	different	 

	 levels	of	inputs	as	follows:
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35. Events after the reporting period
	 According	to	the	Board	of	Director	meeting	no.	1/2022	held	on	February	23,	2022,	the	Company	passed	resolutions	to	

approve	pay	the	dividend	from	retained	earnings	as	of	31	December	2021	(remaining)	for	the	total	eligible	shares	of	600	million	

shares	at	the	rate	of	Baht	0.03	per	share	totaling	Baht	18.00	million	to	the	shareholders.	Which	the	company	will	propose	to	

the	2022,	annual	general	meeting	of	the	company	for	further	approval.

36. Approval of financial statements
							These	financial	statements	were	authorized	for	issue	by	the	Company’s	Board	of	Directors	on	23	February	2022.

	 During	the	current	year,	the	Group	has	not	changed	the	methods	and	assumptions	used	to	estimate	the	fair	value	of	financial	 

	 instruments	and	there	were	no	transfers	within	the	fair	value	hierarchy.

34. Capital management
	 The	objective	of	financial	management	of	 the	Company	is	 to	maintain	 the	ability	of	operation	as	a	going	concern	and	 

	 proper	capital	structure.

	 As	at	December	31,	2021	and	2020,	the	company	has	debt	to	equity	ratio	as	follow:
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Part 4 Certification 
of Information Accuracy
Report of the Board of Directors’ responsibilities for financial 
statements
	 The	Board	of	Directors	is	responsible	for	financial	statements	of	Grand	Prix	International	Public	Company	Limited	and	

its	subsidiaries	including	financial	information	that	appears	in	the	annual	report	for	the	year	ended	31	December	2021,	have	

been	prepared	 in	 accordance	with	 the	 generally	 accepted	 accounting	 standards	 in	Thailand.	By	 selecting	 the	 appropriate 

accounting	 policy	 and	 adhering	 regularly.	Using	 careful	 discretion	 and	 reasonable	 forecasting	 for	 preparation	 as	well	 as 

important	 information	 is	 adequately	 disclosed	 in	 notes	 to	 financial	 statements	 to	 be	 able	 to	 reflect	 the	 financial	 status, 

performance	and	cash	flow	that	is	accuracy,	transparent,	beneficial	to	shareholders	and	general	investors	and	has	been	audited	

by	CPA	from	DIA	International	Audit	Company	Limited,	which	has	provided	unqualified	opinion.	

	 The	Board	of	Directors	supports	the	Company	to	contain	good	governance,	the	Board’s	structure	is	developed	to	promote	

good	governance	continuously	to	operate	the	company	efficiently,	transparently,	and	reliably.	Established	an	internal	control	

system	and	 a	 risk	management	 system	 to	 provide	 accurate	 and	 complete	financial	 information.	The	Audit	Committee	 is 

appointed	by	the	Board	of	Directors,	consists	of	3	independent	directors	who	are	responsible	for	reviewing	financial	statements	

and	supervising	to	have	adequate	internal	control	and	internal	audit	system.	By	the	Audit	Committee	provided	an	opinion	on	

this	matter	as	appearing	in	Report	of	the	Audit	Committee	which	is	shown	in	the	annual	report.

	 The	Board	of	Directors	is	given	opinions	that	good	governance,	risk	management	system,	and	the	Company’s	internal	

control	system	are	adequate	and	appropriate,	able	to	build	confidence	the	Company	and	subsidiaries’	financial	statements	for	

the	year	ended	31	December	2021	and	in	accordance	with	generally	accepted	accounting	standards.

Mr.	Yuth	Vorachattarn	

			Chairman	of	the	Board	Director	

Mr.	Prachin		Eamlumnow

Chief	Executive	Officer
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Attachment2 : Information on The Position of Directors, 
   Executives, Controlling Persons.

Name Company
Automatrix 
Solutions 
Co.,Ltd.

GPI Myanmar 
Co., Ltd.

True Energy 
Co., Ltd.

1.	Mr.	Yuth	Vorachattarn

2.	Mr.	Prachin	Eamlumnow

3.	Mrs.	Ruchiroj	Eamlumnow

4.	Gen.	Dr.	Surapan	Poomkaew

5.	Mr.	Kanokphand	Chulakasem

6.	Dr.	Dhas	Udomdhammabhakdi

7.	Mr.	Jaturont	Komolmis

8.	Mr.	Anothai	Eamlumnow

9.	Mr.	Peeraphong	Eamlumnow

10.	Ms.	Khwanchanok	Aula-aiem

11.	Ms.	Kitkallaya	Somroumrom

 /

 //,	///

 //

 //

 //

		 //

	//,	///

//,	///

		//,	///

	///

//// 

 
 //

 //

  

 

 

//

  

/

 

 
//

  

Notes:	 	 /		 =		 Chairman	of	the	Board	

	 	 //	 =		 Director	 			

	 	 ///	 =		 Executives

	 	 ////	=		 Company	Secretary



GRAND PRIX INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

174

Attachment 3 : Details of The Chief of Internal Audit and Chief 
  of Compliance 

Name :  Lt.Sivarak	Pinijarom

Position :  External	internal	auditor	from 

Education /Training : Bachelor	of	Political	Science	-	Chiang	Mai	University	

	 	 Master	of	Public	Administration	-	Minnesota	State	University	

	 	 Certificate	of	Accountancy	-	University	of	California	Los	Angeles	

	 	 California	CPA	

	 	 Internal	Revenue	Service	EA,	CIA,	CFE,	CIFR	

	 	 Charter	Director	-Thai	Institute	of	Directors	

Work experience  : Chairman	of	the	Audit	Committee	-	TTCL	Public	Company	Limited

	 	 Advisor	to	the	Faculty	of	Accounting	System,	Federation	of	Accounting

	 	 Professions	under	the	Royal	Patronage	of	His	Majesty	the	King	

	 	 Special	Lecturer,	Thammasat	University

	 	 Special	Lecturer,	University	of	the	Thai	Chamber	of	Commerce

	 	 Lecturer	of	the	Federation	of	Accounting	Professions

	 	 Lecturer	of	the	Association	of	Internal	Auditors	of	Thailand

 

Authority and responsibility

	 Head	of	Internal	Audit	have	independence	in	assessing	the	effectiveness	of	the	risk	management	and	internal	control	

system.	To	ensure	that	the	company	have	an	efficient	management	system.	It	is	acceptable	to	all	groups	of	stakeholders.	The	

scope	of	powers,	duties	and	responsibilities	are	as	follows:

	 1.		 Prepare	an	annual	audit	plan	to	consider	and	propose	for	approval	from	the	Audit	Committee

	 2.		 Review	the	operation	to	ensure	that	it	is	in	accordance	with	the	policy	good	practice	regulations	and	approval	authority	 

	 	 Securities	and	Exchange	Law	and	related	laws

	 3.		 Plan	and	conduct	an	audit	according	to	the	work	plan	approved	by	the	Audit	Committee.

	 4.		 Prepare	a	report	on	the	results	of	the	inspection	offer	management	and	the	Audit	Committee

	 5.		 Follow	up	on	the	implementation	of	the	recommendations	in	the	audit	report.	Liaise	with	inspectors	and	give	advice	 

	 	 on	how	to	improve	and	correct
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Attachment 4 : The Full Version of Practices of 
  Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct
	 The	Company	created	the	Practices	of	Corporate	Governance	and	Code	of	Conduct	(Full	Version),	published	it	on	the	

Company	website	www.investor.grandprix.co.th/	in	“Corporate	Governance”	section
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